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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERX4UEIE/ES PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES
KEMH L
T 48 R ik i it
AT HE i A g AR g i &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFAUnder ~ GFA Under
i H 2 Project Name il City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(CFk) (k) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EMIETFIE  Gaobeidian Train New Town R Baoding 31/5/2025 70.00% 49,309 118,227 - R/IC
HIMUMWER  Phase I Project
EMIETFIE  Gaobeidian Train New Town fRE Baoding 30/11/2022 70.00% = = 421,485 C
Eane Phase III Project
JHH
BUk2R Guang Cheng Wang Xi = Beijing 31/10/2021 25.00% - 95,987 - R/CP
BURKE Guan Cheng Da Jia 978 Beijing 31/12/2021 20.00% = 322,292 = R/CP
pils: P2 He Tang Rui Zhu I Beijing 30/12/2021 25.00% - 198,294 - R/ICP
BEmw Tanyu West Mount = Beijing 30/11/2024 10.00% - - 393,544 R/C/CP
BN E Sunny Lake Mansion I Beijing 31/7/2022 20.00% - 382,137 - R/CP
B K Xiyue Paradise Walk b 73 Beijing 30/12/2022 50.00% = 134,221 = C/CP
SR Bai Xin Zhuang B%: Beijing 30112/2021 100.00% - 130,209 - RIC/CP
e Honorable Mansion b7 Beijing 30/12/2021 50.00% - 132,392 - R
EIH Elegant Mansion Ix Beijing 30/4/2023 29.62% - - 202,032 R
g 2% Longfor Mansion i Changde 26/5/2021 100.00% 50,592 150,261 = R/C/CP
Jily Original Courtyard (2 Changzhou 30/6/2021 100.00% - 77,264 12,822 R/C/CP
SH K Jing Lin Longfor Mansion /] Changzhou 16/11/2021 100.00% - 364,108 - R/C/CP
5t Sunshine City Phase IT M Changzhou 3111212021 100.00% 19,098 - 57,338 R/C/CP
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 5
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FEYERE SRR

Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE BxEL
UiER S REH At B ik
Rtk LAM i} b R b &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JEH 21 Project Name FrBsi  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIK) (k) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
eze Celestial Mansion HCE Chengdu 301212023 50.00% - 396,507 - R/C/O/CP
K Lakeside Bay i Chengdu 31/12/2021 34.00% = 124,523 = R/CP
praiigas Peace Hill County D Chengdu 30/6/2021 100.00% 38,893 121,573 - R/C/CP
3% Longfor Central i Chengdu 30/1/2021 80.00% 7430 133,736 = R/CIO/CP
SR Jinglin Jiuxu T Chengdu 31/12/2022 50.00% 7,027 156,920 - R
RERE Jade Mansion s Chengdu 31/12/2021 33.00% - 150,759 - R/ICP
[l Xiyue Jinchen i Chengdu 31/10/2022 30.00% - 127,210 - R/ICP
HELT Linyun Shangfu R Chengdu 15/11/2022 35.00% - 102,679 - R/C/CP
i Xifu Langyue g Chengdu 311512022 70.00% - 189,550 - R/C/CP
i Timeless City g Chengdu 30/1/2021 51.00% 53,546 124,942 = R/CIO/CP
BLR®  Times Paradise Walk g Chengdu 111212023 100.00% 191,675 42,520 13,000 RIC/CP
EER Zi Yun Fu 1 Chengdu 30/12/2021 50.00% = 198,104 = R/C/CP
B FENIN  Xinglong Street Plot L Chengdu 31/1212021 51.00% - 66,450 - R/C/CP
HUMEE Chunyu Xi'an i Chengdu 31122021 50.00% = 70,340 - R/C/CP
TRH River Palace 1 Chengdu 31/12/2022 80.00% - 196,781 - R/CP
A Longfor Mansion i Chengdu 31/12/2021 100.00% = 112,144 —  RIC/CP/Others
BRI Shunshan Fu il Chengdu 31/12/2023 70.00% - 27,825 326,744 RICP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

FRFBYE ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
A By AN
VL RERH i B it
HatLHY i REmR R BT iif:
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JEH 2 Project Name Fisi  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIK) (FIK) (FIK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
ke La Defense E Chongging 31/12/2023 100.00% - - 177,743 R/C/CP
5N Ascension to the Throne E) Chonggqing 30/6/2023 70.00% 23,618 336,048 56,985 R/C/O/CP
=T Poetic Life B Chonggqing 311512021 100.00% - 143,662 - R/CP
EER Zi Yun Fu HEE Chongging 30/12/2021 51.00% - 92,586 - R/CP
BIKH  Chunjiang Heaven TP Chongging 31/5/2024 70.00% 96,000 395,029 198,832 RICIO/CP
TR Rosy Garden Eil Chonggqing 30/6/2023 70.00% - 303,235 168,034 R/CP
T 1l g Hilly Island Bl Chongging 31/12/2023 100.00% 13,945 335,161 157,279 R/C/CP
BfEHE  Times Paradise Walk FE  Chongging 3111212022 100.00% - 79,159 - RIC/CP
JLEREN Jasper Sky HE Chongging 31/5/2021 70.00% 160,974 54,876 - R/C/CP
SR Shunshan Fu B Chongging 3016/2022 70.00% 78,686 122,123 - R/C/CP
A The Light Year B Chonggqing 30/6/2021 100.00% 48,956 103,862 - clo
Hu New U-City B Chongging 300612022 50.00% = 422,442 = R/CP
BFEB L Dingsheng International B Chongging 30/6/2022 50.00% - 68,386 - RIC/ICP
Center
3 Sen Jing HE Chongging 15/11/2021 51.00% - 158,385 - R/C/O/CP
B RAHE  Ba'nan Jieshi Plot B Chongging 31/12/2023 70.00% - 102,192 173,979 R/CP
LD Bay City E Chonggqing 16/11/2022 60.00% - 99,372 231312 RIC
BRAE Science Mansion i Chonggqing 15/412023 51.00% - - 271,254 R/C
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 T
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE ExL
UAER S L Ak B it
Rtk LAY ity s e il AR e il &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JEH & Project Name Fisi  Ciey Date  the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use
(Fk) (FIk) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
b E052 Jinglin Jiuxu E Chongging 30/4/2022 51.00% 18,468 666,151 - RIC/O/CP
REFE Changtan Mansion EL Chongging 30/12/2026 51.00% 153,691 156,095 298,294 R/C/O/CP
WL Longfor Ideal City HE Chongging 1/3/2030 100.00% 203,696 260,787 443,138 R/C/CP
NEBEH  Xiaoyaowan Project K Dalian 31/10/2021 51.00% - 105,843 - R/C/CP
NEEWH Xiaoyaowan Plot K Dalian 20/11/2022 51.00% - - 75,568 RIC/CP
B 298 % No.2 Haiko Road Ploc K Dalian 30/11/2022 70.00% - = 125,330 RIC/CP/Others
4 Huayang Lake No.l J & Dongguan 317112021 25.10% - 123,381 - R
F2TODHIH  Dongguan TOD Plot Phase I 2 Dongguan 311512024 51.00% = 193,358 139,970 RIC/CP
—H
FEETODHM  Dongguan TOD Plot Phase 1T #5% Dongguan 31/12/2023 100.00% - - 98,469 ClOoICP
i
TTHEE  River City il Foshan 301512025 80.00% = 307,100 = R/C/CP
BILKE Chunjiang Mansion BN Fuzhou 30/12/2021 37.00% 36,317 99,835 - R/C/CP
B Chianti County M Fuzhou 30/6/2021 65.00% 44,628 113,824 = R/C/CP
BEREHIE  Ferris Wheel Plot M Fuzhou 31/12/2021 100.00% - 112,593 - cicp
FILRR Chunjiang Central M Fuzhou 31/12/2021 65.00% = 179,747 = R/CICP
SEEE  ZiChen Garden M Fuzhou 3111012021 51.00% - 63,993 - RIC/CP
FISZIERE  Chunjiang City el Fuzhou 31/12/2021 70.00% S 128,716 = R/CICP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

FRFBYE ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
A5 Sy AN
UL REEH i Hfgrh it
G anil] i REmH REmH REmH i}
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH 2 Project Name Pl Cicy Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BN Jiuxu Mansion M Fuzhou 30/11/2021 70.00% - 179,243 - R/CICP
AL City Garden M Fuzhou 30/11/2022 70.00% - 185,709 53,797 R/CICP
ERER Emerald Cloud Mansion | Fuzhou 31/12/2021 30.00% - 159,087 2,787 R/CICP
LRI Longfor Mansion M Fuzhou 30/11/2022 60.00% - - 152,012 R/C/CP
FiNE Chun Jiang Central T Fuzhou 31/12/2022 60.00% - - 142,118 R/CICP
ALY Cangshan Shang DuPlor &M Fuzhou 30/11/2022 70.00% - - 70,714 R/CP/Others
EEac Mountain Top Garden gl Ganzhou 26/11/2021 36.00% 19,603 118,610 - R/CICP
EUEFE Yun Feng Longfor Mansion [ Guangzhou 30/4/2021 50.00% 43970 153,949 - R/C/CP
KH Glory Villa &M Guangzhou 28212022 67.00% 39,36 70,986 - R/CICP
b} Splendor Garden JEM Guangzhou 30/8/2022 80.00% 245 151,403 = R/C/IO/CP
K Longfor Mansion &M Guangzhou 30/12/2021 49.90% - 56,853 - RICP
ERIEH Yunlai Garden &M Guangzhou 31/12/2022 51.00% - 200,790 - RICP
% B KB Panyu Coach Terminal Plot M Guangzhou 30/1012025 100.00% - - 245,375 R/C/CP
RERE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion £ Guiyang 30/3/2025 51.00% 7515 614,286 1,148,729 R/C/O/CP
HEb Yanghui Plot H Guiyang 30/6/2022 100.00% - 73,950 - R/CICP
KiE Star Glamor - Guiyang 30/6/2024 90.00% - 141,171 418,635 R/CICP

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 ~ 9
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FEYERE SRR

Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE L
VIER S JREH iy ik B ik
FrA T i A b RR AR &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name Frisii - City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIik) (FIk) (FIik)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
s Pobopogang Plot 0 Haikou 15/1112024 100.00% - 204,800 272,270 CIO/CP/Others
iy Zhong Guo Fu il Hangzhou 30/3/2021 30.00% - 102,538 - R/C/CP
FRRE Jing Lin Longfor Mansion /M| Hangzhou 3011112021 66.00% - 121,527 - RIC/CP
il Royalty M Hangzhou 31/12/2021 16.00% = 114,908 = R/CP
@lALFI Xiaoshan Beigan Mountain — HLM Hangzhou 30/11/2021 51.00% - 93,058 - R/O/CP
i Plot
HH Dong Chao Garden B Hangzhou 30/12/2021 34.00% = 133,400 = R/O/CP
B4 Yubo Mansion ULl Hangzhou 1/3/2022 51.00% - 154,187 - R/CP
KIS Longfor Origin M Hangzhou 31/3/2024 100.00% - 245972 122,434 R/C/O/CP
b Chunyu Lanting M Hangzhou 300612022 22.00% - 144,959 - RIOICP
LE Zi Yun Fu & Hefei 17/1/2021 35.00% 31,059 96,982 = R/C/CP
b iE0a2 Jinglin Jiuxu AiE Hefei 31/12/2021 100.00% 785 97,085 - R/C/O/CP
RIIERE Chunjiang Center A Hefei 31/1/2021 100.00% = 177,653 = R/CICP
Ko Heavenly Garden &l Hefei 30/6/2021 100.00% 4992 78,747 - RIC/CP
FiRRE Xichen Longfor Mansion A&t Hefei 30/6/2021 70.00% - 123456 - R/CICP
RREAE Glorious Mansion & Hefei 30/6/2022 70.00% - - 92,804 RIC/CP
K Emerald Legend Al Hefei 31/12/2022 70.00% = 100,412 - R/C/O/CP/Others

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

FHEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEH EEL
T8 TR H k& Bt Al
G an:E:| g A AT AT AT g
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under GFA Under
HHAR Project Name i@ City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FFKk) (FFKk) (FFKk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FRIBR Chunjiang Tian Yue Al Hefei 31/8/2022 70.00% - - 174,537 R/CICP
SR The Light Year &1 Hefei 31/12/2025 100.00% = = 618,146 RICIO/CP/Others
TR Prestige Town #le Hefei 30/4/2022 100.00% 803 271,342 - R/C/O/CP
HILLRE Chunjiang Center M Huizhou 15/9/2021 35.00% - 264,362 = R
e Changle Mansion 91| Huizhou 15/512021 51.00% - 95,468 - R
FILKE Chunjiang Heaven LYl Huizhou 31/10/2022 95.00% - 24,575 89,554 R/C/CP
YR Jiutang Mansion W Jinan 31/5/2021 20.00% 28,298 67,664 - RIC/CP
CBDIE  CBDIPlot bizez) Jinan 1/12/2022 10.00% = 173,888 = C
e Ru Yuan i Jinan 30/5/2021 34.00% - 131,733 - R/CP
ES /N Yun Lu Mansion i) Jinan 31/1/2021 34.00% = 129916 = R/CP
UNEET Patk Xuefu i) Jinan 31/1/2021 25.00% - 134,185 - R/CICP
iR Finer Garden Wl Jinan 30/9/2021 25.00% - 106,426 - RIC/CP
BRI Hanyu Plot II il Jinan 300612023 35.00% - 161,955 - R/C/CP
KR Star Glamor it Jinan 31/12/2023 100.00% = 263,667 116,000 R/C/O/CP
KFREMIE  Dazhong News Plot i) Jinan 31/12/2023 95.00% - - 251,023 RIC/O/CP/Others
SRR Jasper Sky ited Jinan 30/4/2023 100.00% - 328,497 - R/C/CP

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 11
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Schedule of Principal Properties

TRk ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
s [S5AN
UL REH ik B ikl
i anil] it i HEmE HEmE R il
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name Fi@sT  City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(Fik) (FHK) (FHK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
SRR Jing Lin Longfor Mansion ¥ Jinan 30/6/2024 100.00% - 175,460 484,031 R/C/CP
TR Gangyi Road Plot H Jinan 15/11/2022 100.00% = 222,826 231,044 R/CP
iib]E Lang Run Garden =4 Jiaxing 1/5/2022 50.00% - 103,244 - R/CP
B Chuanjiang Huating F Jiaxing 16/11/2021 50.00% - 87,549 = R/CP
FRAR Weilan Xiangti FH Jiaxing 31/1202021 50.00% - 134,862 - R/CP
BHRRE Shuanglong Mansion 1L Jiangmen 1/11/2022 50.00% - 144,181 146,195 R/CICP
K Heavenly Garden & Jinzhong 25/10/2022 100.00% - 102,838 82,937 R
S Fairy Castle BH Kunming 30/11/2030 99.93% = 222430 165,169 R/C/O/CP
KR Jing Lin Tian Xu B Kunming 31/5/2024 55.00% - 118,982 296,161 R/C/CP
FbishE He Yue Ming Zhu EW Kunming 4122021 26.50% 38,100 60,407 = R/C/CP
FHXH Treasure Garden EX Kunming 30/11/2030 34.00% - 618313 369,166 R/C/CP
YRIEA  Pengjiaping Project M Lanzhou 31/12/2023 70.00% - - 187,377 R/CICP
BIKE Glorious Mansion %4 Maoming 30/9/2021 100.00% - 98,053 - R/C/CP
BINY Chun Jiang Central BA Nanchang 26/5/2021 51.00% - 102,715 = R/C/CP
FILES Chunjiang Central [ Nanchang 121512022 100.00% - 139,594 - R/IC/OICP
HILKSE Chunjiang Heaven ) Nanchang 31/10/2022 80.00% - - 72,038 R/C/CP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

FRFBYE ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
KEM g%l
VL3 RER ik Bl it
AL i) £ REmH TR TR i}
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH 2 Project Name Pl Cicy Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIK) (FIK) (FIK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
RIERE Chunjiang Center B Nanjing 31/12/2025 100.00% 579 - 119,745 R/CIO/CP
WA L35 Times Central B Nanjing 30/12/2021 100.00% - 99,456 = clolce
BfLE  YiHeJuli M5 Nanjing 30062021 35.00% - 57,547 - RIC/CP
TLEYEITHSE  Jiangning Binjiang Plot B Nanjing 31/10/2022 70.00% = 350,557 - RIC/CP/Others
BB Qiaolin Street Plot RS Nanjing 31/1012022 70.00% - - 53,253 R
EIMPE M Yuanlin West Road Plot B Nanjing 30/11/2022 70.00% - - 83,131 R/CP
A San Qian Yue [ Nanning 20/6/2021 34.00% - 88,700 - RIC/CP
BRERE Longfor Mansion [ Nanning 15/5/2021 60.00% - 58,403 - RIC
ESI N Chunjiang Tian Yue T Nanning 30/11/2022 60.00% - 219378 73,319 R/CICP
T B Bamboo Grove [ Nanning 17/11/2022 49.00% = 228,406 = cloicp
FHAMH  High-speed Rail il Nantong 30/5/2023 70.00% - - 122,992 R
N Star Glamor B Ningbo 31/12/2022 90.00% - 216,959 - R/C/CP
KHNF Longfor Paradise B Ningbo 301212022 100.00% - 215,150 - RIC/CP
AR A Chianti E4 Ningbo 300612022 100.00% = 106,815 6,970 R/C/CP

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 13



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE By
UL JREH i il it
Rtk LAY ity 2 R R R JHig
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name Frisii - City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
e Jiuxu Mansion i Putian 311712022 60.00% - 186,735 - R/C/ICP
picaatl The Light Year Phase I HE Qingdao 31/12/2021 75.00% 6,974 120,031 - R/CP
Biait The Light Year Phase I1 HE Qingdao 31/1202021 75.00% - 21,880 78,649 R/C/CP
biea The Light Year 55 Qingdao 31/12/2022 75.00% = 76,065 74,837 R/C/CP
WL Xiangjiang Road Project 6 Qingdao 15/11/2022 100.00% - 145,815 192,888 RIC
Ei Fairy Castle 5B Qingdao 30/412024 70.00% = 151,496 251,530 R/C/CP
B30 Legend of City HBE Qingdao 15/11/2022 70.00% 49,777 96,333 349,919 R/C/CP
FififEE  XiFuLongfor Mansion Hh Qingdao 30/12/2021 51.00% 13,948 189,312 - RIC/CP
MK un Jiang Centra H ingdao 3111012022 0.00% - 57,239 -
SN P Chun Jiang Central HE Qingd 110/ 40.00% RIC/CP
B Prestige Town 55 ingdao 31/5/2022 70.00% S 148,143 = R/C/CP
g Qing !
BB M) Prestige Town Phase IT HE Qingdao 30/11/2023 70.00% - 67,492 175,569 R/C/CP
ERE Lan'an Central B Qingdao 30/11/2023 51.00% - 153,014 175,971 R/C/CP
B Xue Tang Mansion 55 Qingdao 1/11/2023 35.00% - 111,470 174,552 R/C/CP
K3 unjiang Lan ] ingdao 30/11/20 70.00% - 9,45 -
B Chunjiang Land 55 Qingd 0/11/2022 0.00% 269,459 RIC/CP

R: fFE | Residential C HE | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: f{&H; | Car Park Others:  HAth | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FERBEWZE ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
vl [EFAR
T F A L gk Bt it
G aN:E ] i 2 RS RS e ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HH & Project Name filsi  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BRI Chunjiang Heaven 55 Qingdao 30/12/2023 51.00% - 166,423 - R/C/O/CP
e Xin Yi Central Hh Qingdao 30/12/2021 51.00% = 61,826 = Clo/cp
Al Shunshan Fu HE Qingdao 31/12/2021 80.00% 3,951 214,060 - R/C/CP
HILKE Glorious Mansion 55 Qingdao 30/10/2024 35.00% - 149,582 —  RIC/CP/Others
BE Yinzhan Plot g Qingyuan 30/12/2022 50.10% - 115,666 - R/C/CP
BN Chun Jiang Central M Quanzhou 31/10/2021 100.00% = 106,456 = R/C/CP
RN Sapphire Time = Sanya 15/11/2022 100.00% - - 103,164 C/O/CP/Others
ERIFR Glorious Mansion & Xiamen 31/12/2021 100.00% = 142,117 = R/CP
BEfCESE  Times Central & Xiamen 301412025 40.00% 80,846 - 292,399 Clo/cp
eHE Yun Feng Longfor Mansion ~ [E["] Xiamen 31/1/2021 49.00% - 233,978 - R/C/CP
FETODHML  Fengxian TOD Plot IR Shanghai 30/6/2022 51.00% - 135,402 - R/C/O/CP
FILKE Glorious Mansion i Shanghai 30/9/2021 30.00% 22,920 138,043 = R/CP
ESIPN Chunjiang Tian Yue i Shanghai 30/4/2021 30.00% - 141479 - RICP
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

4 % Annual Report ||||| 2020 15



Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
vl BT
TR e L gk gt it
AT HM ity 25 faiE AT R R ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under GFA Under
HH & Project Name fis  Cicy Date the Projects Unsold ~ Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BILKE Chunjiang Heaven s Shaoxing 30/10/2021 60.00% - 236,089 - R/CP
KER Longfor Fusion R Shaoxing 30/11/2022 50.00% - - 332,605 R/CP
RILKE Glorious Mansion 3| Shenzhen 3111012021 100.00% 12379 63,372 = RICIO
FWHEREH  Wonderland Project Y Shenyang 30/12/2021 65.00% - 92,486 - R/C/CP
JUREA JiuLiYiHe id Shenyang 11212021 100.00% 1,841 88,187 - RIC/CP
B Roseand Ginkgo Villa I %P Shenyang 31/12/2025 100.00% = 17,569 136,062 R/C/CP
HES Chianti b Shenyang 1/12/2022 100.00% - 142,571 - R/CICP
BREHE Longfor Mansion i Shenyang 31/12/2022 100.00% 1,599 135,114 182,953 R/C/CP
FIEFE Yun Feng Longfor Mansion {5 Shenyang 30/6/2022 70.00% - 204,700 - R/CICP
% Tian Yi i1 Shenyang 11212022 100.00% 1371 77,429 = R/C/CP
£ Yun Jing b Shenyang 31/5/2023 70.00% - 173,627 152,065 R/C/CP
il Chun Shan i Shenyang 271212022 100.00% - 82,126 = R/C/CP
EE Glorious Palace i Shenyang 3111212022 51.00% - 165,196 - RIC/CP
R: fFE | Residential C HE | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: f{&H; | Car Park Others:  HAth | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE BxEL
T 8 TREH liF itk Bt HE
R LAY ity 5 e R SR &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH 2 Project Name Pl Cicy Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIk) (FIik) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
£ Cloud Valley b Shenyang 15/11/2023 70.00% - 145,600 238339 R/C/CP
EXBAEH  Putian Reli Project i) Shenyang 31/12/2022 50.00% = 158,906 = R/CICP
WHHIR M Yuhong New City Plot i) Shenyang 30/11/2023 70.00% - - 168,759 R/CICP
Hi502HH  Zhongfa No. 2 Project i Shenyang 31/8/2023 35.00% - - 143,791 R/CICP
TR Shangyuan Road Plot bt Shenyang 3111212023 70.00% - - 60,676 R/C/CP
fSk#EEIEH  Yuhong Huayi Project 1 Shenyang 30/12/2024 35.00% S S 332,189 R/C/CP
gl Shunshan Fu i Shenyang 30/11/2021 100.00% 9,864 56,848 - R/C/CP
e Longfor Hometown & Shenyang 31/12/2024 100.00% - 300,341 - R/C/CP
JUEBEN Jasper Sky AZHE Shijfiszhuang  30/12/2021 51.00% - 215,852 - R
K Emerald Legend FZHE Shijiazhuang 5/11/2023 70.00% = 256915 210,201 R
KM Chang'an Districe Plot AFHE Shijiazhuang  30/12/2022 100.00% - - 126,574 R
WF AR Huxi Xing Chen HEM Suzhou 30/11/2021 51.00% - 285,551 - R/CP
FWFHS  Xiangshan Road Plot B Suzhou 15/11/2022 100.00% - - 172,852 R
KER Nature Housing B Suzhou 30/11/2022 100.00% 18,726 239,320 = R/CP

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others

£ % Annual Report ||| 2020 17
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
REM %L
UL JREH i il it
Rtk LAY ity 2 R R R JHig
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JEH 21 Project Name Fisi  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
il Lake City Mansion aM Taizhou 31/12/2022 70.00% - 266,052 - R/CP
Kk Longfor Mansion KB Taiyuan 30/6/2023 100.00% = 233,984 298,021 R/C/CP
K5E%HE  Longfor Mansion Ell Tangshan 15/11/2023 85.00% - 161,287 - R
KM Longfor Mansion Phase 1T~ fEl| Tangshan 15/11/2022 50.00% - 17,874 208,388 R
BAER  Sheng Shi Hua Fu K Tianjin 30/11/2023 90.00% 28,001 158,245 117,847 RICIO/CP
HILNE Chun Jiang Central Kt Tianjin 30/11/2021 100.00% - 65,132 = R/C/CP
KH Emerald Legend N Tianjin 30/11/2022 100.00% - 154,986 96,765 R/C/ICP
JLEREN Jasper Sky PN Tianjin 30/12/2021 12.50% 23,625 138,688 - R/C/CP
KA Longshui Garden Kt Tianjin 31/8/2022 51.00% - 21912 38,236 RIC/CP
LHFH Jizhuangzi Plot K Tianjin 30/12/2022 100.00% - = 113,008 R/C/CP/Others
K Emerald Legend J Weihai 30/4/2021 60.00% - 94,947 - R/CP
FILR Chunjiang Land Jikics Weihai 31/5/2021 51.00% 12,808 78,457 - R/CP
SHREMS  Jinhou Plant Plot it Weihai 30/11/2022 70.00% - 257,295 - R/C/CP
Kk Longfor Mansion B Wenzhou 251212021 100.00% = 63,856 = R/C/CP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FHEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Concinued)
KM RYAN
T8 TR H k& Bt Al
G an:E:| g A AT AT AT g
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name i@ City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FFKk) (FFKk) (FFKk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
P Zhongyangtu Plot 1M Wenzhou 25/12/2021 50.00% - 181,238 - R/CP
TR Prestige Town iR Wenzhou 15/11/2021 100.00% - 200,090 - R/C/CP
KEER Star Glamor Chen Yuan M Wenzhou 15/11/2021 100.00% - 210,273 117,416 R/CIO/CP
g JiuShu i Wuxi 31/12/2023 100.00% 3,187 37,789 38,663 R/C/CP
K Longfor Mansion ) Wuxi 30/4/2021 100.00% - 120,746 - R/ICP
B S Glorious Mansion 8 Wuxi 30/12/2022 60.00% - - 119,635 R/CIO/CP
1l G Shuofang Middle School Fast 4 Waxi 31/10/2022 40.00% - - 187472 R/CICP
HOEA Project
B Guanggu City RE Wuhan 1/512023 52,00% 30,060 80,530 254,028 R/CIO/CP
HA% . EHE  Guanggu City o Chanson i Wuhan 30/8/2021 60.00% 2,704 121,239 - R/C/O/CP
TR Yun Feng Longfor Mansion i Wuhan 30/8/2021 51.00% = 265,162 = R/C/CP
i Fairy Castle i Wuhan 30/8/2021 40.00% - 128331 - Cl/o/CP
KE Mansion R Wuhan 30/11/2022 40.00% = 269,262 = R/O/CP
H ¥ HTODHEY Baishazhou TOD Plot Fiv:3 Wuhan 15/8/2022 100.00% - 206,290 - RIC/CP
WEILMHE  Binjiang Business Districc i Wuhan 30/10/2022 50.00% = 49,255 354,274 R/O/CICP

TOD# TOD Plot

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEHBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEHE (5N
ViER S REH liEeEs Bt Al
G an:h:| i A RSB RSB RSB g
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name Fi@sT  City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FFKk) (FFKk) (FIKk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
HILER Chunjiang Central R Wuhan 31/12/2024 60.00% 94,608 171,773 365,356 RIC/O/CP
ISR Emperial Paradise Walk R Wuhan 16/5/2021 50.00% = 138,544 = clolce
Z Tt Longfor Central fiwed Wuhan 15/8/2022 100.00% - 118,568 - ClO/CP
FiLf Chunjiang Land fiw:d Wuhan 31/5/2024 10.00% = 779,149 113,768 R/C/O/CP
SRR Jing Lin Tian Xu W% Xi'an 30/6/2022 59.61% - 359,009 - R/C/CP
BIRF Chun Jiang Tian Xu % Xi'an 30/6/2022 55.00% - 99,076 = R/CICP
N Star Glamor fi% Xi'an 301112023 49.00% - 194,205 122,914 R/C/O/CP
B Longfor Mansion fi% Xi'an 31/5/2021 60.00% 2819 98,432 = R/C/CP
RIS Chunjiang Heaven 1% Xi'an 30/10/2022 45.00% - 91,243 59,275 R/C/CP
R Starry Mansion % Xi'an 31/10/2022 100.00% - 37,348 52,683 ClO/CP
HEht Xin Yi Central fi% Xi'an 30/11/2022 100.00% - 99,442 - ClO/CP
FALRRR Rainbow Central E1 Xianyang 1/11/2023 75.20% 23,844 307,026 73,075 R/C/CP
T3 Longfor Central 51 Xianyang 2511212026 55.00% - 136,897 1,196,101 R/C/CP
B KA Caotang Main Streec Plor i Kianyang 1/11/2023 51.00% - 150,070 R/C/CP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

FHEMBEWE @) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE L
UL RIEH ik i it
G aN:E ] ity 2 R R e ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name i City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
o B Upper River Bank il Hong Kong 30/9/2021 50.00% - 54,459 - R/C/CP
Ik Peace Hill County A Yantai 2511212021 100.00% = 145,236 = R/CP
Bt Chun Jiang Central A Yantai 30/11/2021 60.00% - 169,788 - R/CP
B Yan Lan Hai An A Yantai 30/6/2022 100.00% = 164,912 = R/C/CP
FILKE Glorious Mansion e Yantai 15/11/2022 100.00% - - 199,268 R/C/CP
R Longfor Mansion e Yantai 30/11/2023 100.00% - - 171,587 R/C/CP
WEUGHEAIC  Banyan Bay AIC ke Yantai g 100.00% 104,420 119,605 3,542,265 R/CICP
to be developed
WEGGER  Banyan Bay B i Yantai ik 100.00% = = 696,147 R/C/CP
to be developed
ERIPN Glorious Mansion Bl Yangzhou 30/11/2021 100.00% - 132,602 - R/C/CP
FEFAE B AU Jiajia Garden Bast Plot M Yangzhou 31/12/2022 100.00% = = 81,604 R/C/CP
Nlisss Paradise Seasons FiE Yuxi 30112/2025 100.00% - 210,969 512,232 RIC/CP
MBIEMH  Nanguan Districe Plot £% Changchun 30/7/2022 100.00% = 135,934 = R/C/CP
ZHEH Glorious City II % Changchun 3011112022 49.00% - 114,448 - RIC/CP
eI Shunshan Fu k% Changchun 30/12/2022 100.00% - 156,715 132,240 R/CICP

R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

HEREBEWE ) PRINCIPAL DEVELOPMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
A S5 AN
VL REFH i Bl it
i anil] il &) e i e il e il iif:
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name il City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIxK) (FIK) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
BB Weishan Road Norch Plot B Changchun 30/11/2022 100.00% - - 271,261 R/C/CP/O/Others
FUIEAEHI  Kai Xuan Mansion Plot RE Changchun 30/11/2023 100.00% = = 162,907 R/C/CP
AR Jingyue Hefu Ploc RE Changchun 30/11/2023 100.00% - - 222,286 R/CICP
R Glorious City k& Changchun 30/11/2022 51.00% - 114,187 - R/CICP
=g T Emerald Central =20 Changsha 15/6/2021 49.00% 16,886 67,266 - R/C/O/CP
Hai Xin Yi Central =20 Changsha 30/12/2022 34.00% 81,961 152,890 = R/C/O/CP
HILBS Chunjiang Central =203 Changsha 1/11/2023 51.00% - 422383 121,653 R/C/CP
7 Grand Mansion B Changsha 15/11/2021 51.00% - 115,413 - R
HILKE Glorious Mansion kY Changsha 28/212023 100.00% - 350,000 167,000 RIC
IR Chunjiang Central kU Changsha 31/8/2023 100.00% = 111,624 6,631 RIC
FIEARE  Chunjiang Central Ep Zhaoging 31/512023 70.00% - 235,482 - R
boy 845 Jinglin Jiuxu E Zhengzhou 31/12/2021 100.00% = 200,027 = R/CICP
e 1l Longfor Mansion Ll Zhengzhou 31/8/2023 51.00% - 149,673 68,368 R/C/CP
K%t Longfor Mansion BN Zhengzhou 31/12/2022 40.80% = 158,253 = R/C/CP
] Hu Cheng Da Jing i Zhuhai 6/3/2022 50.00% 87,310 106,623 - R/C/O/CP
Kb The Skyline i Zhuhai 15/11/2021 50.00% - 60,585 - R/CP

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7

CP: {FHLY} | Car Park

Others:  HAth | Others



Schedule of Principal Properties

TEB YR PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
KEME BYAN
UilEL S REH ikt & Bl it
i anik] il 503 RS et Jifi et Jifi ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HH & Project Name FiBs  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIx) (FIx) (FIx)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
Bl Summer Palace Starry Streec  JLT Beijing ELBH3E Open 100% 6,320 - - C
EYE
LrEMAE  Changying Paradise Walk bt Beijing B Open 100% 300,192 - - C
JLEKHEKS  Beijing Da Xing I Beijing EF% Open 100% 203,134 - - C
Paradise Walk
IHEFEIKE  Beijing Fangshan Paradise U3 Beijing BB Open 100% 119,964 - - C
Walk
LR ELKRE  Beijing Chang'an Paradise L3¢ Beijing BB Open 17% 69,199 - - C
Walk
BNHEW KA Longcheng Paradise Walk %M Changzhou BB Open 100% 155,862 - - C
=T Three thousand Paradise i Chengdu L3 Open 100% 38,043 - - C
K Walk
FRAESLHAS  North Paradise Walk W#  Chengdu €% Open 100% 215,536 = = C
WA K Time Paradise Walk s Chengdu L Open 100% 61,989 - - C
1 Phase I
b2 AE  Jinnan Paradise Walk gl Chengdu CFZE Open 100% 91,638 - - C
BAbTR K Chengdu Xi Chen D Chengdu EFI% Open 49% 189,860 - - C
Paradise Walk
Wb LKA Chengdu Shangcheng D Chengdu BB Open 80% 129,964 = = C
Paradise Walk
WAREIL R Chengdu Binjiang Jii Chengdu EFI% Open 51% 171,500 - - C
Paradise Walk
AR B Chengdu Wuhou Starry i Chengdu BB Open 100% 31,168 = = C
s Street
EEAHKS  North Paradise Walk il Chongging ELF% Open 100% 146,262 - - C
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FREBEWE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
A BxL
UL REFH ikt & B it
G aN:E ] il 20 RS R R ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HH & Project Name fiBs  Ciey Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIx) (FIx) (FIK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
EFLE TFairy Castle il Chongging T Open 100% 29413 - - C
EEREME  Crystal Castle HE Chonggqing BB Open 100% 33,600 - - C
HEPRAS  West Paradise Walk il Chongging EL % Open 51% 111,654 - - C
FEMOCO  MOCO il Chongging B Open 100% 29,104 = = C
Pl
TERRKE  Time Paradise Walk Phase | T Chongging L% Open 100% 218,569 - - C
1
BERKT  Time Paradise Walk Phase IT - # Chongging ELFH3E Open 100% 257,113 = = C
I Mark I
FERRKE  Time Paradise Walk Phase IIT # Chonggqing L Open 100% 122,758 - - C
it
ERURKAE U City Phase BE  Chongging M Open 100% 31,071 - - ©
1
ERURKAI U City Phase I BE  Chongging ¥ Open 100% 164,609 - - C
0
BERER Chunsen Starry Street E Chongging T FZE Open 100% 54,618 = = C
EfiE
FEWEKE  Hometown Paradise Walk — HE Chonggqing LB Open 100% 174,817 - - C
EFEEXY  Chongging Lijia TE Chongging BB Open 100% 88,693 - - C
Paradise Walk
EFMERE  Chongging Liji BB Chongging  EM%Open 100% 70,441 - - R/C/O/CP
-8 Paradise Walk Phase IT

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEBHYIE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
A Sy AN
VilEL REEH ikt & Bl it
i anil] ity 23 R REAATHRS R ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
T H &1 Project Name BilE%  City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIx) (FIx) (FIx)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
M EW XS Jinsha Paradise Walk Phase I HUM Hangzhou B % Open 100% 180,645 - - C
14
TMIBT XML Binjiang Paradise oM Hangzhou BB Open 100% 158,067 = = C
# Walk Phase I
MPHEKT  Hangzhou Xixi M Hangzhou CH¥ Open 100% 148,222 - - clo
Paradise Walk
MMEHAT KT Hangzhou Bauhinia Paradise  HUM Hangzhou BB Open 100% 83,000 = = C
Walk
MBI XS  Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise  HUM Hangzhou EL % Open 100% 22,627 - - C
11 Walk Phase IT
AIEMBRE  Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk A1 Hefei £ 1% Open 100% 123,695 = = C
TR A KE  Ji'nan Olympic Sports R Ji'nan L3 Open 45% 96,782 - - C
Paradise Walk
BRILILKE  Nanjing Jiangbei Paradise R & Nanjing L3 Open 100% 199,552 - - C
Walk
BR/AA K Nanjing Liuhe Paradise Walk 50 Nanjing 2% Open 100% 136,361 - - C
LIRS  Honggiao Paradise Wk Liff Shanghai CFZE Open 100% 253,293 - - C
FEEILKE  Baoshan Paradise Walk L Shanghai EL#% Open 100% 179,206 - - C
BT Shanghai Minhang i Shanghai E B Open 50% 45,698 = = C

B Starry Street

R: fEE | Residential

C WX | Commercial

O: JFAE | Office

CP: {581} | Car Park

Others:  JEAth | Ochers
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FREBEWE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
A S5 AN
UL L i B it
G aN:L ] ity &5 e e e ik
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAH Project Name i City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
TSRS Shanghai Huajing Paradise  iff Shanghai EFI% Open 51% 66,007 - - C
Walk
LiBIfT RS Shanghai Minhang Li Shanghai BB Open 51% 196,534 = = Clo
Paradise Walk
BB KD Suzhou Shishan BN Suzhou EFI% Open 51% 197,466 - - C
Paradise Walk
BRMEMIRA  Suzhou Star Lake Paradise M Suzhou B % Open 100% 149,198 - - @
Walk
iEIN Xi'an Daxing Starry Street  J§% Xi'an ELF% Open 100% 53,266 - - C
EfiE
g3 N Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street  P§% Xi'an BB Open 100% 78,499 - - C
EfiE
Pi%ERKAS  Xi'an Chianti Paradise Walk  7§% Xi'an 2% Open 100% 109,860 - - C
JEMEEKE  Xiamen Jimei Paradise Walk &1 Xiamen — ERfF Completed 49% 97311 - - Clo
ARREERE  Beijing Lize Paradise Walk U3 Beijing 31/1/2021 51% - 118,614 - C
BN KA Suzhou Shishan Paradise HEM Suzhou 51212021 51% = 100,503 = C/O/Others
1 Walk Phase IT
REILEAHE  Wuhan Emperial Paradise i Wuhan 16/5/2021 50% - 200,290 - C
Walk
BAbRRE A  Chengdu Jinchen Paradise Chengdu 31/5/2021 100% = 83,069 = C
Walk
RUHWAY  Changsha Yanghu Paradise 21 Changsha 30/6/2021 34% - 158,120 - C

Walk

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FHEEEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KA T
UAER RIER ik Bt it
AT HY R fai& AT fai& AT fai& ATE i3
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name s City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(k) (k) (k)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
FELDEE  Chongging Jinsha Paradise B Chongging 30/6/2021 100% 204,113 - - C
Walk
WMYIH KA Hangzhou Jiangdong B Hangzhou 16/7/2021 50% = 162,002 = C
Paradise Walk
TEABEEE  Yancai Banyan Bay A Yantai 31/8/2021 100% - - 70,062 C
K Paradise Walk
HUMTHER%  Hangzhou Dinggiao M Hangzhou 1/10/2021 100% - 200,004 - €
Paradise Walk
JEBEIRIR  Beijing Haidian b3 Beijing 30/11/2021 100% - 50,175 - 0
FHEE Environmental
Protection Science Park
BIEPAA  Nanjing Hexi Paradise Walk  Fi%E Nanjing 30/12/2021 100% = 152,370 = C
BRMH KM Suzhou Dongwu BN Suzhou 15212022 49% - 205,658 - C/Others
Paradise Walk
BEFIW  Nanchang Qingshan Lake 8 Nanchang 12/5/2022 100% = 123,542 = C
K Paradise Walk
TE&EXY  Shanghai Jinhui i Shanghai 30/5/2022 100% - 105,719 - C
Paradise Walk
kPR K Shenyang Hunnan i Shenyang 30/5/2022 100% = 122,623 = C
Paradise Walk
JRURHERT  Beijing Vizhuang Ix Beijing 21612022 100% - 155,063 - C
Paradise Walk
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FEEEWE @) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
KEE L
UL L i gt it
FAATHY ity a2 a8 AT R R i3
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
HHAR Project Name il City Date  the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIrk) (FIrk) (FIrk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
TR R Shanghai Fengxian L Shanghai 30/6/2022 51% - 150,095 - C
Paradise Walk
BEMA%ZRYE  Xiamen Xiang'an &P Xiamen 1/7/2022 40% - _ 117,979 C
Paradise Walk
REAWW  Wuhan Baishazhou TOD R Wuhan 15/8/2022 100% - 54,395 - C
TOD
RGNS Wuhan FengshengRoad i Wuhan 15/8/2022 100% = 131,393 = olcice
EH Project
REEILTOD  Wuhan Binjiang TOD fiwed Wuhan 30/10/2022 50% - - 206,902 R/O/CICP
HEBMAE  Qingdwo Jiaozhou Paradise  H & Qingdao 15/11/2022 70% = 117,599 411 C
Walk
FAMBHTOD  Chengdu Pidu TOD i Chengdu 16/11/2022 100% - 164,466 - C
MEEALE  Nanning Qingxiu Paradise % Nanning 16/11/2022 49% = 121311 - C
Walk
BRARKE  Chongging Park EF Chongging 16112022 51% - 197,591 - C
Paradise Walk
EEMHMI  Shaoxing Fenglin Plot e Shaoxing 30/11/2022 50% - 178,041 = R/C/CP
B XA Beijing Xiyue Paradise Walk  JU5 Beijing 30/12/2022 50% - 119,964 - C
BH 48 Ningbo Qixiang Road Ploc i Ningbo 30/12/2022 100% = = 87,679 RIC/CP
it
KWAFEF  Tianjin Jizhuangzi Ploc Xt Tianjin 30/12/2022 100% - - 185,390 RI/CICP/Others
87
PRHEE AT Nanjing Longwan Paradise ~ FIAL Nanjing 31/12/2022 51% 175,292 = = C

Walk

R: fFE | Residential

C: ¥ | Commercial

0: JFAZE | Office
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Schedule of Principal Properties

ERBEWE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
A5 SR
UL REHH {74 B i
G anil] i i REmH R HEmE il
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JHH A Project Name FriEs  City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIK) (FIK) (FIK)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
SWHM KL Ningbo Yinzhou Paradise % Ningbo 31/12/2022 90% - 150,876 - C
Walk
BB Suzhou Xujiang BN Suzhou 31/12/2022 51% = 123,459 = C
Paradise Walk
TERCKAE  Time Paradise Walk Phase IV Chongging 31/12/2022 100% - 94,823 - C
g
RIPHAE Changsha Kaifu Fishery Road 1) Changsha 28/2/2023 100% - = 111,545 RIC
ek
RENAKE  Wuhan Guanggu Paradise i Wuhan 11512023 520 - - 171,182 C
Walk
FHiRA Shanghai Kunxiu Starry Street |- }ff Shanghai 30/6/2023 65% - - 37,875 C
EhE
BPHBkIE  Changshe Xinyao Road Plot i) Changsha 31/812023 100% - - 176,056 RIC
1
KRG KE  Tianjin Wuging Paradise Walk K Tianjin 30/11/2023 90% - - 118,006 C
Pi%EAMA  Xi'an XingPu Green Belt Ploc F§% Xi'an 30/11/2023 49% - - 109,798 R/CIO/CP
1
AR Time Paradise Walk Phase II J Chengdu 1/12/2023 100% 68,942 = = C
1
HMEU XA Changzhou Yuanshan #M Changzhou 31/12/2023 100% - - 91,194 C
Paradise Walk
FEETOD Dongguan TOD South Square 35 Dongguan 31/12/2023 100% - - 131,429 R/C/CPIO
MESER  Project
WFEHRSE  Jinan Bast Railway Scation 1§ Jinan 31/12/2023 100% - - 129,517 R/C/O/CP
TODEH TOD Project
R: fEE | Residential C: | Commercial 0: WAZE | Office CP: {FHIY | Car Park Others: At | Others
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Schedule of Principal Properties

FREBEWE ) PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
Ll
JHH R ik B ikl
i anil] HEmE HEmE HEmE &
Overall Project Completed
Expected Group's GFA
Completion Interest in Remaining ~ GFA Under ~ GFA Under
JEH A Project Name Frigiskii  City Date the Projects Unsold  Development Planning Use
(FIk) (FIk) (FIk)
(Sqm) (Sqm) (Sqm)
WH5EE  Wuxi EMare ) Wi 311122023 100% - - 54,061 C
TEHEHT  Chongging La Defense Project Chongging 31/12/2023 100% - - 168,962 C
YA
WMEREY  Hangzhou Binkang Road — HUM Hangzhou 31/3/2024 100% - - 126,810 R/C/O/CP
TOD TOD
BoXE Haikou Paradise Walk o] Haikou 15/11/2024 100% - 310,429 = C
EFWITLAY  Chongging Nanping Paradise EEEF Chonggqing 28/5/2025 100% - - 156,541 C/o/CP
Walk
M B Guangzhou Panyu Coach &/l Guangzhou 30/10/2025 100% - - 100,968 R/C/CP
KB Terminal Plot
AIECBDHSE  Hefei CBD Plot Al Hefei 3111212025 100% - - 121,020 R/C/O/CPlothers
it Nanjing Drum Tower BR Nanjing 3111212025 100% = = 40,972 C
(¥7%) (Zi Chen)
BEEMI  Chongging Longxing Phase I H Chongging 30112/2026 51% - 107,969 3,948 C
EEMILHE  Longfor Ideal City BE Chongqing 1312030 100% 89,157 3,711 143,627 Clo
BMBEMAE  Kunming Chuncheng Avenue [ Kunming 30/11/2030 100% - - 152,793 C
Kt Paradise Walk (Wujiaba)
(B5 )
R: fFE | Residential C HE | Commercial 0: WAE | Office CP: f{&H; | Car Park Others:  HAth | Others
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Chairman’s Statement

It is my pleasure to present to the shareholders the business review and outlook of
Longfor Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) for the year ended December 31, 2020.

When looking back on 2020, it has witnessed a dramatic change in the
business environment and development landscape due to the global outbreak of
COVID-19 pandemic, which has remained unabated. Thanks to the effective
epidemic prevention and control in China, national life and production
have rapidly recovered, and China was the world’s only major economy that
has registered positive economic growth in 2020. The real estate industry’s
contribution to overall economic growth remained steady, with resilient
investment and sales performance and an annual commodity housing sales
value exceeding RMB17 trillion'. Faced with a market full of challenges
and uncertainties, the Group was committed to and firmly implemented its
strategies, and steadily achieved total contracted sales of RMB270.6 billion in

2020, with a year-on-year increase of 11.6%.

A series of real estate administrative measures and policies for financial risk
control were introduced in 2020, which we believe are targeted, flexible and
effective, and represent comprehensive management under the overarching
theme of “houses are built to be inhabited, not for speculation”. While the
differentiation of industry participants is accelerating, we see a clearer path
towards a healthy and sustainable development of the real estate industry. With
a high degree of self-discipline and restraint, the average financing cost of the
Group was further reduced to 4.39% per annum, the net debt to equity ratio
remained at a low level of 46.5%, with the cash to short-term debt ratio stayed
at 4.24 times. The Group always regards safety and stability as the foundation
of development, with consecutive upgrades for its “full investment grade” credit

ratings, providing a strategic margin to the development of core businesses:

The Group rolled out its annual investment as planned in an orderly manner,
with a concentration in high-tier cities and appropriately entered city clusters
within metropolitan circles. In 2020, the Group has acquired 121 new projects
with total GFA of 25.67 million square meters, and ventured into 8 new cities.
The Group has pursued an in-depth and focused development in 63 cities with
the strongest economic vitality and demographic profile, strictly followed its
investment disciplines and return thresholds, laying the foundation for continued

sustainable profit growth.

! Data Source: National Bureau of Statistics of China
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Chairman’s Statement
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Thanks to its solid operation capabilities and swift responses to the challenges
brought by the pandemic, the commercial property division of the Group has
successfully opened 10 new shopping malls in Nanjing, Chengdu, Suzhou,
Xi'an, Jinan, and Chongqing on schedule in 2020. The division rode on the
trend of offline consumption recovery, leveraged innovative models, broke the
space boundary, and worked closely with tenants to create diversified scenes for
differentiated experiences, which led to the rapid recovery of foot fall traffic and
sales value. The occupancy rate reached 97% at the end of the year, and the rental
income increased by 23% to RMB5S.8 billion. After 20 years of development
and improvement, the Group can now enjoy this steady income stream despite
cyclical industry fluctuations, which is exactly what the commercial property

business has been striving for since its establishment.

Goyoo, the brand of our rental housing, provides a place for the new generation
of young people to live and pursue their dreams in the city with its ingenious
quality and warm-hearted service. In recent years, with steady development in
scale and improvement in operation, the brand influence of Goyoo ranks among
the top 3 in the industry, and its annual rental income reached RMB1.8 billion in

2020, which has become a stable contribution to the Group’s operating income.

Over the years, Longfor Smart Service has been committed to providing
customers with “Satisfaction + Surprise”. Together with other core businesses,
the Smart Service business impresses home owners with its refined and intelligent
management and provides them with “Longfor-style happiness”. Revenue from
Smart Service has reached RMBS.8 billion in 2020. The Smart Service is oriented
towards customer needs. At the same time of expanding its business scale
with quality, it has extended its service boundary from communities to urban
operations, such as commercial and offices, schools, transportation hubs, etc. Our

traditional property management is now releasing more energy and imagination.

The brand-new life service brand “Gannet”, which represents housing agency
service and housing decoration, has been upgraded to core businesses of the
Group, as additional demands deriving from basic living needs create new growth
opportunities. The Group not only respects the commercial model and operation,
of each core business but also focuses on the synergies brought by full cohesion

and coordination of all our core businesses.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |l &2t &% M iz i% & R 2 7
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Chairman’s Statement

The Group deeply understands that continuous practice of environmental,
social, and governance (ESG) is an eternal theme for enterprise sustainable
development. In 2020, the ESG Committee and the working group, composed
of members from various departments, actively promoted the solid fulfillment of
our commitment to the society and the environment. For instance, in November
2020, Longfor Foundation was officially registered and established. In December
2020, the Group’s Green Finance Framework was established. For the year of
2020, Longfor Group will publish its first independent ESG report in order to
continuously improve the disclosure practice. The philosophy of interdependence
with the environment and mutual benefits with its stakeholders has become
part of Longfor’s gene. Hence, the Group will better fulfill its responsibility as a

corporate citizen.

Scientific and technological innovation has created new consumer demand, and
the deep integration of the Internet of Things, big data, artificial intelligence,
with the service industry has injected new vitality into sustained economic
growth. Longfor adheres to the strategy of “SaaS, Space as a Service”. With the
empowerment of science and technology, the role and development of space
operator are being redefined. In the past few years, Longfor has firmly promoted
the establishment of platform digitalization, and therefore has been able to
respond to today’s ever-changing environment with agility and flexibility, to
promote service upgrade and organizational iteration, and to keep pace with the

times.

On March 15, 2021, Longfor was officially added into Hang Seng Index, which
demonstrates further recognition from the capital market on the steady progress
of the Group over the years. Longfor will always be grateful, determined, and
down-to-earth. The Group will accumulate long-term value through continuous
growth, make plans based on the situation, and take credible actions to make

steady progress and seek greater success.

Finally, on behalf of the Board of the Group, I would like to express my sincere

gratitude to shareholders, customers, and all sectors of society for their support!

Wu Yajun
Chairperson

Longfor Group Holdings Limited
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Analysis

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

In 2020, revenue from property development business of the Group was
RMB170.98 billion, representing an increase of 21.4% as compared to last year.
The Group delivered 12.011 million square meters of property in gross floor
area (GFA) terms. The gross profit margin of the overall property development
business was 27.3%. Recognized average selling price was RMB14,235 per
square meter in 2020.
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F— - DE RN B T REE RN Table 1: Breakdown of property development revenue of the Group in 2020
* NEBEH * Amount excluding tax
e A S AR
Revenue Total GFA
“ERORE e SIS e e 223 “F A
2020 2019 2020 2019
AREEHET AREAHT TPk TPk
W City RMB million  RMB million ‘000 Sgm ‘000 Sgm
Gl Chongging 24,906 26,602 2,121 2,247
D Chengdu 13,835 12,396 836 901
¥ Ningbo 11,137 5,653 700 434
i Jinan 9,294 13,840 718 1,203
& Shenyang 9,154 6,307 711 632
[k Nantong 8,357 480 586 32
AHE Hefei 7,453 3,154 519 213
A Nanjing 6,810 5,464 260 278
bii) Hangzhou 6,431 7,230 356 312
% Xi'an 5,805 2,664 493 182
M Fuzhou 5,558 1,474 357 152
H Qingdao 5,438 8,421 465 741
i85 Wuxi 4,954 4,369 315 300
K Dalian 4,687 3,192 286 178
fir M Suzhou 4,594 1,965 235 77
AR Shaoxing 3,819 643 192 27
JE M Guangzhou 3,572 4,686 135 208
B Changsha 3,357 4,456 272 443
J& Xiamen 2,718 1,160 147 69
s Xianyang 2,692 108 306 12
R Wuhan 2,578 2,832 155 195
G Jiaxing 2,436 3,163 183 219
et Beijing 2,334 2,908 96 144
K Tianjin 2,315 2,074 139 163
i Shanghai 2,270 2,708 104 125
PG Yantai 1,864 2,506 199 264
i Zhuhai 1,803 759 79 30
HE Nanchang 1,468 - 135 -
SR Quanzhou 1,466 4,736 142 554
N Wenzhou 1,347 - 83 -
] Kunming 1,342 342 115 29
i Changde 1,238 - 180 -
W Guiyang 1,016 - 96 -
RE Yuxi 605 92 49 7
B Ganzhou 602 - 78 -
ol Changzhou 566 2,263 63 133
RE Baoding 496 1,273 41 104
AFI Shijiazhuang 350 775 38 56
BN Zhengzhou 196 - 12 -
B Weihai 72 62 5 4
bl Foshan 26 36 8 8
B Yangzhou 20 - 1 -
At Total 170,981 140,793 12,011 10,676

I
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In 2020, the Group achieved contracted sales of RMB270.61 billion,
representing an increase of 11.6% as compared to last year. The Group sold
16.162 million square meters in total GFA, representing an increase of 13.5%
as compared to last year. Average selling price of GFA sold was RMB16,744
per square meter, representing a decrease of 1.7% as compared to last year.
Contracted sales from Yangtze River Delta, western China, Pan Bohai Rim,
southern China and central China were RMB84.39 billion, RMB66.78 billion,
RMB61.30 billion, RMB41.06 billion and RMB17.08 billion respectively,
accounting for 31.1%, 24.7%, 22.7%, 15.2% and 6.3% of the contracted sales of

the Group, respectively.

Table 2: Details of contracted sales of the Group in 2020

* Crka ] * Amount including tax

R A S AR

Contracted sales Total GFA
e e 220 R e e 2223 “E
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARWE#HT AR TH T T-Frok TFIok
W City RMB million ~ RMB million ‘000 Sqm ‘000 Sqm
HE Chonggqing 26,411 28,719 2,090 2,190
LA Chengdu 22,542 17,933 1,221 1,092
k[ Beijing 15,800 10,878 530 313
B Hangzhou 15,138 22,626 517 758
BRI Suzhou 14,352 3,600 607 145
HE Qingdao 12,266 10,299 1,123 852
& Shenyang 12,144 9,733 892 822
M Guangzhou 9,641 7,443 286 262
A e Hefei 9,491 4,754 657 297
k353 Ningbo 9,053 8,738 402 579
M Fuzhou 8,627 5,263 560 342
A Nanjing 7,853 17,009 372 568
B3 Wuhan 7,612 10,354 421 566
i) Jinan 7,360 7,211 517 470
W Wenzhou 6,431 1,415 269 73
g% Xi’an 5,335 7,611 325 489
BEH Kunming 5,218 1,231 346 91
Lt Shanghai 5,126 3,414 168 161
A Jiaxing 4,928 2,038 345 135
TN Changzhou 4,482 1,289 221 89
et Shaoxing 4,428 3,754 248 156
B Changsha 4,389 9,259 386 713
K Tianjin 3,432 4,073 200 244

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |l &2t &% M iz i% & R 2 7
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e Ao ST

Contracted sales Total GFA
e e 223 R e e 222 “E U
2020 2019 2020 2019
ARWFE#HT AR T TFIK TFI K
W City RMB million ~ RMB million ‘000 Sqm ‘000 Sqm
TR Xianyang 3,350 1,991 356 207
B Guiyang 3,350 730 289 58
HM| Huizhou 3,134 - 286 -
E Nanning 2,826 550 230 62
B Zhengzhou 2,815 595 182 67
b3 Shenzhen 2,716 592 43 10
N Dalian 2,529 5,206 172 270
TN Quanzhou 2,386 1,567 216 159
L] Xiamen 2,122 1,293 73 63
1A Yantai 2,033 2,489 206 241
BB Hong Kong 2,024 3,707 7 15
AR Shijiazhuang 1,891 655 137 52
ki Zhuhai 1,478 2,823 66 114
38 Haikou 1,428 - 59 -
55 Wuxi 1,349 6,231 96 360
W Dongguan 1,228 714 57 48
=) Nanchang 1,203 756 85 59
FEI Tangshan 1,143 - 99 -
B Changchun 928 - 70 -
Jikis: Weihai 824 717 68 65
il Zhongshan 810 980 61 61
M Zhangzhou 810 910 52 59
THH Putian 795 - 80 -
PN Taiyuan 788 401 68 37
B Yangzhou 658 - 42 -
il Changde 616 805 82 108
FE Yuxi 569 985 47 70
g Nantong 553 7,519 24 468
=30 Xuzhou 551 - 34 -
g Ganzhou 445 595 51 107
1L Jiangmen 417 - 46 -
G Foshan 361 380 22 20
4 Maoming 167 81 23 9
s Zhaoqing 87 _ 12 _
& Jinzhong 85 - 8 -
TRIE Baoding 81 588 10 42
Hast Total 270,609 242,504 16,162 14,238

I
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As at December 31, 2020, the Group had sold but unrecognized contracted sales
of RMB310.7 billion (with an area of around 18.00 million square meters), which
formed a solid basis for the Group’s sustainable and stable growth in the core net

profit in the future.

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

The Group maintains a prudent property investment strategy. Currently,
investment properties of the Group are mainly shopping malls under three major
product series, namely Paradise Walk series, which are one-stop experiencing
shopping malls, Starry Street series, which are community shopping malls, and
MOCO, which are mid to high-end household and lifestyle shopping centers. In
addition to the shopping malls, our rental housing properties, known as Goyoo
(“Goyoo”), which provide new generations with comprehensive rental housing
services, have gradually commenced operation in several Tier-1 and Tier-2
cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Chengdu, Nanjing and
Chongging.

In 2020, the rental income, net of tax, of the Group’s property investment
business was RMB7.58 billion’, representing an increase of 30.9% as compared to
last year. Shopping malls, rental housing and others accounted for 75.2%%, 23.9%
and 0.9% of the total rental income respectively. As at December 31, 2020, the
Group has shopping malls of 4.81 million square meters (6.15 million square
meters in GFA with parking space included) which have commenced operation
with an occupancy rate of 96.9%. 90,000 apartments of Goyoo have commenced
operation with the occupancy rate of 88.5%, boasting a leading position in the
industry in terms of its scales. The occupancy rate of the portions of Goyoo which

have commenced operation for more than six months was 93.3%.

excluding Beijing Chang an Paradise Walk etc.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |l &2t &% M iz i% & R 2 7
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K= DR LR RS A Table 3: Breakdown of rental income of Shopping malls of the Group in 2020™
* ANEBIA * Amount excluding tax
e
2% T
2020 2019
i it RO
REmE  HEUA (i3 LI S L UN i3 i HR%
Change of
Rental % of Rental % of Rental
GFA income Rental  Occupancy income Rental  Occupancy income
Tk ARETE ANRHET
sqm  RMB000 RMB 000
ERLRK 120778 492,691 84%  100.0% 501,773 10.6%  100.0% -1.8%
Chongging North Paradise Walk
ELJib PR 76,031 143,331 25% 95.0% 166,982 35% 98.6% -14.2%
Chongging West Paradise Walk
EERHURE 160,168 395,360 6.7% 984% 393,05 83% 99.0% 0.6%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase I
B GHiwRE 154460 247,903 42%  950% 239747 0% 91.6% 3.4%
Chongging Time Paradise Walk Phase II
EER KA B3I 90,940 L6%  948% 96,897 200 987% -6.1%
Chonggqing Time Paradise Walk Phase I1I
WA=TRERE 38043 35,023 0.6%  9.2% 44809 09%  912%  -21.8%
Chengdu Three Thousand Paradise Walk
ALK 215536 169,697 29%  895% 179,785 38%  968% -5.6%
Chengdu North Paradise Walk
AR K 61,989 50,487 09%  981% 52388 L1%  100.0% -3.6%
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase I
B85 PR 21,286 451,022 1.7% 98.8% 455,744 9.6% 98.7% -1.0%
Beijing Changying Paradise Walk
M &Y Kt 151135 260,653 45% 99.5% 259,638 5.5% 98.8% 0.4%
Hangzhou Jinsha Paradise Walk
Wb R 91,638 131,133 23% 9.1% 137,210 28%  100.0% -44%
Chengdu Jinnan Paradise Walk
Tr KB R 144,56 209,566 3.6% 98.5% 212,095 45% 100.0% -1.2%
Beijing Daxing Paradise Walk
IR PR 170450 144457 2.5% 921% 152472 3.2% 97.6% -5.3%
Shanghai Honggiao Paradise Walk
ERURK I 15516 17,88 03%  1000% 16,040 03%  98.6% 7.8%
Chongging U-City Paradise Walk Phase I
B RG] 96411 121,861 21%  986% 111388 23%  993% 9.4%
Chongging U-City Paradise Walk Phase II
ERRERE 93,152 127,033 22% 9% 112,906 24%  994% 12.7%
Chongging Hometown Paradise Walk
[BLREAIBREIE 158067 282,085 4.8% 989% 274324 5.8% 98.9% 2.8%
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase I
LLIIPR G 197466 289,581 5.0% 96.2% 274375 5.8% 98.6% 5.5%

Suzhou Shishan Paradise Walk
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&Rk &N
2020 2019
il s fHalA
REmE - HSRA [iFip’ T SRk ON iy iR HR%
Change of
Rental % of Rental % of Rental
GFA income Rental  Occupancy income Rental  Occupancy income
Tk ARKTFx ARETE
sgm  RMB000 RMB000
e {lIPR: 98339 206,049 35% A% 195246 41%  98.7% 5.5%
Shanghai Baoshan Paradise Walk
HHEK 119328 93,680 L6%  967% 107,156 23% A% -12.6%
Changzhou Longcheng Paradise Walk
LrFEEe 103,688 166,450 2.9% 99.0% 180,917 3.8% 100.0% -8.0%
Beijing Fangshan Paradise Walk
AP 152639 142,628 25%  936% 155511 33%  96.5% -83%
Chengdu Xichen Paradise Walk
HARET KA 140,000 134,294 23%  965% 8,221 02% 9%  1,533.5%
Chengdu Binjiang Paradise Walk
UMEILR 1 2,621 33,567 0.6% 98.5% 11,083 0.2%  1000%  202.9%
Hangzhou Binjiang Paradise Walk Phase IT
WMTE XL 130,03 204311 3.5% 974% 22,627 05%  1000%  803.0%
Hangzhou Xixi Paradise Walk
LRIk SIPRE 83,000 121,863 21%  967% 8,776 02%  100.0%  1,288.6%
Hangzhou Zijing Paradise Walk
ISR 42,253 70,698 1.2% 93.4% 20,981 0.4% 100.0% 237.0%
Shanghai Huajing Paradise Walk
RPN 94859 148,928 260 991% 8,676 02%  947%  1616.6%
Shanghai Minhang Paradise Walk
ALK 98320 71132 12%  904% 7,704 02%  985%  8233%
Hefei Yaohai Paradise Walk
BRARK 108,000 89,675 L5%  92.9% 7,709 02%  982%  1063.3%
Nanjing Liuhe Paradise Walk
TEREXE 52,563 86,069 1.5% 99.5% 15,620 0.3% 99.1% 451.0%
Beijing Chang’an Paradise Walk
F R KA 120367 100,662 L7%  1000% - - -
Nanjing Longwan Paradise Walk
AL KA 146,286 5332 09%  98.6% - - -
Nanjing Jiangbei Paradise Walk
ik SN 78,962 6,150 01%  99.6% - - -
Xi'an Xiangti Paradise Walk
FELDEE 04113 15272 03%  98.6% - - -
Chongqing Jinsha Paradise Walk
A LKA 114221 43721 08%  99.7% - - -
Chengdu Shangcheng Paradise Walk
A R f 03,183 16,387 03%  989% - - -
Chengdu Time Paradise Walk Phase II
BB MRS 12537 26405 05%  97.0% - - -

Suzhou Xinghu Paradise Walk
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e S 22 “EFhE
2020 2019
i s HAHA
R HERA AsH HHE  HERA A gk Hifex
Change of
Rental % of Rental % of Rental
GFA income Rental  Occupancy income Rental  Occupancy income
Tk ARWTFx ARHT L
sgm  RMB000 RMB000
ERREXE 110,508 10,444 0.2% 97.1% - - -
Chongging Lijia Patadise Walk
AR R 77571 7,179 0.1%  100.0% - - -
Jinan Aoti Paradise Walk
Kt 4,513,898 5,509,200 94.7% 97.0% 4,431,855 93.3% 98.5% 243%
Paradise Walk Subtotal
EERBE 16,161 22318 0.4% 99.8% 22,094 05%  100.0% 10%
Chongqing Crystal Castle
ERERENE 54,618 36,892 0.7% 92.3% 35,176 0.7% 97.1% 49%
Chongging Chunsen Starry Street
EEEHN 29413 12,333 0.2%  1000% 20,081 04%  1000%  -38.6%
Chonggqing Fairy Castle
TrERESE 6,320 24753 0.4% 100.0% 26,716 0.6% 100.0% -13%
Beijing Summer Palace Starry Street
%R 44,227 57,481 1.0% 96.6% 58,191 1.2% 97.6% -1.2%
Xi'an Daxing Starry Street
[ RN 63,206 71,159 1.2% 9%6.5% 74988 L6%  100.0% 5.1%
Xi'an Qujiang Starry Street
iR R E 4740 30,12 0.5% 86.5% 17,152 0.4% 98.6% 75.6%
Shanghai Minhang Starty Street
HAREESE 31,168 3,362 0.1%  100.0% - - -
Chengdu Wuhou Starry Street
Hite - 18346 0.3% NA 25,668 0.5% NA  -285%
Others
RGNt 269,853 276,769 4.8% 96.3% 280,066 5.9% 98.8% -1.2%
Starry Street Subtotal
EEMOCO 29,104 31,764 0.5% 91.8% 35,919 08%  1000%  -11.6%
Chongging MOCO
Kbu /it 29,104 31,764 0.5% 91.8% 35919 0.8%  1000%  -11.6%
MOCO Subtotal
CHEEH &5 4812855  S817,733  100.0% 96.9% 4,747,840  100.0% 98.5% 22.5%
Total for projects that had commenced operation
L |
ZEFECFE A EHBARE0560C - "’ In 2020, the total retail sales of shopping malls were RMB30.5 billion, representing an
[ R 14% 5 RAEFEHET151EAIK » 7] increase of 14% year-on-year. Annual average daily foor traffic was 1.51 million, representing

I FI#29 - a decrease of 2% year-on-year.
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ALEBHA EEAEEREYENT The Group currently has the following major investment properties under
construction:
K K LR A Table 4: The major investment properties under constcruction of the Group
AL ST
Estimated

Commencement of

TR B S RE Operation Planned GFA

Pk

Sqm

e SN Suzhou Dongwu Paradise Walk 20214F 2021 114,200
[EEROLIEPR | Nanjing Hexi Paradise Walk 20214 2021 112,358
ARSI R A Chengdu Jinchen Paradise Walk 20214F 2021 83,000
UIRLEIN SN Hangzhou Jiangdong Paradise Walk 20214F 2021 107,125
VDT R Ay Changsha Yanghu Paradise Walk 20214F 2021 101,993
RETRERE Wuhan Jiangchen Paradise Walk 20214 2021 138,559
BN -UNEPN Chongqing Park Paradise Walk 20214 2021 138,034
BUM T4 KA Hangzhou Dingqiao Paradise Walk 20214F 2021 117,944
FH BB K Qingdao Jiaozhou Paradise Walk 20224E J IR 2022 and hereafter 81,463
FiEEERE Shanghai Fengxian Paradise Walk 20224F K UUIR 2022 and hereafter 104,163
EIEENER] Nanchang Qingshanhu Paradise Walk 20224F L LUtR 2022 and hereafter 95,400
E N K Ningbo Yinzhou Paradise Walk 20224F J IR 2022 and hereafter 106,065
HER RV Chongqing Time Paradise Walk Phase IV 20224F Je IR 2022 and hereafter 74,725
AR R iy Beijing Yizhuang Paradise Walk 20224F R IR 2022 and hereafter 107,201
i ERE Shanghai Jinhui Paradise Walk 20224E J IR 2022 and hereafter 72,559
REAY K Wuhan Baisha Paradise Walk 20224 R UME 2022 and hereafter 35,963
VB I 1 T K Ay Shenyang Hunnan Paradise Walk 20224F K LUtR 2022 and hereafter 81,000
MEEFHRME Nanning Qingxiu Paradise Walk 20224E J IR 2022 and hereafter 111,709
B I K1 Wuhan Fengsheng Road Paradise Walk 20224F K VIR 2022 and hereafter 101,008
E g AN NGS Chongqing Longxing Core District Paradise Walk — 20224F J¢ DA& 2022 and hereafter 75,652
BRI Chongging La Defense 20224F B LME 2022 and hereafter 118,642
B IHWE K Kunming Chuncheng Avenue Paradise Walk 20224 K AR 2022 and hereafter 110,000
RSN Chengdu Pidu Paradise Walk 20224F L LUtR 2022 and hereafter 122,854
1 O TOD K fif Haikou TOD Paradise Walk 20224F J IR 2022 and hereafter 222,193

BN E BRGNS LR - 78B4 Due to the rental increase of shopping malls in operation, continuous investments

AL B EFERE S 5 RER —F in projects under construction and the development of rental housing Goyoo,
TAFBRAGI E ) e E N R W23 14800 - the valuation gain of investment properties of the Group amounted to RMB2.31
billion in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INCOME FROM DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

In 2020, the total income generated from Digital Technology Services of the
Group was RMB1.10 billion, which demonstrates a steady growth compared to
last year. The Group will continue to provide digital technology services to each
of its six core businesses for operation management and procedure innovation.
Further, the Group will continue to expand various external business scopes,
including the membership points management of customers, the electronic
coupon business of shopping mall tenants, intelligent parking system services
as well as cooperative project management to expand digital business scale and

improve the service capacity.

COST CONTROL

In 2020, benefiting from the Group’s excellent performance on acquisition of
projects and sales in Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities, as well as its focus on high quality
talents and organization efficiency improvement, the Group’s share of general and
administrative expenses to the total contracted sales was 2.7%, remaining stable
as compared to last year. Meanwhile, as the Group has increased its marketing
expenses to strengthen its brand influence, the selling expenses to the total

contracted sales increased by 0.2% to 1.9% as compared to last year.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF JOINT VENTURES

In 2020, the contribution of joint ventures was mainly from the Group’s
49.0%-owned Nanjing Bamboo Grove Project. The attributable profit after tax

of the Group in joint ventures was RMB590 million.

SHARE OF RESULTS OF ASSOCIATES

In 2020, the contribution of associates was mainly from the Group’s
25.1%-owned Qingdao Hai Jing Project. The attributable profit after tax of the

Group in associates was RMB690 million.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax expenses comprises PRC enterprise income tax and land appreciation
tax. In 2020, the enterprise income tax expense and the land appreciation tax of
the Group were RMB9.81 billion and RMB7.72 billion, respectively. The total

income tax expenses for the period amounted to RMB17.53 billion.
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PROFITABILITY

In 2020, the Group’s core net profit margin was 14.7%, while that of last year
was 15.5%; and the core net profit margin attributable to shareholders was
10.1%, while that of last year was 10.3%. The above is mainly due to the increase
in revenue during the current year and the combined effects of expenses, share of

results of joint ventures and associates and the changes in income tax expenses.

LAND BANK REPLENISHMENT

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s total land bank was 74.00 million square
meters or 52.79 million square meters on an attributable basis. The average unit
land cost was RMB5,569 per square meter, accounting for 33.3% of unit price
of current contracted sales. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank in Pan
Bohai Rim, western China, Yangtze River Delta, southern China, central China
and Hong Kong China accounted for 36.1%, 25.8%, 16.0%, 11.6%, 10.4% and
0.1% of the total land bank, respectively.

In 2020, the Group acquired new land bank with total GFA of 25.67 million
square meters or 18.47 million square meters on an attributable basis. Average
cost of acquisition on an attributable basis was RMB5,687 per square meter. In
terms of regional breakdown, the newly acquired area of Pan Bohai Rim, western
China, Yangtze River Delta, southern China and central China accounted for
32.5%, 24.5%,17.5%, 15.3% and 10.2% of the total GFA of the newly acquired
land bank.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period®, the Group acquired new land
bank with total GFA of 0.81 million square meters or 0.59 million square
meters on an attributable basis. In terms of regional breakdown, land bank newly
acquired subsequent to the end of the reporting period in western China and
Yangtze River Delta accounted for 63.2% and 36.8% of the total GFA of the land

bank acquired subsequent to the end of the reporting period, respectively.

Currently, there are 63 cities covered by the Group®. In addition to focusing on
the Tier-1 and Tier-2 cities, we also made appropriate investment in projects
located in city clusters within metropolitan circles. The project size was also
controlled at an appropriate level, which laid a well foundation for improving the

turnover cycle of the Group’s properties available for sale.

’ As of February 28, 2021
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ASE B 1Y L s A The geographic spread of the land bank of the Group was as follows:

KL REBA Ll T Table 5: Breakdown of land bank of the Group

MEEmR PRI ESSREmE P

Attributable
Ho [ Region i City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total
Tk Tk
Sqm Sqm
R HLE  Pan Bohai Rim B[ Beijing 2,697,679 3.7% 974,811 1.8%
E Shenyang 3,486,780 4.7% 2,627,237 5.0%
H Qingdao 3,899,323 5.3% 2,566,210 4.9%
& Yantai 7,278,870 9.8% 7,210,954 13.7%
bigea] Jinan 3,421,857 4.6% 2,539,254 4.8%
o Dalian 346,919 0.5% 210,641 0.4%
Ko Tianjin 1,277,248 1.7% 1,052,497 2.0%
fRiE Baoding 539,712 0.7% 377,798 0.7%
AFHE Shijiazhuang 883,475 1.2% 602,443 1.1%
B Weihai 430,698 0.6% 277,087 0.5%
PN Taiyuan 532,005 0.7% 532,005 1.0%
BE Changchun 1,309,978 1.8% 1,195,658 2.3%
E L Tangshan 387,548 0.5% 250,225 0.5%
Hrh Jinzhong 185,774 0.3% 185,774 0.3%
Vi Subtotal 26,677,866 36.1% 20,602,594 39.0%
He i i 5 Central China =Y Changsha 1,963,915 2.6% 1,399,512 2.6%
HE Wuhan 4,382,547 5.9% 2,095,016 4.0%
E Nanchang 437,889 0.6% 373,151 0.7%
B Zhengzhou 648,455 0.9% 447,929 0.8%
L Changde 150,261 0.2% 150,261 0.3%
M Ganzhou 118,610 0.2% 42,700 0.1%
/it Subtotal 7,701,677 104% 4,508,569 8.5%
T [ Western China ENE Chongqing 7,148,861 9.7% 5,219,868 9.9%
%4 Chengdu 3,267,297 4.4% 2,133,001 4.0%
[iE7 Xi'an 1,397,418 1.9% 827,450 1.6%
EiZ Yuxi 741,147 1.0% 741,147 1.4%
&= Guiyang 2,396,773 3.2% 1,476,914 2.8%
A Kunming 2,108,295 2.8% 1,177,776 2.2%
T Xianyang 1,863,169 2.5% 1,095,521 2.1%
FEM Lanzhou 187,377 0.3% 131,164 0.3%
ANet Subtotal 19,110,337 25.8% 12,802,841 24.3%
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A SR Pl et g e S A Firfili e A5l

Attributable
H [ Region b0 City Total GFA % of Total GFA % of Total

Tk Tk

Sqm Sqm
RZ=MMIE  Yangtze River Delta [iff Shanghai 1,024,523 1.4% 609,199 1.2%
i3 Wuxi 558,367 0.7% 398,029 0.7%
N Changzhou 614,256 0.8% 614,256 1.2%
B Hangzhou 1,844,228 2.5% 1,159,315 2.2%
T Nantong 122,992 0.2% 86,094 0.2%
asiin Shaoxing 746,736 1.0% 396,977 0.8%
AN Wenzhou 772,874 1.0% 682,255 1.3%
E3/33 Ningbo 848,029 1.1% 795,992 1.5%
BRI Suzhou 1,151,194 1.6% 784,483 1.5%
R Nanjing 1,174,749 1.6% 965,077 1.8%
e Hefei 2,157,597 29% 1,939,255 3.7%
B Jiaxing 325,655 0.4% 162,828 0.3%
B Xuzhou 39,454 0.1% 20,121 0.0%
i Yangzhou 214,206 0.3% 214,206 0.4%
BN Taizhou 266,052 0.4% 186,236 0.4%
ANat Subtotal 11,860,912 16.0% 9,014,323 17.2%
2 g 8 Southern China & 1" Xiamen 943,595 1.3% 483,767 0.9%
M Quanzhou 131,318 0.2% 131,318 0.2%
JE M Guangzhou 987,686 1.3% 726,528 1.4%
Y Shenzhen 123,085 0.2% 117,899 0.2%
B Fuzhou 1,758,429 24% 1,119,616 2.1%
ikl Foshan 324,764 0.4% 254,689 0.5%
7R Zhuhai 201,228 0.3% 100,614 0.2%
W Dongguan 686,607 0.9% 430,864 0.8%
HE Nanning 836,319 1.1% 444,852 0.8%
il Zhongshan 39,264 0.1% 39,264 0.1%
A Maoming 98,053 0.1% 98,053 0.2%
N Huizhou 720,793 1.0% 485,472 0.9%
g n| Haikou 813,871 1.1% 813,871 1.5%
YL Jiangmen 290,376 0.4% 145,188 0.3%
ey Zhaoqing 235,482 0.3% 164,838 0.3%
ER Qingyuan 115,666 0.2% 57,949 0.1%
i H Putian 186,735 0.2% 112,041 0.2%
—d Sanya 103,164 0.1% 103,164 0.2%
/gt Subtotal 8,596,435 11.6% 5,829,987 10.9%
s I Hong Kong China i Hong Kong 54,459 0.1% 27,229 0.1%
ING Subtotal 54,459 0.1% 27,229 0.1%
4t Total 74,001,686 100.0% 52,785,543 100.0%
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FN : ZELAE T W Table 6: Land acquisition in 2020
ol JHH A i JEAY B 2 MEgEmE SRR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% Pk Tk
% Sqm Sqm
RAE BB e 50.0% 132,392 66,196
Pan Bohai Rim Honorable Mansion Beijing
ESTE Bl 29.6% 202,032 59,842
Elegant Mansion Beijing
INEE I N 51.0% 75,568 38,540
Xiaoyaowan Plot Dalian
1 2SR R N 70.0% 125,330 87,731
No. 2 Haiko Road Plot Dalian
KIRFE i 35.0% 34,542 12,090
Longfor Mansion Jinan
K L 100.0% 509,184 509,184
Longfor Origin Jinan
PN e S i 95.0% 276,228 262,417
Dazhong News Plot Jinan
KEE Hi 100.0% 185,774 185,774
Longfor Faerie Jinzhong
AR HE 75.0% 150,902 113,177
The Light Year Qingdao
S HE 70.0% 403,026 282,118
Fairy Castle Qingdao
BB HE 40.0% 57,239 22,896
Chun Jiang City Qingdao
LR HE 70.0% 148,143 103,700
Glorious City Qingdao
AR HE 70.0% 243,062 170,143
Glorious City Phase II Qingdao
B Tk HE 51.0% 328,985 167,782
Blue Coast City Qingdao
BRI HE 35.0% 286,022 100,108
Scholar’s Mansion Qingdao
FILRH HE 35.0% 149,582 52,354
Glorious Mansion Qingdao
E5i5 & 70.0% 325,692 227,984
Humanism Mansion Shenyang
fil 1 100.0% 82,126 82,126
Fragrant Garden Shenyang
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Hb Jit JHH 21 Pt JEAY B 25 Beggmn SRR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% SN REN
% Sqm Sqm
BRI 1 51.0% 165,196 84,250
Glorious Palace Shenyang
R 1 70.0% 383,939 268,757
Cloud Valley Shenyang
ERASIAH 1 50.0% 158,906 79,453
Putian Reli Project Shenyang
S 1 50.0% 28,512 14,256
Light Mansion Shenyang
TR it 2 1 70.0% 168,759 118,131
Yuhong New City Plot Shenyang
HiL02JHH i3 35.0% 143,791 50,327
Zhongfa No. 2 Project Shenyang
L 1 70.0% 60,676 42,473
Shangyuan Road Plot Shenyang
TR IEA 1 35.0% 332,189 116,266
Yuhong Huayi Project Shenyang
JLEEEN =W & 51.0% 46,501 23,716
Jasper Sky Phase II Shijiazhuang
PN A5 70.0% 467,116 326,981
Longfor Mansion Shijiazhuang
REEHH AR 100.0% 126,574 126,574
Chang’an District Plot Shijiazhuang
KER A JE 1L 85.0% 161,287 137,094
Longfor Mansion Tangshan
K51 JE 1L 50.0% 226,261 113,131
Longfor Mansion Phase II Tangshan
KB K 100.0% 251,751 251,751
Longfor Mansion Tianjin
KAt Kt 51.0% 60,148 30,675
Longshui Garden Tianjin
AT R PN 100.0% 298,398 298,398
Jizhuangzi Plot Tianjin
RILRE i) 100.0% 199,268 199,268
Glorious Mansion Yantai
AL rE& 100.0% 171,587 171,587
Longfor Mansion Yantai
LB R# 51.0% 114,187 58,235
Glorious City Changchun
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i JHH A ot JEA HE 2 MgEmR MR R
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
# FHK FAHK
% Sqgm Sqm
SR R& 100.0% 288,955 288,955
Grand of Woods Changchun
E1E ) BE 49.0% 114,448 56,080
Glorious City II Changchun
R AL I =2 100.0% 271,261 271,261
Weishan Road North Plot Changchun
SUIE i RE 100.0% 162,907 162,907
Kai Xuan Mansion Plot Changchun
1 H AR LR RE 100.0% 222,286 222,286
Jingyue Hefu Plot Changchun
/Nt 8,340,732 6,056,974
Subtotal
7 IR ERT= JEAR 30.0% 127,210 38,163
Western China Xiyue Jinchen Chengdu
ME LR S 35.0% 102,679 35,937
Linyun Mansion Chengdu
YR ER A JIHS 70.0% 219,405 153,584
Xifu Langyue Chengdu
HULE R JEAR 50.0% 70,340 35,170
Chunyu Mansion Chengdu
EHRL S 100.0% 189,311 189,311
Shuxin Momentos Chengdu
ST JEHS 80.0% 59,604 47,683
Waterfront City Chengdu
LKW JEAR 80.0% 196,781 157,425
River Palace Chengdu
HEbiA FH 100.0% 158,454 158,454
Longfor Mansion Chengdu
R JIHS 70.0% 354,569 248,198
Grand of Woods Chengdu
K B 90.0% 559,806 503,826
Longfor Origin Guiyang
PN W 55.0% 415,143 228,329
Great Mansion Kunming
Kk B 80.0% 47,882 38,306
Longfor Mansion Kunming
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e JHH A ot A HE 2 Mg MR R
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% Pk Pk
% Sqm Sqm
HRIIEHE iRl 70.0% 187,377 131,164
Pengjiaping Project Lanzhou
BILRE (%7 40.0% 38,532 15,413
Glorious Mansion Xi'an
FILKIT 74 °% 55.0% 99,076 54,492
For River Master Xi'an
K 7% 49.0% 426,917 209,189
Longfor Origin Xi'an
UL KRB (%7 45.0% 150,518 67,733
Glorious Mansion Xi'an
I [LE 100.0% 90,031 90,031
Star Atlas Xi'an
T JR 55.0% 1,332,998 733,149
Longfor Central Xianyang
LA WNEE IR 515} 51.0% 150,070 76,536
Caotang Main Street Plot Xianyang
St T B e HE 50.0% 68,386 34,193
Dingsheng Center Chongqing
FRbE Ed 51.0% 158,385 80,776
Forest City Chongqing
EL R F 0 HE 70.0% 276,171 193,320
Ba'nan Jieshi Plot Chongqing
[ipAN B HE 60.0% 330,684 198,410
Bay City Chongqing
BRAH Ed 51.0% 271,254 138,340
Science Mansion Chongqing
P R £ 100.0% 196,214 196,214
Nanping Bus Station Plot Chongqing
/Nt 6,277,797 4,053,346
Subtotal
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il JHH A i JEA HE 2 MgEmR MR R
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% Pk RS
% Sqgm Sqm
R=fE KRR LM 100.0% 495,216 495,216
Yangtze River Delta Longfor Origin Hangzhou
B HUM 22.0% 144,959 31,891
Spring Whisper Hangzhou
R HIE 70.0% 92,804 64,963
Glorious Mansion Hefei
PN Gy 70.0% 113,782 79,648
Longfor Mansion Hefei
BLR G 70.0% 174,537 122,176
Glorious Mansion Hefei
LA AR A 100.0% 866,438 866,438
The Light Year Hefei
R A B w3l 50.0% 134,862 67,431
Beautiful Mansion Jiaxing
Ty L 70.0% 53,253 37,277
Qiaolin Street Plot Nanjing
WA 4R HIA 70.0% 83,131 58,192
Yuanlin West Road Plot Nanjing
T [izgc] 70.0% 122,992 86,094
High-speed Rail Nantong
I = 100.0% 302,829 302,829
Longfor Paradise Ningbo
A AL 3 L 100.0% 52,004 52,004
Gucun Community Plot Shanghai
PN RS 50.0% 510,647 255,323
Longfor Fusion Shaoxing
1L Bk H B R 100.0% 172,852 172,852
Xiangshan Road Plot Suzhou
RPN am 70.0% 266,052 186,236
Lake City Mansion Taizhou
HE B i H 100.0% 200,090 200,090
Glorious City Wenzhou
KW= i 100.0% 327,690 327,690
Origin Wenzhou
2 i 4 [ S 60.0% 119,635 71,781
Glorious Mansion Wuxi
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Hb Jit JHH 21 ot JEAY B 25 Beggmn SRR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% SN REN
% Sqm Sqm
B R B SRAIE EL37) 40.0% 187,472 74,989
Shuofang Middle School Wusxi
East Project
HER A R AU ol 100.0% 81,604 81,604
Jiajia Garden East Plot Yangzhou
/it 4,502,849 3,634,724
Subtotal
3 o i [ BILR =] 80.0% 72,038 57,630
Central China Longfor Palace Nanchang
PN R 40.0% 269,262 107,705
Longfor Mansion Wuhan
HILE B R TODH! B WS 50.0% 623,289 311,645
Binjiang TOD Plot Wuhan
=T i 100.0% 249,961 249,961
Longfor Central Wuhan
25 R 51.0% 115,413 58,861
Grand Mansion Changsha
FILRE =304 100.0% 628,545 628,545
Glorious Mansion Changsha
BT R B 100.0% 294,311 294,311
Chunjiang Central Changsha
REER Ll 51.0% 218,041 111,201
Longfor Mansion Zhengzhou
Kifgh WM 40.8% 158,253 64,567
Longfor Mansion Zhengzhou
/it 2,629,113 1,884,426
Subtotal
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il JHH A ot JEA HE 2 MgEmR MR R
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% Pk RS
% Sqgm Sqm
E F [ REETODHL S — HoE 51.0% 333,328 169,997
Southern China ~ Dongguan TOD Plot I Dongguan
HEETODIIE ] HoE 100.0% 229,898 229,898
Dongguan TOD Plot II Dongguan
TLELRACE il 80.0% 307,100 245,680
River City Foshan
FRACH M 51.0% 63,993 32,636
Violet Castle Garden Fuzhou
RILBE AR M 70.0% 128,716 90,101
Chunjiang City Fuzhou
GEN M 70.0% 179,243 125,470
Jiuxu Mansion Fuzhou
A [ M 70.0% 241,506 169,054
City Garden Fuzhou
KEERE g 70.0% 49,243 34,470
Longfor Mansion Fuzhou
HRER M 30.0% 161,874 48,562
Pearl Cloud Mansion Fuzhou
LRI gl 60.0% 152,012 91,207
Longfor Mansion Fuzhou
BIHE M 60.0% 142,118 85,271
Chun Jiang City Fuzhou
AL M 70.0% 104,114 72,880
Cangshan Shang Du Plot Fuzhou
F LA R M 100.0% 29,612 29,612
Xiushan Village Plot Fuzhou
TR E JEM 100.0% 346,343 346,343
Panyu Coach Terminal Plot Guangzhou
FILRHG M 95.0% 334,129 317,423
The sky Legend Huizhou
BRITIEH HOH 100.0% 26,834 26,834
Chenjiang Project Huizhou
R0 Ea 49.0% 25,788 12,636
Bamboo Grove Nanning
IR [k 60.0% 292,697 175,618
Longfor Skyline Nanning
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e JHH A ot A HE 2 Beggmn SRR
Attributable Attributable
Region Project City Interest Total GFA GFA
% Pk Pk
% Sqm Sqm
O K H R 80.0% 31,418 25,134
Ying Hua Road Plot Nanning
wWra W 60.0% 186,735 112,041
Jiuxu Mansion Putian
HRE i 50.1% 115,666 57,949
Yinzhan Plot Qingyuan
R = 100.0% 103,164 103,164
Sapphire Time Sanya
g el £ 70.0% 235,482 164,838
Chunjiang Central Zhaoqing
HEL A H H il 100.0% 39,264 39,264
Longshan Park Project Zhongshan
KIZERE iy 50.0% 60,585 30,293
The Skyline Zhuhai
N 3,920,862 2,836,375
Subtotal
A 25,671,353 18,465,845
Total
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Details of the land bank acquired by the Group subsequent to the end of the
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Management Discussion and Analysis

reporting period® are as follows:

Table 7: Land acquisition subsequent to the end of the reporting period *

il JHH A St MEfhtEs  GHAREmR MR m A
Attributable Expected Attributable
Region Project City Interest GFA GFA
% Tk FHK
% Sqm Sqm
T b B AL b AR 100.0% 19,802 19,802
Western China Yuren North Road Plot Chengdu
K i s S 100.0% 55,218 55,218
Dafeng Street Plot Chengdu
R L HE HE 50.0% 439,760 219,880
Lanshanyue Project Chongqing
it 514,780 294,900
Subtotal
Rl PRI bR (2 100.0% 299,262 299,262
Yangtze River DeltaJiangpu Street Block Nanjing
it 299,262 299,262
Subtotal
At 814,042 594,162
Total

' #uk = F = A AH

’ As of February 28, 2021
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FINANCIAL POSITION

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s consolidated borrowings amounted to
RMB167.37 billion. The net debt to equity ratio (net debt divided by total
equity) of the Group was 46.5%. Cash in hand reached RMB77.83 billion. The
credit rating of the Group was BBB by Standard & Poor, Baa2 by Moody’s, BBB
by Fitch, and AAA by Dagong International*, CCXR* and Shanghai Brilliance,

with positive outlook from Fitch and stable outlook from others.

* The ratings of Dagong International and CCXR were reviewed on Chongqing Longhu
Development Co., Ltd., a major subsidiary of the Company in Mainland China.

Approximately 71% of the Group’s total borrowings were denominated in RMB,
while 29% were denominated in foreign currencies. The Group continues to
maintain its borrowings in foreign currencies in a low proportion with a certain

amount of exchange rate swap so as to minimise the risk in exchange losses.

Approximately RMB76.99 billion of the Group’s consolidated borrowings were
with fixed interest rates ranging from 3.30% per annum to 5.60% per annum,
depending on the terms of the loans, and the other loans carried interest at
floating rates. As of December 31, 2020, the proportion of fixed interest debt was
46% (December 31, 2019: 37%) of the total debt.

The Group’s average cost of borrowing was 4.39% per annum. The average
maturity period of loan was 6.59 years. The proportion of unsecured debt was
71% of the total debt. The debt due within one year was RMB18.34 billion,
accounting for 11.0% of the total debt. Cash to short-term debt ratio (cash in
hand divided by debt due within one year) was 4.24X.

In 2020, the Group successfully issued corporate bonds of RMBS.8 billion and
rental housing special bonds of RMB3.0 billion and medium-term notes of
RMBI1.7 billion in the domestic capital market, at a coupon rate ranging from
3.55% to 4.50% per annum and terms ranging from three years to seven years in
2020, the Group also successfully issued senior notes of US$650 million in the
international capital market, at a coupon rate ranging from 3.375% to 3.85% per

annum and terms ranging from seven years and three month to twelve years.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, in January 2021, the Group
successfully issued corporate bonds of RMB3.0 billion in the domestic capital
market, at a coupon rate ranging from 3.95% to 4.40% per annum with terms

ranging from five years to seven years.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |l &2t &% M iz i% & R 2 7



e L e 5 W 3R

REFZFAEA A=+ — 0 AREEE R
H35,426% 2008 5 » FErh 268 R 710,344
2o MR B R 26004 > BN EEHEE
22,4734 © ASEWEE B 0T B EE F34 55

¢%@Eﬁé%ﬁ‘1¢@%&%ﬁﬁ%lgm
AT o (B BB AR AT S
SACKL I AR A 2 ZEBE B 4 - ﬁiﬁﬂmf%
SR EER - BRI S R R E A
7 MR B 2 I BT 70K 4520 DA KA
AR R R AR A Rl AL

Il B Je B

TR TR R 28 8 B I R Y
B RPRERET H MM o AR BN A R
EYE BIRAEN - AR PRER » BK S
TR B TR 4% i BT B ) RO B 1R
KR ERNEE R > FHETERS
2 RELBBSEIN - RAHEEET - &
HOATBUMERRPEAR R PR LA - el B R Y
HORBAVEE » A3 LR - PR [
IRF A7 S o] R e A BT 5 RS 1 T R 4
PR -

SEBFOR [ 22 ] BB Joms B o 7 B % -
FEE - HEER - BENE  BREME - F

R K AR B A T B « B A5
BERFHER AN - BB FR A
> BRERSEYOUR AR A R B
FOMMRS - 5 BRI - HTPER
Bk o

RV RE i

Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND COMPENSATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2020, the Group had 35,426 full-time employees in China.
Of these employees, 10,344 worked in the property development division, 2,609
in the property investment division, and 22,473 in the property management

division. Average age of our employees is 34.3 years old.

The Group remunerates its employees based on their performance, work
experience and the prevailing market wage level. The total compensation of the
employees consists of base salary, cash bonus and share-based rewards. The gross
amount of cash bonus is determined from, amongst other things, the ranking of
the Group’s budget fulfillment ratio and loyalties of customers, which is then
assessed and allocated to individual subsidiaries based on factors such as balanced

scorecard record and profitability.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The year 2020 witnessed an increasingly complex international environment
due to the sustained impact of the outbreak of COVID-19 which has remained
unabated. Thanks to China’s effective epidemic control, life and production in
the country are gradually close to normal. China’s dual-circulation strategy has
contributed to the rapid rebound of investment and consumption. As an integral
part to support economic growth, the real estate industry is developing steadily
and demonstrating resilience. Under the long-term mechanism of management
and control, consistency is maintained in local administrative regulations,
and the policy of strictly guarding against financial risks has been gradually
implemented. With enterprises accelerating deleveraging and risk control, the
real estate industry is back on the path towards sustainable development focusing

on steady operation and quality service.

The Group adheres to the strategy of “SaaS, Space as a Service”, and is firmly
committed to the coordinated development of its six core business arms covering
property development, commercial property, rental housing, smart service,
housing agency service, and housing decoration. The Group actively spots and
seizes the opportunities brought by scientific and technological innovation,
and always aims at customer needs. While sticking to the core businesses, the
Group also digs potentials for transformation. Through continuous iteration and
upgrading of its organizations and systems, the Group endeavors to improve its

professional ability through the entire chain as well as its operational efficiency.
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Confronting the hit of COVID-19, the Group actively responded and strived
to control the impact to a minimum. Since the focus of domestic response was
shifted to routine epidemic control in mid-March, as one of the first developers
to resume work and production, the Group has promoted the return to work of
staff and the resumption of operation of construction sites in an orderly manner
on the premise of ensuring all epidemic prevention work is done well within
the projects. The Group met the working plan set at the beginning of the year

regarding the start and completion of construction.

In line with the requirements of epidemic prevention and control in various
cities, the Group temporarily closed its malls and screened and tested potential
virus carriers or infections. Combined with the impact of the epidemic on offline
consumption behaviors, the Group’s annual same store retail sales of shopping
malls dropped by 7% year-on-year, and the annual same store average daily foot
traffic declined by 20% year on year. In addition, during the period from January
25 to March 31, the Group reduced the rents (including property management
fees and promotion fees) of all vendors in its shopping malls by half, which
effectively relieved the business pressure of vendors, but meanwhile brought a
negative impact on the Group’s rental income growth expectations. Even so, the
Group took a series of countermeasures and spared no efforts throughout the year,
ensuring that 10 new shopping malls opened as scheduled. At the same time,
with continuous improving operation and management, the Group seized the
opportunity in domestic consumption recovery, and brought the occupancy rate
back to 97% by the end of the year. The rental income of 49 operating shopping
malls increased by 23% as a whole, while the revenue of same store slightly

decreased by 1.6% year-on-year.

The rental housing and smart service businesses showed their service value during
the pandemic. The businesses provided a more comfortable and safer living
environment through high-standard centralized epidemic prevention control
and sanitation as well as caring and quality home service, which enhanced their
relationship with house owners and tenants. The businesses not only sustained
growth but also laid themselves a solid foundation for providing value-added

services in the future.

In 2021, the Group will have 271 major projects on sale, among which 65 will
be brand-new projects, and 167 will launch a bunch of new products, covering
various demands for first home buyers, upgraders and commercial operators,
etc. The Group implements the differentiation strategy, and accurately plans its
products and business configuration according to the needs of different customers

in different regions, to seize opportunities in the volatile market.
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The Group (including joint ventures and associates) completed properties with
a total GFA of about 20 million square meters in 2020, and plans to complete
properties with a total GFA of approximately 27 million square meters in 2021,
most of which will be completed in the second half of the year. The project’s

construction and sales are in pace.

In terms of investment property, 10 shopping malls opened in 2020, including
Chongqing Jinsha Paradise Walk, Chengdu Shangcheng Paradise Walk, Suzhou
Xinghu Paradise Walk, and etc. Numbers of Paradise Walk will be open in
cities like Beijing, Hangzhou, Chongging and so on in 2021. As one of the core
business, Goyoo, the rental housing business, was opened and operated in tier-1
and tier-2 cities such as Beijing, Shanghai, Shenzhen, Hangzhou, Chengdu,
Nanjing, and Chongqing in 2020, and will be steadily promoted with the growth
of market demand in the future. The investment and development of the above
two businesses laid a solid foundation for the Group’s future investment property

rental growth.

Faced with increasingly fierce competition in the industry, the Group will always
stick to its original aspiration, and adhere to a sound financial management
strategy. The Group will maintain its advantages of low-cost and multi-channel
financing, maintain a reasonable and safe debt level, and strive for stable and
sustainable development. In the perspective of project investment, the Group will
continue to balance its cash flow and profit, control the cost of land acquisition
and improve the efficiency of capital use through external cooperation and

secondary market acquisition.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Madam Wu Yajun, aged 56, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on December 21, 2007, and is the Chairperson of the Board of the
Company. She is also a member of the Remuneration Committee, Environmental,
Social and Governance Committee and Investment Committee of the Company.
Madam Wu is the founder of the Group. She graduated from Northwestern
Polytechnical University (F§I6 T35 KE) majoring in thermal power torpedo
equipment design and obtained a Bachelor degree in Engineering in 1984.
Madam Wu serves as a member of the Standing Committee of the All-China
Federation of Industry & Commerce (2B L.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao, aged 54, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on June 3, 2011, and is the Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) of the
Group and a member of the Investment Committee of the Company. Mr. Shao
joined the Group in 2006. He graduated from Renmin University of China (/1
NERKEY) and obtained a Master degree in Economics in 1992. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Shao served as the Deputy General Manager of Hangyu Economic
Development Company (i 5 %8 5 % Jie A P22 F]) which is a subsidiary of
Beijing Capital Group (AL 50 H #FAIZESE M), and Beijing Xinlian Xiechuang
Real Estate Development Limited AU B 1 B o B AR A PR )
respectively. Mr. Shao was also the general manager of Beijing Zhongjing Yiyuan
Real Estate Development Limited (jt/'—_:\r': g g%%i&% PEEA R ﬁJ) and

the director of the real estate development division of Beijing Hualian Group (At

A ).

Mr. Zhao Yi, aged 44, was appointed as executive director of the Company on
March 18, 2015 and is the Chief Financial Officer of (“CFO”) the Group and a
member of the Investment Committee. He joined the Group in 2006 and has
served as the senior manager of Chonggqing Longfor, the financial controller of
Chengdu Longfor, the head of the Group's Financial Management Centre and
the general manager of the Department of Finance of the Group. Mr. Zhao
graduated from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law ("' A &8 EL7E
KE), majoring in international accounting and obtained a bachelor degree in
business administration. He is a member of China Institute of Certified Public

Accountants. Before joining the Group, he served at Pan-China (Chongqing)

Certified Public Accountants (E% PN a9 ).
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Mr. Wang Guangjian, aged 49, was appointed as executive director of the
Company on March 24, 2020. Mr. Wang is the senior vice president of the
Group and is also in charge of two core business, housing agency service and
housing decoration. Mr. Wang joined the Group in 2000. He obtained a Master
degree in Management from Chongqing University, majoring in Architectural
Economy Management in 2001. Currently Mr. Wang is a non-executive director
of Greentown Service Group Co. Ltd., which is listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK?”).

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mzr. Frederick Peter Churchouse, aged 71, was appointed as independent non-
executive director on November 1, 2009. Mr. Churchouse is also a member of
the Audit Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of
the Company. He has been involved in Asian securities and property investment
markets for more than 30 years. Currently, he is a private investor including
having his own family business, Portwood Company Limited. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Hysan Development Company Limited (a

company listed on the SEHK).

In 2004, Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse set up an Asian investment fund under
LIM Adpvisors. He acted as a director of LIM Advisors and as Responsible Officer
until the end of 2009. Prior to this, Mr. Churchouse worked at Morgan Stanley
as a managing director and advisory director from early 1988. He acted in a
variety of roles including head of regional research, regional strategist and head
of regional property research. Mr. Churchouse gained a Bachelor of Arts degree
and a Master of Social Sciences degree from the University of Waikato in New
Zealand.
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Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, aged 57, was appointed as independent non-
executive director on November 1, 2009. Mr. Chan is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and Environmental, Social and Governance Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Chan is the chairman of
Halcyon Capital Limited and Halcyon Securities Limited, which is engaged in
corporate finance and securities business in Hong Kong respectively. Mr. Chan
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree in Social
Sciences (majoring in Economics) and from the Hong Kong University of Science
& Technology with a Master degree in Business Administration. He worked for
the Stock Exchange and has been executive director of Haitong International
Securities Group Limited (formerly Taifook Securities Group Limited) and head
of its corporate finance division for 16 years. Currently he is an independent non-
executive director of Yuexiu REIT Asset Management Limited and China Conch
Venture Holdings Limited, both are listed on the SEHK.

Mr. Xiang Bing, aged 58, was appointed as independent non-executive director
on November 1, 2009, Mr. Xiang is a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Environmental, Social and Governance
Committee of the Company. He obtained a Doctoral degree in Accounting
from the University of Alberta in Canada. Mr. Xiang is the founding dean and
professor of the Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business in Beijing, China.
Currently, Mr. Xiang is the independent non-executive director of Sinolink
Worldwide Holdings Limited which listed on the SEHK.

Mr. Zeng Ming, aged 50, was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company on June 3, 2011. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. Mr. Zeng is currently the chairman of Academic
Council of Alibaba Group. He was the executive vice-president and Chief
Strategy Officer of Alibaba Group. Mr. Zeng obtained his Doctor of Philosophy
in International Business and Strategy from University of Illinois at Urbana-
Champaign, USA in 1998 and a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics from
Fudan University (8 K2 in 1991. Mr. Zeng was the professor of Strategy at
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business, Beijing China and a faculty member
at INSEAD, France.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Song Hailin, aged 48, is the vice president and the general manager of the
Research and Design Department of the Group. Mr. Song joined the Group in
2011. He obtained a PhD in Engineering from Tsinghua University in 2001.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Song was a visiting scholar at Massachusetts

Institute of Technology of the United States of America.

Mr. Su Xizhen, aged 46, is the vice president and the general manager of the
Operation Department of the Group. Mr. Su joined the Group in 2001. He

obtained a master degree in Management from Chongqing University in 2001.

Mr. Hu Ruoxiang, aged 44, is the vice president of the Group and is also in
charge of Brand & Marketing Department and Customer Research Department
of the Group. Mr. Hu joined the Group in 2015. He graduated from Tianjin
University (K KEE) with a Bachelor degree in Architectural Engineering in
1999. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Hu worked for China Overseas Property
Group Company Limited and Gemdale Group (<5 Hi4E &),

Madam Shen Ying, aged 45, is the general manager of the Human Resources
Department of the Group. Madam Shen joined the Group in 2016. She graduated
from Shanghai University (£ K%5%) and obtained a Bachelor degree in
Economics in 1998 majoring in international finance. Madam Shen obtained
her MBA at Boston College in 2004. Prior to joining the Group, Madam Shen
worked for Hewlett-Packard (HP) and General Electric (GE).

Madam Li Nan, aged 53, is the vice president and the general manager of the
Commercial Properties Department of the Group. Madam Li joined the Group in
2015. She graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology (3
FBHZ K2 and obtained a Bachelor degree in Engineering in 1989. In 2001,
Madam Li graduated from Wuhan University (B K ) and obrtained a Master
degree in Business Administration. Prior to joining the Group, Madam Li worked
for Capital Commercial Real Estate Management Consultation (Shanghai)
Company Limited (S8 I 55 2 & ek (_LI8) A FR/A Fl), Wuhan New
People’s Paradise Company Limited (2787 [ A2 44 & A FR /A7), Wuhan Yum
China Holdings, Inc. (R T BEAA FR/A 7)) and Pidemco Land (F i H
).

# %% Annual Report ||| 2020

63




64

HENER

CE:VN=E by

Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

WIBSEA: > B4R o BT E R - B
BT IR B G RRE o AR
CEBELEMAARER o WhAR -EEFR
SEREHREE > TUGERIG AR B TR -8
CERFDERIEE HRE BT A R
SEEETRE LA o IAARSE IR - ek g R
R B~ WERAT o

REER L > BUES 2 TR BRI AR mtiié%
FIAFLEBED S o RO bR =% —

$WA$%@o%ﬁt%~ﬂh~EE%%¢@
BB KR BUSRETREBLBAL - AAER
HIl > R AR e -

RS » BUE 4758 > 1S SE I RI A - Wi
TLREWI AR HL o SRAEA: A T — PU AR A AR 4R
M o SRR — UL LR RN SRR » BUG
TORT R B R A N T i VR
KEL S BufS T B (MBA) BHEA o A
AT > RSCE SRR i SR R
HipE B RAT -

PIERSEE: > BUAF30B  IEITEMAIAE -
KRR o BRI —F T MAALE -
BUBAE R TN R IR EE TR
BEATRELRA ; — T/ FRENGTHE
THERE - BAGAIHE TR LA o IAASEH
A BRI T B -

BB > BUAES 1 > AR - o
DAl RREEEE o RUTER R N AARSEE -

BB — NI RN R R TR -
AT AR 82 B A 5 — R LA RE N
REE BT R B R B2« AR
VAT - O STE A G U A {5 M

Bk > BUE4GR - WITEMAIAE -
TR R SRS MR © 85 SRR N

IMAARSEE o & e R RS UT TR ER » HfG TR
EHBRLRN TR CRERENFET K
B U S TR A B o AR
T > 8 Sk R A L i T4

Mr. Chang Keyi, aged 42, is the vice president and the general manager of the
Strategic Development Department of the Group, in charge of the Investment
Development Department of the Group. Mr. Chang joined the Group in 2007.
Mr. Chang graduated from Fudan University in 2001 with a bachelor’s degree
in environmental science and engineering; in 2004, he graduated from Fudan
University with a master’s degree in urban ecological planning and design.
Before joining the Group, Mr. Chang had worked in Shenggao Land Group and
Cushman & Wakefield.

Madam Song Yao, aged 52, is the vice president of the Group and is also in
charge of the Public Affairs Department and Legal Affairs Department of the
Group. Madam Song joined the Group in 2016. Madam Song graduated from
China University of Political Science and Law in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in

economic law. Before joining the Group, Madam Song worked in Shimao Group.

Mr. Zhang Xuzhong, aged 47, is the vice president of the Group and the general
manager of Zhejiang Longfor. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 2014. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Southeast University (R K %%) and obtained a Bachelor degree
in civil engineering in 1997. He graduated from the National University of South
Australia in 2004 and obtained a master degree in business administration. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked for China Overseas Group and China
Opverseas Property Group Co., Ltd.

Mr. Liu Xingwei, aged 39, serves as the vice president of the Group and the
general manager of the Northeast Company. Mr. Liu joined the Group in 2010.
Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology with a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering in 2006; he then graduated from Harbin Institute
of Technology with a master’s degree in structural engineering in 2008. Before

joining the Group, Mr. Liu had worked in China Resources Land.

Mr. Gu Xiuming, aged 51, serves as the vice president of the Group and the
general manager of the Beijing Company. Mr. Gu joined the Group in 2016. Mr.
Gu graduated from School of Civil Engineering and Architecture of Chongqing
Unversity with a bachelor’s degree in urban planning in 1991; he graduated from
Chonggqing University with a master’s degree in urban planning and design in

2001. Before joining the Group, Mr. Gu worked in Sincere Property.

Mr. Zeng Yiming, aged 46, is the vice president of the Group and is also in
charge of two core business, rental housing “Goyoo” and Smart Service. Mr.
Zeng joined the Group in 2006. Mr. Zeng graduated from Zhejiang University
with a bachelor’s degree in engineering management; in 2020, he graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong with master’s degree of business
administration in finance. Before joining the Group, Mr. Zeng worked in

Zhejiang Construction Engineering Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board of the Company is pleased to present the corporate governance report
for the year ended December 31, 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognizes the importance of corporate transparency and
accountability. The Company is committed in achieving a high standard of
corporate governance and leading the Group to attain better results and improve

its corporate value with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the year, the Company had adopted, applied and complied with the code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) contained in

Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except the following deviation:

During the year, the Company has not established Nomination Committee as
required by the provision A.5 of the Code. Madam Wu Yajun, Chairperson of the
Board, is responsible for the nomination and appointment of directors. Madam
Wu, as the Chairperson of the Board, will review and discuss with other Board
members on the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board from time to time based on the requirements
matching up with the Company’s corporate strategy, and identify individuals
suitably qualified to become board members and make recommendations to the
Board on individuals nominated for directorships. The Board is of view that
Chairperson responsible for the nomination directorship is more appropriate
to reflect the Company’s status quo than the establishment of Nomination

Committee.

NOMINATION POLICY

According to the actual situation of the Company, the Board of the Company
is of the view that having the Chairperson be responsible for the nomination
directorship is more appropriate than the establishment of Nomination
Committee at current period. The Company has adopted a nomination policy.
The Board of the Company will review the existing nomination policy which

provides for the nomination of directors by the Chairperson, from time to time.

During the process of evaluating and selecting candidates for directorship,
qualifications including professional skills and experience, and willingness
to devote adequate time to discharge duties as member of the Board, will be
considered. Further, the candidates of independent director would be considered

with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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CHAIRPERSON AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Madam Wu Yajun serves as the Chairperson of the Board whereas Mr. Shao
Mingxiao, an executive director, serves as the CEO of the Company. The
Board currently comprises four executive directors (including Madam Wu)
and four independent non-executive directors and therefore has a fairly strong
independence element in its composition. The Chairperson of the Board
should be responsible for the management of the Board while the CEO should
be responsible for the day-to-day management of business. The division of

responsibilities should be set out in writing as below:

Responsibilities of the Chairperson of the Board:

1. To provide leadership for the Board; to ensure that the Board works
effectively and discharges its responsibilities; to ensure that good corporate

governance practices and procedures are established.

2. To attend annual general meeting and ensure that issues raised by
shareholders are answered by the chairperson of the Board committees, or

the appropriate alternate on the meeting.

3. To lead the formulation of corporate strategies, mid-to-long term plans of

development and significant organizational and structural adjustments.

4. To lead the formulation of an investment and financing decision system.
5. To provide leadership in respect of corporate risk and crisis management.
6. To lead the recruitment and appointment of senior management and Board

members of the Company; to participate under the recommendation of the
remuneration committee in decision making in respect of remuneration
and bonuses of, and share award scheme for, directors and senior
management, and other material changes and reforms in human resources

management system and remuneration system.

7. To provide leadership in respect of corporate culture.
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Corporate Governance Report

Responsibilities of the CEO:

1. To provide leadership in the daily corporate operation, the execution of

corporate strategies and achieving the objectives of plans.

2. To establish and continuously improve the management system and

management team.

3. To lead the management team and continue to retain and train

management talents.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises eight directors, including four executive directors
namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr. Zhao Yi and Mr. Wang
Guangjian and four independent non-executive directors namely Mr. Frederick
Peter Churchouse, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Zeng
Ming.

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company and
overseeing the Group’s business, strategic decisions and performances, as well
as performing the corporate governance duties, including: (a) developing and
reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development
of directors and senior management; (c) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(d) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and directors; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report). During the year, the Board has reviewed the
Code of Conduct of the Group, assessed the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, assessed the training needs of the directors and senior
management and arranged relevant trainings accordingly, and reviewed the status
of compliance with Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Board was satisfied

with the effectiveness of the Company’s corporate governance policy.
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The Board has delegated the management the day-to-day management and
administrative functions as they think fit and provides guidance of the rights
of management. The Board will review the relevant delegation from time to
time to ensure that clear guidance and rights have been provided and the proper
reporting procedures have been complied. In addition, the Board has also
established various Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities
to the Board committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”),
the environmental, social and governance committee (the “ESG Committee”)
and the investment committee (the “Investment Committee”) (together, the
“Board Committees”). All the Board Committees perform their distinct roles in

accordance with their respective terms of reference.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there are no financial, businesses, family

or other material relationships among members of the Board.

All of the independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
three years. None of them holds any other offices in the Company or any of its
subsidiaries except that each of them has been granted options under the Option
Scheme adopted by the Company on November 1, 2009, details of which are
set out in the Directors’ Report. The Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors a confirmation of his independence in
accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the

independent non-executive directors are independent.

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the

requirements of the business of the Company.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Policy”) since August
19, 2013 which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity on the
Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board. Pursuant to the Policy,
the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a
number of aspects, including but not limited to professional experience, culture
and education background, skill and knowledge, gender, age and length of

service.

The Board will review the Policy from time to time to ensure its continued
effectiveness. At present, the Board has not set measurable objectives to

implement the Policy.
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A RS RSB T I U S — RO During the year under review, the Company held four Board meetings and one
& T A& E ST Rk - general meeting, the attendance of each director is as follows:

HEEETERRY TN /e Ve

AR AR EEHR
No. of Board meetings No. of general meetings
attended/Total no. Attended/Total no.
£ Directors of Board meetings of general meetings
HITEHF Executive directors
e Wu Yajun 414 /1
AR B Shao Mingxiao 4/4 11
Pk Zhao Yi 4/4 1/1
Tl v Wang Guangjian NP 3/3 11
ZEHHYL k) Li Chaojiang et ? 1/1 -
Wi frESE Independent non-executive directors
Frederick Peter Frederick Peter Churchouse
Churchouse 4/4 1/1
B s Chan Chi On, Derek 4/4 1/1
LT Xiang Bing 4/4 1/1
n& Zeng Ming 4/4 /1

MfEEL Eob@ed it —F ZRAE S I B RS Note 1 On March 24, 2020, Mr. Wang Guangjian was appointed as an executive director of the
RAFYATHES - Company.

Bfet2 AWLSeA i R D FAE S TR HEHEA L Note 2 On March 24, 2020, Mr. Chaojiang resigned as an executive director of the Company.
AMATES -

FMERS REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

ARFAER ZFFNFET—A—HRHMZE R The Company established the Remuneration Committee on November 1,
B o S RE I IR BB Bk 4R SE A R <F ISR 2009 with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in
B.1.2 B0 (9 A 52 DA T AT YR A o S paragraph B.1.2 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Z B E MO s A AR B B Remuneration Committee include evaluating and making recommendations to
T 22 SR8 > DA Bk BrBOR DLE R R the Board on the remuneration system and package of the directors and senior
HL7 WY B2 R 1) o o 9 o A SR o B management, and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
N IR B G — AT ES N =AEE developing remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee consists of one
Fre R - RISt WIgses: - IR executive director and three independent non-executive directors, namely Madam
H RBRAE S o GRS A E R B e L o Wu Yajun, Mr. Zeng Ming, Mr. Xiang Bing and Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek. Mr.

Zeng Ming is the Chairperson of Remuneration Committee.
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ERFHFMERGNER T =K - g LERE The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year to conduct a
N B BT AR S BRI R D review on the remuneration structure of the directors and senior management and

FE - N B&Z AN aRNTE a review on the restricted share award scheme. The attendance of each member is
as follows:

R BRI 2 R IR
ZHRMEA Name of members No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
EHICS Wu Yajun 3/3
5573 Chan Chi On, Derek 33
i Xiang Bing 3/3
U Zeng Ming 3/3
ZSRR YT (k) Li Chaojiang M) 1/1

fifkn ZgyrseA i — & - FE=H AU H BHERAT Note 1 On March 24, 2020, Mr. Chaojiang resigned as an executive director and a member of the
ERLRFMERGERE - Remuneration Committee of the Company.

SRR o A5 T Y BRI R O AR S R SR I Details of the remuneration of the directors during the year are set out in note
349 > BRI RN RS E 49 to the consolidated financial statements. The remuneration of the senior

management during the year falls within the following bands:

AE

Number of Individuals
T i
(& et S 0F) (&R S AT)
Total Total
remuneration remuneration
(including (excluding
share-based share-based
payment) payment)
6,000,000%7C % 7,000,000 7T HK$6,000,000 to HK$7,000,000 - -
7,000,000%5 7C.Z8,000,000 35 7T HK$7,000,000 to HK$8,000,000 - -
8,000,000% JC 29,000,000 T HK$8,000,000 to HK$9,000,000 - -
9,000,000 7C 410,000,000 7T HK$9,000,000 to HK$10,000,000 - -
10,000,000% 7T LA F Over HK$10,000,000 11 11
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on November 1, 2009 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the Code as set out in paragraph
C.3.3 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control and risk management systems of the Group and nominating
and monitoring external auditors. The Audit Committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek, Mr.
Frederick Peter Churchouse, and Mr. Xiang Bing and is chaired by Mr. Chan Chi
On, Derek. In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the chairperson
of the Audit Committee possesses the appropriate professional and accounting

qualifications.

The Audit Committee held two meetings with the senior management
and independent auditor of the Company during the year, to consider the
independence and audit scope of independent auditor, and to review and discuss
the risk management and internal control systems, interim and annual financial
statements of the Company and the opinion and report of independent auditor

before submitting to the Board for their approval.

The attendance of each member is as follows:

AE S Vi e
ZEEA Name of members No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
B % Chan Chi On, Derek 2/2
Frederick Peter Churchouse ~ Frederick Peter Churchouse 2/2
s Xiang Bing 22
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
COMMITTEE

The Company established the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee
(the “ESG Committee”) on August 26, 2020 with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the ESG
Committee include advise and assist the Board in managing matters relating
to Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”), including but not limited to governance, policies,
initiatives, performance and reporting.

The ESG Committee consists of one executive director and three independent
non-executive directors, namely Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek,
Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse and Mr. Xiang Bing. Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek is
the chairperson of the ESG Committee.

During the year, the ESG Committee held one meeting to formulate the
Company’s ESG strategies and directions.

IR A &2 B ek nst bt - The attendance of each member is as follows:
HR G 2 Rk
ZEMEA Name of members No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
R Wu Yajun 11
N Chan Chi On, Derek 1/1
Frederick Peter Churchouse ~ Frederick Peter Churchouse 1/1
JHIT Xiang Bing 1/1

BUZAT

BB 2 B E S M EL A AT AR
RS YN SR PiE e se.£ TORTHERN
BRI T stsc B ok - BB B @B h R
+ - HRBAEESEAE R B - MR - BRTY

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

The Investment Committee reports directly to the Board and is responsible for
investment proposal (including but not limited to appraising land acquisition as
well as making land purchase decisions) submitted by the business development
department of the headquarters and the regional companies. The Investment

PRI IR RS AL - Committee currently consists of Madam Wu Yajun, Mr. Shao Mingxiao, Mr.
Zhao Yi, Mr. Hu Ruoxiang, Mr. Su Xizhen and Mr. Chang Keyi.
WAER > WEZB O A T 4RE®E - & Lt The Investment Committee held 24 meetings during the year, to discuss and
SosfTE H EAT s MBI - L P BKEER make investment decision on 898 projects. The attendance of each member is as
e R follows:
HU B, 2 R
ZEMA Name of members No. of meetings attended/Total no. of meetings
S Wu Yajun 23/24
AR A e Shao Mingxiao 23/24
Ak Zhao Yi 23/24
ik Hu Ruoxiang 24/24
i Su Xizhen 24/24
2 Chang Keyi 24124
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ER A ERRE DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

T W PR A R A A [ 1) B B B > AR ) To ensure that the directors are aware of the latest development relevant to the
EAEFRLHELEEERI - TR ARES operation of the Group, the Company has arranged and funded suitable training
B REA BB 2R MBS » A5 T for the directors. During the year, relevant directors have attended the corporate

BN IR > DL s T B = governance related training organized by the Company. Certain directors also
7 VA T RS M 5 0 B T S e Y B ) attended business seminars, and seminars organized by the accounting firm and
r o the third party institutes on directors” duties and development in securities laws.

ANFE S E NN R R The Company has received from all Directors records of their continuous
Rz sk - ABIFERESIRN T % professional development trainings during the year, details of which are set out in
below table:

EEE

AR T
FBZEM  EWARNT  HREERRE
BEmaAEr PRI REFRE

Reading
regulatory Attending
updates or training on
information Visiting regulatory

relevant to the Company’s  development

the Company projects in  and directors’
or its business the PRC duties
Riifft Madam Wu Yajun v v v
AR IS 2 Mr. Shao Mingxiao v v v
kA Mr. Zhao Yi v v v
EREIA: (R R R Mr. Wang Guangjian
=HZ TN HERT) (appointed on March 24, 2020) v v v
k3 PING e e 2 3 Mr. Li Chaojiang
=AY HEHE) (resigned on March 24, 2020) v
Frederick Peter Churchouse/G2:  Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
7 e Mzr. Chan Chi On, Derek 4 v
A Mr. Xiang Bing v v
WS Mr. Zeng Ming v v
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APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Given that the Nomination Committee has not been established, the Board as
a whole will be responsible for the selection and approval of the new directors
and assessing the independence of the independent non-executive directors. The
independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of 3 years. Under
the articles of associations of the Company, one-third of the directors for the time
being (or if their number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third) will retire from office by rotation provided that every
directors shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years. The Board will consider the factors including the expertise,

experience and integrity of the candidates when selecting the new directors.

On March 24, 2020, Mr. Li Chaojiang resigned as an executive director and Mr.

Wang Guangjian was appointed as an executive director of the Company.

The shareholders of the Company may propose a person for election as a director
in accordance with articles of association of the Company and applicable law,
details of which are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com set out
in the “Procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for election as director of

the Company”.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the remunerations paid or payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu in respect of its audit services and non-audit services are
RMBS,144,000 and RMB2,112,000, respectively.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flow for that period. The directors consider that the financial statements
have been prepared in conformity with all appropriate accounting standards
and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and
reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the Board and the management.
The directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. The Directors have prepared the financial statements

of the Company on a going concern basis.
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The statements of the auditors of the Group about their reporting responsibilities
on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section headed

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 105 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The directors are responsible for the maintenance of an effective system of
internal control. The Group has established internal audit department which is
responsible for the independent review of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control system and for the periodic report of the auditing result to the Audit
Committee and the Board. The Company has also engaged external professional

agent to re-assess and evaluate the internal control system of the Company.

During the year, all the functional departments in the Group constantly
strengthened their daily supervision and improved their internal management,
respectively. The Group had launched certain measures and improvement in
various management systems to enhance its risk management and internal control
including: Administrative Principles for the Group’s Non-construction Tender
(B I @i A B E P IR A ) ), Administrative System for the Group’s
Major Collective Complaints and Key Complaints Risk Report ((% /B E X #F7F
R Bis# 1 v I B 7 4R PE R JE ) ), Management Measures for Self-inspection
of the Group’s Commercial Solicitation ( (5E B i 314 7 1 4 L (F 5 2 HF
%)), Specifications of Risk Management for Public Opinions and Customer
Complaints of the Group’s Goyoo Rental Housing of the Group ({45 B i B £
1B LA G B B PEMI#E) ), Administrative System for the Operational Risks
and Breakpoint of the Group’s Sales Projects ( (£ [ 4 B2 7/ 5 H # 1 Jal b
R = IEEEPEHIED), Administrative System for the Operational Risks and
Breakpoint for the Group’s Goyoo ({5 Bt /5 75 JBU g K 15 11 B E PRI D),
Administrative System for the Group’s user account and role authority ((%E
HIFHE 5 LA € FEIREFE R 2 )), Code of Conduct regarding Information
Security of Employees ((4E[B] 8 {5 5 %217 /341#)), Measures of Human
Resources Data Safety Management of the Group ((EBI N ] GIRBIF L 25
FEAFS)), Engineering Quality Management System of the Group (5[ LF2
HAEEHHIE)).
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During the year, the internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent and objective review of operation and internal control of the

Company, and carried out a series of audit projects, which includes:

Dalian company regular audit

Zhuhai company regular audit

Jinan company regular audit

Jiangxi company regular audit

Changsha company regular audit
Shenzhen-Hong Kong company regular audit
Fuzhou company regular audit

Beijing company regular audit

D e A o

Wuhan company regular audit

,_.
e

Shanghai-Jiangsu company regular audit

—_
—_

Western area curtain wall project audit; and

Ju—
NS}

Shanghai-Jiangsu commercial income project audit

The Company has engaged Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP Beijing Branch in 2020 and appointed its corporate risk
management services department to assess and evaluate the internal control
of the Company. The scope of re-assessment includes internal control and
protection measures related to our business risks and the control of business
flow. Our business covered risk related to the economic fluctuation and change
of policy, risk related to strategy positioning and business portfolio, risk related
to mis-judgment of real estate market cycle, cash flow risk, risk related to
urban location and plot selection, supplies and inventory risk, risks related to
organisational change, risk related to residential product positioning, risks
related to digitization transformation, risks related to project delivery. The
business flow control review is selected based on the overall risk of the Group,
and the assessment scope includes sales compliance and marketing procurement
review. The re-assessment report of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Certified Public
Accountants LLP demonstrates the Group has established key internal control
and process within the selected scope of work to respond to relevant risks. The

overall control condition of the Company is good.

All of the above mentioned internal and external audit reports and the follow-up
measures have been reported to the Audit Committee and the Board. The Board
is of opinion that the internal control system of the Group for the year ended
December 31, 2020 is effective and sufficient.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is the basic and necessary factor for achieving strategic
goals of the Group. As such, the Group has established the Risk Management
System of Longfor Group, which specifies the Group’s risk management
organizational system, detailed responsibility, overall procedures of risk

management, risk assessment method and regular risk reporting mechanism.

Risk management organizational system: The risk management organizational
system of Longfor Group consists of three basic lines of defense under the
leadership of the Board, namely the management and staff of business
departments as the first line of defense; the risk management team consisting
of the general manager of business departments of the Group with the CEO as
team leader and CFO as deputy team leader as the second line of defense; and
the Audit Committee and internal audit centre as the third line of defense. The
Board shall be the ultimate accountability body of risk management, and shall
have the right to provide guidance and make final decisions on the policy, system
and responding plan of risk management of the Group, conduct assessment on
the risk appetite of the Group and control the balance between the realization of
strategic goals and risk management. The Audit Committee and internal audit
centre are authorized by the Board to advise on and monitor the implementation
of risk management of the Group and review the annual risk management report.
The risk management team is responsible for the ongoing improvement of risk
management system as well as the implementation of management procedures
including risk identification, assessment, responding plan and risk management
report, covering the annual update of risk database, follow-up and monitoring
of the implementation of responding plan and the preparation and reporting of
the risk management report. The business departments are risk owners and shall

manage and monitor their respective risk exposure.

Major risk management procedures: Through various interviews and
communications with the management members of different business units
and the headquarter of the Company, the management procedures have been
formulated, which include target setting, risk identification, risk assessment, risk

response and supervision and risk reporting.

. Target setting: Target setting is the first step of risk management. The
Company shall firstly set the annual target in order to identify and assess
the risks affecting the realization of the target and take necessary action
to control such risks. The targets of the Company are set in four aspects,
namely strategic target, operational target, compliance target and financial

target.
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U Risk identification: The identification of risk events from the operational
activities and important business procedures of each business unit shall be
conducted in bottom-up and top-down approaches through questionnaire,
group discussion, expert consultation, policy analysis and industry
benchmarking. Risk database shall be established and updated annually.
Risk owner and responding measures shall be determined for risks
identified.

. Risk assessment: The Company shall rank the risks identified through
assessment based on vulnerability and impact. Risk management team
shall conduct annual review on the risk assessment criteria (vulnerability
and effect) and report to the Audit Committee and final approved by the
Board.

o Risk response: Based on the result of risk assessment, the business units
of the Group shall propose the risk management and control measures
and recommendations for the risks involved in various aspects such as
improvement of business procedures and internal control system as well as
control of key procedures, and formulate relevant responding plans. Such
management and control plans shall be implemented in daily operation in

the form of management regulation.

U Risk reporting: The Company has established the systems of annual
risk management report and special risk management report. The risk
management team shall prepare the annual report and special report with

the support of internal audit department.

In early 2021, the Group conducted the risk identification and assessment for
2021 and mapped out the risks faced by Longfor Group in 2021, which include
15 medium level risks and 10 low level risks. The Group also determined the
top ten risk 2021 and formulated the responding plan through the assessment
based on vulnerability and effect. The top ten risk included risk related to
the economic fluctuation, change of policy and unexpected impact, cash flow
risk, risk related to urban location and plot selection, risk related to strategy
positioning and business portfolio, supplies and inventory risk, risks related
to organisational change, risks related to project delivery, risks related to
digitization transformation, business operation risk and risk to talent supply,
risks of establishment and competition of new core business unit for Housing
Rental and Sale and Housing Decoration. Details of risks and responding plans
were submitted by the Audit Committee and confirmed by the Board for
approval. During the year, the Group monitored the implementation of risk
management based on the risk responding plans and prepared a report at the end

of the year.
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The Board is of opinion that the risk management system of the Group for the
year ended December 31, 2020 is effective and sufficient.

The Board shall be responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and shall review the effectiveness of such systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance

against material misstatement or loss.

DISCLOSURE INSIDE INFORMATION

Inside Information Disclosure Working Group (hereinafter referred to as “Inside
Information Working Group”) is a working group established under the Board
of the Company, which is responsible for the administration of inside information
disclosure.

The Composition of Inside Information Working Group

U The team leader of the Inside Information Working Group is the chief

executive officer of the Group.

U The members of the Inside Information Working Group include: the
chairman of the Board, the chief financial officer, the company secretary,
the officer in charge of Capital Markets Centre, the officer in charge
of Public Affairs and Media, and the officer in charge of the Legal
Department.

. The secretary of the Inside Information Working Group is the company

secretary, who is responsible for communicating and reporting between the
Inside Information Working Group and the Board.
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The Terms of References for the Inside Information Working
Group

o The Inside Information Working Group is the daily execution unit that
is engaged in the preliminary determination and handling of inside

information, whilst the Board is the decision making unit.

J The Inside Information Working Group conducts proper inquiry, confirms
fact, preliminarily assesses sensitive informations’ significant to the

Company, and timely reports to the Board where necessary.

U The Inside Information Working Group regularly review the effectiveness
and execution of the processes. It also conducts training from time to time,
so as to ensure that the staffs of the Company that may be exposed to inside
information are aware of the disclosure liability and handling principles for

inside information.

Handling Procedures That May Involve Inside Information

As to the business information that is reasonably expected in becoming inside
information (including, but not limited to acquisitions and mergers, movement

in share capital, and organizational restructuring etc.):

. The relevant staff capturing such information shall report to the Inside
Information Working Group promptly, and has the duty to keep such

information confidential;

U The Inside Information Working Group shall conduct proper
investigation and confirmation of facts for the said information. Where
necessary, it will make preliminary judgment upon consulting professional
opinions and report to the Board promptly. The relevant disclosure matters

will be conducted by the company secretary and the Legal Department;

o If the said information is involved with Safe Harbours, the Inside
Information Working Group shall supervise and ensure the confidentiality
of the information. If it is noted that the confidentiality of the information
has not been preserved, it shall report to the Board and disclose the

information as soon as reasonably practicable.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules as the guidelines for the directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company. Upon specific enquiries of all the directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended December 31, 2020 in relation to their securities dealings,

if any.

The Model Code has extended to be applicable to senior management and
relevant employees who are likely to be in possession of inside information of the

Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Madam Zhang Lei joined the Group in 2008, and is an employee of the
Company. She was appointed as company secretary on August 21, 2015. Madam
Zhang graduated from the Central University of Finance and Economics with
a bachelor’s degree in international finance. She is a member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an Affiliated Person of the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. According to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules, the company secretary has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant

professional training during the year.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The management of the Company believes that effective and proper investor
relations play a vital role in enhancing the corporate transparency as well as
establishing market confidence. As such, the Company has adopted a stringent
internal control system to ensure true, accurate, complete and timely disclosure
of relevant information pursuant to requirements of relevant laws and regulations
in order to ensure all investors equally access to information. The Company has a
Capital Markets Center to serve as an important communication channel between
the Company and its shareholders, investors and analysts. To strive for effective
communication and transparency of the Company, the personnel in charge have
frequent contacts with the shareholders, investors and analysts through various
channels such as social networking site, telephone and email. On-site visits to the
projects of the Company have been arranged for the fund managers and analysts
to create opportunities for direct communication with investors and to provide
the latest development of the Company as well as information of the PRC real

property industry to the capital market in time.

# %% Annual Report ||| 2020




82

B3 5 R o

Corporate Governance Report

WA AR K G IR B R AR — (A A 2
HEERG B  c EREREEFZAGE
i (S > RIS R B G %R E) RALN RINE
AR ZE A A ) 1 PR AR A7 R BRI R
B b [0A TR SR 4 B o B 0 4 A A
W TR RAR D o FE B FEANH S HEATY
MR HERE L HEGF MG HE SRR A
Bl o IR L S E o i /N e
www.longfor.coml i A/ ) FEH5 85 e R ~ Bf
479?%??{‘4 ARG R E B RS
s DI AR R o

i B Wi

AR B AR R A VS S BT B S R B R 15 5, B
A BERER ARV E RS A - &
SN TEIVERBRER ARG A EE
e~ HE RO > BORMBOR - BUEH RAREE
T A A P

SR AR A BB R 3R I Al 2 D R I
(g

AR P W B T B K
o BT —BimL b R R DR A A AR A
(WA A 7 SR 2 B SEHE) 140 2 —
R AT 2 25 MO ) 0 A A
ST » BREH TR G
DLBSA BRI L Lok e
TR BRI A BT o O B R A
bR R AT T R

MR > AERESR AL At A BRR g
1144 K - B A A B SO o A ) o

BERNLAES

In addition, the annual general meeting also provides a useful forum for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairperson of the Board,
as well as chairperson of each of the Board Committees, or in their absence,
members of the respective Committees, and the external auditors of the
Company, is available to answer questions from shareholders at annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings of the Company. As such, investors’
understanding of and confidence in the Company can be enhanced. At the
annual general meeting of the Company held on June 16, 2020, the chairman
of the Board and Chairman of each of the board committees attended and
answered questions from the shareholders. The Company maintains a website at
www.longfor.com, where information and updates on the Company’s business
developments and operations, financial information, corporate governance and

other information are available for public access.

Information Disclosure

The Group discloses information in compliance with the securities regulations of
the SEHK, and publishes periodic reports and announcements to the public in
accordance with relevant laws and regulations. The primary focus of the Group
endeavours to ensure information disclosure is timely, fair, accurate, truthful and
complete, thereby enabling shareholders, investors as well as the public to make

rational and informed decisions.

Shareholders’ Rights to Convene an Extraordinary General Meeting
and Propose Resolutions

The Board may whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings.
Any one or more Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the

requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association or the Cayman
Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move new resolutions at general
meetings. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company
to convene a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the

above paragraph.

Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director

are available on the Company’s website www.longfor.com.

Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries may be put to the Board through the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong at 15/F., 1 Duddell Street, Central, Hong Kong.

Constitutional documents

During the year, there is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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The Board of directors (the “Board”) hereby present the annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the
year ended December 31, 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in the property development, commercial properties, rental housing,

smart service, housing agency service and home decoration service.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating results for the year by principal
activities is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements of the

Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the

Group on page 113.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business and performance highlights of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out
in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections of this annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties
that the Group may be facing can be found in the “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in note 53(b) to the
consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important events affecting the
Group that have occurred since the end of the financial year ended December 31,
2020 are set out in note 56 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
discussions on the Group’s environment policies and compliance with relevant
laws and regulations which have a significant impact on the Group can be found
in the section headed “Environmental Policies” and “Compliance with Laws
and Regulations” of this Report of the Directors. An analysis of the Group’s key

performance indicators are as follows:
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SEBE RO MR
Year-on-Year
2020 2019 Growth
A Contracted sales
ARAESZE (N REET) Contracted sales (RMB billion) 270.61 242.50 11.6%
Bl B AR (T K) Contracted GFA (sq.m.) 16,162,000 14,238,097 13.5%
FEMEER N REAET) Key financial information (RMB billion)
WA Revenue 184.55 151.03 22.2%
EA Gross profit 54.03 50.80 6.4%
i B S I R i A Profit attributable to shareholders 20.00 18.34 9.1%
ANV TS i 2 Core net profit (Excluding effects, such as
SRR () minority interests and valuation gains) 18.69 15.55 20.2%
FEMHILE Key financial ratios
EEVIES Gross profit margin 29.3% 33.6%
(e NGy TGN STH) Earnings per share (basic), (RMB) 3.41 3.13
HREAZ LR (R Core earnings per share (basic), (RMB) 3.184 2.66
FAGEEARLR > £ Net debt-to-equity ratio, at the end of year 46.5% 51.0%
TG - R Average cost of borrowing, per annum 4.39% 4.54%
——
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DIVIDEND

The Board proposed the payment of a final dividend of RMB1.03 per share for
the year ended December 31, 2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, June 25, 2021. The proposed final
dividend shall be paid on Thursday, July 15, 2021 after approval by shareholders
of the Company at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(the “AGM”). The proposed final dividend shall be declared in RMB and paid
in Hong Kong dollars. The final dividend payable in Hong Kong dollars will be
converted from RMB at the average middle rate of RMB to Hong Kong dollars as
announced by the People’s Bank of China for the period from Tuesday, June 15,
2021 to Wednesday, June 16, 2021.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to shareholders of the
Company to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a stable dividend policy to
achieve such goal. In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining
the dividend amount, the Board would take into account the Group’s results
of operations, earnings performance, cashflows, financial condition, future
prospects, as well as statutory, regulatory and debt covenant restrictions on the
payment of dividends, and other factors that the Board may consider relevant.
Whilst the Board will review from time to time for determination on proposed
dividend with the above factors taken into account, there can be no assurance that

dividends will be declared or paid in any particular amount for any given period.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Thursday, June 10,
2021 to Wednesday, June 16, 2021 both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares of the Company will be effected. In order to determine
the identity of members who are entitled to attend and vote at the annual
general meeting to be held on Wednesday, June 16, 2020 all share transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, June 9, 2021.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, June
23,2021 to Friday, June 25, 2021 (both days inclusive) during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, June 22, 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment during the year are

set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

BORROWINGS

Details of the borrowings are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements of the Group.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group during the year is set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

As at December 31, 2020, the distributable reserve of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB1,353,509,000.
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DONATIONS

The donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
RMB170,078,700 (2019: approximately RMB64,639,000).

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A five years financial summary of the Group is set out on page 320 of this annual

report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2020, revenue attributable to the largest
customer of the Group amounted to approximately 0.03% of the total revenue
in the year and the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than

0.11% of the Group’s revenue in the year.

For the year ended December 31, 2020, purchases attributable to the largest
supplier of the Group amounted to approximately 3.5% of the total purchases in
the year and the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 7.5%

of the Group’s purchases in the year.

So far as the Board of the Company is aware, neither the Directors, their associates
nor any shareholder of the Company which owns more than 5% of the Company’s

share capital had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

The Group keeps a high standard in selecting reputable and reliable suppliers
and contractors, in order to meet our own quality, safety, environmental and
product criteria. During the year ended December 31, 2020 and up to the date
of this report, the Group maintained good relationship with its suppliers and

contractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEE

Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the Group
regards the personal development of its employees as highly importance. The
Group strives to motivate its employees with a clear career path and opportunities
for advancement and improvement of their skills. In addition, the Group has also
adopted share option scheme and share award scheme to recognize and reward the

contribution of the employees to the growth and development of the Group.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in note

33 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

PLACING OF EXISTING SHARES AND TOP-UP
SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL
MANDATE

On December 2, 2020, the Company, Charm Talent International Limited
(“Charm Talent”), a controlling shareholder of the Company and China
International Capital Corporation Hong Kong Securities Limited, Goldman
Sachs (Asia) L.L.C.; The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited,;
and Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc (the “Placing Agents”) entered
into a placing and subscription agreement pursuant to which (i) Charm Talent
agreed to appoint the Placing Agents and the Placing Agents agreed to act as
agent of Charm Talent and to use its best efforts to procure purchasers for up to
100,000,000 existing shares (“Placing Shares”) of the Company at HK$47.00
per Placing Share; and (ii) Charm Talent agreed to subscribe for up to 50,000,000
new shares of the Company (“Subscription Shares”) at HK$47.00 per

Subscription Share.

The completion of the placing of 100,000,000 existing shares at HK$47.00 per
Placing Share to no less than six independent placees and the subscription of a
total of 50,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$47.00 per Subscription
Share by Charm Talent took place on December 4, 2020 and December 10,
2020, respectively. The Company considered that the placing and subscription
was the most efficient method to raise further capital, to broaden the shareholder
and capital base and to strengthen the financial position of the Company. The
Company received total net proceeds from the subscription of approximately
HK$2,331,000,000 and used the net proceeds as general working capital of the
Group. Details can be referred to the Company’s announcements dated December
2,2020.
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DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this annual

report are:

Executive Directors

Madam Wu Yajun (Chairperson)
Mr. Shao Mingxiao

Mzr. Zhao Yi

Mr. Wang Guangjian NV

Mr. Li Chaojiang ™2

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Frederick Peter Churchouse
Mr. Chan Chi On, Derek

Mr. Xiang Bing

Mr. Zeng Ming

Mr. Wang Guangjian was appointed as an executive director of the Company on March 24,
2020.

Mr. Li Chaojiang resigned as an executive director of the Company on March 24, 2020 due to

work rearrangement.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, Mr. Zhao Yi, Mr.
Frederick Peter Churchouse and Mr. Zeng Ming shall retire from office and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general

meeting.

Each of the directors of the Company has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a period of three years. None of the directors of the Company
proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable
within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory

compensation.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The articles of association of the Company provides that the directors shall be
indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company against all actions,
costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain by them
or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution
of their duty or supposed duty provided that this indemnity shall not extend to
any mactter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said

persons.

In addition, liability insurance for directors and senior management of the
Company is maintained by the Company with appropriate coverage for certain

legal actions against the Directors.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the directors and those of the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2020 are set out in note

49 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its parent company, its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries were a party and in which a director of the
Company or his connected entities had a material interest, either directly or

indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at December 31, 2020, save as disclosed under the section headed
“Compliance with Non-competition Undertakings by the Controlling
Shareholders and the Directors”, none of the directors of the Company are
considered to be in businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either

directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or subsisted for
the year ended December 31, 2020.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, at no time
during the year were there any rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such
rights exercised by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the Company,
its parent company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party that

would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS BY THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS AND THE DIRECTORS

The Company has entered into the non-competition deed dated November 1,
2009 with the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Charm Talent
International Limited (“Charm Talent”), Junson Development International
Limited (“Junson Development”), Silver Sea Assets Limited (“Silver Sea”),
Silverland Assets Limited (“Silverland”), Madam Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu")
and Mr. Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) pursuant to which Madam Wu, Charm Talent
and Silver Sea have jointly and severally undertaken, and Mr. Cai, Junson
Development and Silverland have jointly and severally undertaken, not to
compete with the Group. Each of Madam Wu, Mr. Cai, Charm Talent, Junson
Development, Silver Sea and Silverland has also undertaken with the Company to
procure that any investment or commercial opportunity relating to any property
business or investment or management in the People’s Republic of China that
they or any of their respective affiliates identify or propose or that is offered or
presented to them by a third party, be first referred to the Company in accordance

with the terms of the non-competition deed.
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On January 29, 2013, Mr. Cai notified the Company that he intended to
participate in the development and investment of a project site in Chengdu for
his personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity A”). In accordance
with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Mr. Cai has provided necessary
information on the New Opportunity A, including without limitation,
details and nature of the project site, its geographical location and amount of
proposed investment to the independent board committee of the Company
consisting of all the independent non-executive Directors (the “Independent
Board Committee”). A meeting of the Independent Board Committee was
held on February 5, 2013. Having taken into account, among other things,
the Company’s current investment strategy, the nature of the project, the
development and architectural constraints of the project site, growth and earning
potentials of the New Opportunity A, the independent non-executive directors
have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the Company and the

Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity A.

On June 7, 2016, Madam Wu notified the Company that she intended to
participate in the development and investment of a medical project site in
Chongging for her personal investment purposes (the “New Opportunity B”).
In accordance with the terms of the Non-competition Deed, Madam Wu has
provided necessary information on the New Opportunity B, including without
limitation, details and nature of the project site, its geographical location
and amount of proposed investment to the Independent Board Committee. A
meeting of the Independent Board Committee was held on June 7, 2016. Having
taken into account, among other things, the Company’s current investment
strategy, the relevant expertise and experience in medical and healthcare area,
the cooperation with a medical/healthcare institution, growth and earning
potentials of the New Opportunity B, the independent non-executive Directors
have unanimously resolved that it is in the interest of the Company and the

Shareholders to decline the New Opportunity B.

In March 2021, the Company has received an annual declaration from each of
the controlling shareholders of the Company and the Directors in respect of their
respective compliance with the non-competition undertakings as at December
31, 2020. The independent non-executive directors have reviewed the said
declaration and are of the view that each of the controlling shareholders of the
Company and the Directors has complied with their respective non-competition

undertakings during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |l &2t &% M iz i% & R 2 7



PRI IB R 2 1 e Ji AT AT

W oF—/\F—H +HH > RAFRELABHA

SRR 5T 7 Wk (TR Wk ) > RIS
IR MR B - AR I S AR AR 4 B I e
10,209,000,00075 TG FAF 1 SR E (TRVE ) -

RROEME WA E L asE) > MARFUT
IR > S RA RS ~ ZERFIKAFHE © Charm
Talent & Junson Development#& IF B £ 5 1L 7]
AL T M i A DTS 19 > R B2
Ay o fief thy BUAT BRI o AR DL > DR
TSR AT R ] =53 2 Z I GRERAT

(R AZ - KRB BB A AR Lt Y
B&iﬁé},\ o T[] M R LG LA B 2 HL A

IR S 5 O AR D 5110 1
fi -

B bSO ER RSN - A/ A A A SRR
ARG 13,1812 E T 5% =

SRR S Z 7 44

PREAHESC 5 Brise 41 > ME—F —F 4+ A
=S RIRAEE S AR A R R AR T A
w) B B B T B A R 2
A 5 AT AT (TR A # O g RS sk Ll H A
LENE

RS 5
KGR 5

WESEZCRET A= HIEEE EHTE
FRE G A TER R S 2 BE T
Pt 2 /8 7 LA SE [T ST A0 2 5 R AR S B4R A
IAH R M RS0 L B 5 5) | » #5585
J& A AR BRI S 5 (O R Aol sT Bl
RS IO ATEA HIHR ~ A6 S 87 PR R

a=d

JE) e

B LA oh > AREBMPREE T FEF
Zob B R AR BEEAT 0 A B 2 2 5 M B
FUAEE U AT T SE 1Y [R5 5 B [ A
WA s | (FEILME) ©

HEE G

Report of the Directors

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS ON
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On January 25, 2018 the Company as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a syndicate of banks pursuant to which a 5-year
term loan facility in the principal amount of up to HKD10,209,000,000 (the
“Facility”) was made available to the Company on the terms and conditions

stated therein.

It is provided in the Facility Agreements, among other things, that an event of
default will occur if the following shareholders of the Company, the Wu Family
Trust, the Cai Family Trust, Charm Talent and Junson Development cease to
collectively maintain (directly or indirectly) not less than 51% of the entire
beneficial shareholding interest in the Company. If an event of default under the
Facility Agreements occurs, the lending bank or the agent acting for the lending
banks may, and shall if so directed by two-thirds of the lending banks, terminate
the Facility and/or declare that all or part of the loans made under the Facility
together with accrued interest and all other amounts accrued or outstanding

under the Facility Agreements be immediately due and payable.

Other than as disclosed above, there are no other events which are required to be

disclosed by the Company under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in Connected Transactions, no contract of significance was
entered into among the Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling
Shareholders or any of their subsidiaries, whether for the provision of services or

otherwise, during the year ended December 31, 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

De minimis Connected Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2020, certain directors and their close
family members, and companies controlled by certain Directors and/or their
close family members entered into transactions with the Group which are
disclosed in note 50 (c) and (d) “Related party transactions” to the consolidated
financial statements of the Group. Such transactions constituted de minimis
connected transactions of the Company which were exempt from the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under the
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as above, the other related party transactions which were carried out by
the Group during the year ended December 31, 2020, did not fall under the
definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as

the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

# %% Annual Report ||| 2020

93




94

R R

Report of the Directors

Y I it

AN TR ZEEJE+—H — H IR B TR
al#] o FHE AR IR 108 RARL - it
CRZE—EHA =+l - 1% - A8
PR B AT T IBCHE « Py 432 Hh M e
TR H AR AT AT % 5 B eSO AR AT

RZEZZNFEFZAZ+=H - ZF——4F—H
Tl ZEF—-—FH A R =E -
Fr—HWH » AAFRE B THRHER S - m
AT HEH K AR B4 02 AT R A 210,600,000
Ji& ~ 46,000,000 ~ 150,000,000 5 110,000,000
IBEPBCAy P B R > RERS AT

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme was adopted on November 1, 2009. The

Scheme was effected for 10 years from the adoption date. The Scheme was expired

on October 31, 2019. No further Options will be granted under the Scheme but

in respect of all Options which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of

the Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

On December 23, 2009, January 17, 2011, September 28, 2011 and November
4, 2014, the Company granted options to subscribe for a total of 10,600,000
shares, 46,000,000 shares, 150,000,000 shares and 110,000,000 shares under

the Option Scheme to certain directors and employees of the Company, with the

following details:

(1 HH (1) Directors
I I
i L AR AR i <3
o —~A—H B fifiwy AN
1% S ik (#7c) HAATHE TR B L HAATHE
Number of share ~ Number of share
Exercise price Outstanding at ~ options reclassified ~ options exercised Outstanding at
Name Capacity Date of grant (HKS) ~ January 1,2020 during the year during the year  December 31, 2020
(WEsk1) (H3E2) (k3
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
g HEgfL  ZEFEUASHAR 8.8 8272500 - (8,272,500) -
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner  September 28, 2011
“E-TEt-AmA 931 4,400,000 - - 4,400,000
November 4, 2014
% TagEL  F-E-AmA 937 900,000 - (900,000) -
Zhao Yi Beneficial Owner  November 4, 2014
FRTA-F-ZE HEWAL F-IET-ANA 9.7 900,000 (900,000) - -
SAZtTmA
R
Li Chaojiang (resigned  Beneficial Owner  November 4, 2014
on March 24, 2020)
BARR-F-ZE REWAL F-IET-ANA 937 - 2,500,000 (1,000,000) 1,500,000
=R HRZE)
Wang Guangjian Beneficial Owner  November 4, 2014
(appointed on
March 24, 2020)
% REgEL  ZFEAACTAR 8.8 400,000 - (400,000) -
Chan Chi On, Derek ~ Beneficial Owner ~ September 28, 2011
e EagA  ZF—EUIZTAR 8.8 240000 - (240,000) -
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner  September 28, 2011
—— ——
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(2) Employees

I —
“ERCRE “EORE
Ttk —“A—H  RERERME RAEENGE  FZAST—H
BB B (¥7) WAL il 41 R 2 WAL
Number of Number of
Exercise Outstanding at share options share options Outstanding at
price January 1, reclassified exercised December 31,
Date of grant Capacity (HKS) 2020 during the year ~ during the year 2020
(D) (F3E2) (Firzt2)
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 2)
“E—F-A1EH O EREAA 12528 2,869,500 - (1,769,500) 1,100,000
January 17, 2011 Beneficial Owner
SEEAACTAR EREAA 8.28 14,554,000 - (6,667,500 7,886,500
September 28, 2011 Beneficial Owner
ZE-NEF-AlE KRR A 9.37 33,726,500 (1,600,000) (6,153,500) 25,973,000
November 4, 2014 Beneficial Owner
E—— ——
B aE Notes:
1 R —F——F—H+tHFEZER 1 As for the share option granted on January 17, 2011, the closing price of the shares

HE 52 B AR AT — H B0 A T S W 52 B
Z Wi F 12,885 0T o BERHE AT B %
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H M T > AT 259 o
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DO ATT A > A7 BE LG5 R B 109 > 309
30% M30% °

B 2 — DU AR — H 8 H 47 2 W
THE o o2 I AT — OO A B 2
Jit 2 e 18 59,570  WECHE T i =%
SRAE S RN L ZF
N ZFE-RE-HNAEZF
ARt A = H A HWATE > AT
IIE10% ~ 15% > 20% > 25% K30% ©

on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$12.88. The options are exercisable in 4 tranches of 25% each, from January 17,
2012, 2013, 2014, 2015 to January 16, 2021.

As for the share option granted on September 28, 2011, the closing price of the
shares on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted
was HK$8.17. The exercisable period for 10,000,000 share options granted to Mr.
Shao Mingxiao is from September 28, 2017 to September 27, 2021. The remaining
options are exercisable in 4 tranches from September 28, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016
to September 27, 2021, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 30%, 30% and 30%

respectively.

As for the share option granted on November 4, 2014, the closing price of the shares
on the SEHK immediately before the date on which the options were granted was
HK$9.37. The options are exercisable in 5 tranches from November 4, 2015, 2016,
2017, 2018, 2019 to November 3, 2024, the exercisable percentage is 10%, 15%,
20%, 25% and 30% respectively.
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The share options reclassified due to the appointment or resignation of directors.

The weighted average closing price per share immediately before the dates on which

the option were exercised was HK$39.2813.

A summary of the principal terms of the Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) is

set out as follow:

(@)

(i1)

Purpose of the Scheme

The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the Participants (defined
in paragraph (ii) below) who have been granted Options under the
Scheme to subscribe for shares with the opportunity to acquire share
interests in the Company and to encourage Participants to work
towards enhancing the value of the Company and the benefit of the

Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Who may join

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board may, at their discretion, invite
any directors (including executive directors, non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors) and employees of any
member of the Group and any advisers, consultants, distributors,
contractors, contract manufacturers, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, service providers
of any member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the

“Participants”) to participate in the Scheme.



(ii1)

(iv)

(v)
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(iv)
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Total number of shares available for issue under the Scheme

Initially the maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all Options to be granted under the Scheme or any other
option schemes adopted by the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate of the shares in issue on the date of approval of the
Scheme. The lapsed share options are excluded when calculating the
10% limit.

A total number of 40,859,500 shares, representing 0.67% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this report, are

available for issue under the Option Scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted and to be granted pursuant to the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company to each
Participant in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of grant of the Options shall not exceed 1% of the total number of

shares in issue.

Time of exercise of the Options

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be
specified by the Company at the time of grant. This period must

expire no later than 10 years from the relevant date of grant.
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(vi) Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price per share under the Scheme is a price
determined by the Board and notified to each Participant and shall
be no less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK on the
date of grant; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheets issued by the SEHK for the five SEHK
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the

nominal value of a share on the date of grant.

(vii) Remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme was expired on October 31, 2019. No further Options
will be granted under the Scheme but in respect of all granted
Options which remain exercisable on such date, the provisions of the

Scheme shall remain in full force and effect.

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

To provide long-term incentive for employees, assist to retain its existing
employees and attract more talents, and provide human resources protection for
the long-term strategic goals of the Group, the Company has adopted a restricted
share award scheme. According to the share award scheme, trustee can purchase
shares from the market out of cash contributed by the Group. The shares are held

in trust for the relevant selected employees until such shares are vested.

Up to December 31, 2020, the Company had through the trustee purchased
total 190,096,957 shares from the market, 66,286,478 shares of which were
purchased in the year ended December 31, 2020 at an aggregate consideration of
HK$2,661,530,525 (including transaction costs).

From the adoption date to December 31, 2020, there were accumulated
25,228,827 shares being granted and vested, and 117,711,809 shares were
granted and unvested to selected employees. (Details of unvested shares are set

out in note 46(a) to the consolidated financial statements of the Group).
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at December 31, 2020, the interests of the directors and chief executive of the

its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and

“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:

A2 vl s (48

Interest in the Company (long position)

REFRE
+ZHA=+—H
MBI A FIRERR

R S/ RERE TR T H Z Hdh HE b
Approximate %

of interest in

Interestin ~ the Company as at

Number of underlying December 31,
Name of director Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares shares 2020
(H3E3)
(Note 3)

SR S B WA (WEEL) 2,587,778,201 - 42.713%
Wu Yajun Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
] HEREAN 20,661,970 4,400,000 0.414%
Shao Mingxiao Beneficial Owner

fEatZ A (k) 10,768,500 - 0.178%

Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
K HEREAN 493,789 - 0.082%
Zhao Yi Beneficial Owner

fEatZ A (k) 5,479,250 - 0.090%

Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
ok HEREAN 647,345 1,500,000 0.035%
Wang Guangjian Beneficial Owner

fEt A (Hk2) 4,011,250 - 0.066%

Beneficial of a trust (Note 2)
Frederick Peter Churchouse BiA N 445,000 - 0.007%

Beneficial Owner
PR % HEREAN 400,000 - 0.007%
Chan Chi On, Derek Beneficial Owner
ik HEREAN 10,000 - 0.000%
Xiang Bing Beneficial Owner
g £ TN 400,000 - 0.007%
Zeng Ming Beneficial Owner

EE—
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1 #% 4 % # Charm Talent International Limited
([ Charm Talent |) ##47 ° Charm Talenc % #B €L #547
Ji% 7% B HSBC International Trustee Limited ([ HSBC
International Trustee |) IXTHE #EI9Z sE A 51
WG o R L ([ Rkt ) AR
XTHPE R AR Lot (T4 D) kG
o B B TR Charm Talenc i8R
2 FE R AT Charm Talend A A4 719
BEHE o B SR LA RERE 7 Charm Talenc I
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2 EE 3 GRiN & Dragon Dynasty Asset Limited
([ Dragon Dynasty |) LA #E JE X5 A © Dragon
Dynasty M2 8 2 8 AT B R B TMF Truse (HK)
Limited A Dragon Dynasty Share Award TrustZ i A
SR EHA - Dragon Dynasty Share Award Trust /)
Z it BHGOR A7 T 44 A 2 B 23 WA 0 R
JBct W B 0 B e

3 R T 2 2 AR B B 8 4 ] R
RS OB

b LSO g AN SR BT A=
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AT o W 2 P A A 5 B B B 365352
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RS R ZE R AR A 7] A ST S I 2 S Ay~ A
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Notes:

1 These shares are held by Charm Talent International Limited (“Charm Talent”). The entire
issued share capital of Charm Talent is indirectly wholly-owned by HSBC International
Trustee Limited (“HSBC International Trustee”) as the trustee of the XTH Trust. Madam
Wu Yajun (“Madam Wu”) has received an undertaking from Madam Cai Xinyi (“Madam
Cai”), the settlor of the XTH Trust, pursuant to which Madam Cai has undertaken to procure
Charm Talent to exercise the voting rights of the shares held by Charm Talent in accordance
with Madam Wu's instructions. As Madam Wu is entitled to control the exercise of the
voting power of the shares held by Charm Talent, Madam Wu is taken to be interested in
the shares held by Charm Talent pursuant to Part XV of the SFO. Madam Wu does not have

personal interest in the shares.

2 Such number of shares are held on trust by Dragon Dynasty Asset Limited (“Dragon
Dynasty”). The entire issued share capital of Dragon Dynasty is wholly-owned by TMF
Trust (HK) Limited as the trustee of the Dragon Dynasty Share Award Trust. The beneficiary
objects of the Dragon Dynasty Share Award Trust are certain selected employees and directors

of the Group as participants of the Restricted Share Award Schemes adopted by the Company.

3 The relevant directors was granted options to subscribe for such number of shares under the

Option Scheme.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2020, none of the Directors or chief
executive of the Company had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the shares of the Company, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the register which
were required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||| &2 4 % M = i 5 & 2 7
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at December 31, 2020, the interests of persons, other than the directors or
chief executive of the Company in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company representing 5% or more of the nominal value of shares comprised in
the relevant share capital of the Company as recorded in the register kept by the

Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

JAAR A B I RE AR Interest in the Company
I
/A S 2
+=ZA=+—H
A F) RS
JBe Ak 44 By, RERS PR EEBEE WEAE 4 1
Approximate %
of interest
in the Company
Number of as at
Name of shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest ordinary shares December 31, 2020
HSBC International Trustee ZREN(BFEEL ~ 2)23) 3,983,066,605(L) 65.743%
Trustee (Notes 1, 2 and 3) 236,223,000(S) 3.899%
Charm Talent HRHEA A (MR 2,587,778,201(L) 42.713%
Registered owner (Note 1)
BER L (8Lt ARG RCAIEA () 2,587,778,201(L) 42.713%
Madam Cai Xinyi (“Madam Cai”) Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 1)
Silver Sea SR B AR () 2,587,778,201(L) 42.713%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 1)
2 ([5R5H)) 2GR (H5E2) 1,394,941,904(L) 23.025%
Cai Kui (“Mr. Cai”) Founder of a discretionary trust (Note 2) 236,223,000(S) 3.899%
Junson Development BRHEA A (HHE2) 1,394,941,904(L) 23.025%
Registered owner (Note 2) 236,223,000(S) 3.899%
Silverland Assets Limited SR B 2 AR (5E2) 1,394,941,904(L) 23.025%
(“Silverland”) Interest of controlled corporation (Note 2) 236,223,000(S) 3.899%
Jumbomax Investments Limited S AR (WE4) 350,130,000(L) 5.779%
Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
BEIE ZPEHIE R 2 A (34 350,130,000(L) 5.779%
Woo Kwong Ching, Peter Interest of controlled corporation (Note 4)
R Fieff 2 e as (P5E4) 350,130,000(L) 5.779%
Pao Pui Yung, Bessie Interest of spouse (Note 4)
——

LERITE
SERIRE

L stands for long position

S stands for short position

# %% Annual Report ||| 2020



102

R R

Report of the Directors

[

M Charm TalencB2 AL &AL > 5%5 B 6 1 Charm
Talent ¥  © Charm Talenc 1] 22 5 © 8 17 A
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R > ZE R ﬁﬂ]unson Developmentﬁﬁ ;
[l I > H 4% Junson Development 5 Citigroup Global
Markets Limited ] 3. I BRI B8 18 B 01 1 2 5
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% S M B R0 B 5 IR A o Junson Development
LT EATIA HSilverland 2 EHEA » TSilverland
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Notes:
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According to the information provided by Charm Talent, these shares are held by Charm
Talent. The entire issued share capital of Charm Talent is wholly owned by Silver Sea, the
entire issued share capital of which is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee
as the trustee of the XTH Trust. The XTH Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Madam
Cai Xinyi as settlor and HSBC International Trustee as trustee on October 22, 2018. Madam
Cai as founder of the XTH Trust is taken to be interested in the shares held by Charm Talent
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated April 14, 2020), these
shares are held by Junson Development, and the short position was held under the collar
and additional call option transaction pursuant to the contract made between Junson
Development and Citigroup Global Markets Limited. The entire issued share capital of
Junson Development is wholly owned by Silverland, the entire issued share capital of which
is in turn wholly-owned by HSBC International Trustee as the trustee of the Cai Family
Trust. The Cai Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Cai as settlor and HSBC
International Trustee as trustee on June 11, 2008. Mr. Cai as founder of the Cai Family Trust
is taken to be interested in the shares held by Junson Development pursuant to Part XV of
the SFO.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated November 12, 2020), these
remaining shares are held by HSBC International Trustee as trustee of several other trusts

which are independent third parties of XTH Trust and Cai Family Trust.

According to the disclosure of interests filing submitted (dated January 8, 2016), these shares
represent the corporate interest of Jumbomax Investments Limited through a number of
its wholly owned subsidiaries. Mr. Woo Kwong Ching, Peter is interested in these shares
through the interest of corporation controlled by him while Madam Pao Pui Yung, Bessie is

interested in these shares through the interest of spouse.
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Report of the Directors

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year, the trustee of the Restricted Share Award Schemes purchased on
the SEHK a total of 66,286,478 shares at a total consideration of approximately
HK$2,661,530,525 pursuant to the terms of the trust deed under the Restricted
Share Award Scheme. Other than the aforesaid, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the Company’s listed

securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association, or the law of Cayman Islands being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated under which would oblige the Company to offer new

shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholder.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is subject to a number of laws and regulations concerning overall
environmental protection, impact to the environment, noise pollution and

environmental protection for development projects.

We place high emphasis on complying with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. We require our own staff and construction contractors to comply
with the relevant laws and regulations relating to the quality of construction
including environmental, labour, social and safety regulations, as well as our
own standards and specifications. Details please refer to the 2020 standalone

sustainability report of the Group.

We believe that we are in compliance in all material respects with applicable

environmental laws and regulations.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year, there was no material breach of or non-compliance with the

applicable laws and regulations by the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in

the Corporate Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the directors confirm
that the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under

the Listing Rules.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the above paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and
“Share Award Schemes” in this section, no equity-linked agreements were entered

into during the year and subsisted at the end of the year.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited by Messts.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu. A resolution for the reappointment of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the Company’s auditor will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board

Wu Yajun

Chairperson

Hong Kong, March 26, 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report

=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF LONGFOR GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Longfor Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 113 to 319, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at December 31, 2020, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of

the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,

and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter

IR SR it

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAM I T T o e L o = I

Valuation of investment properties

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the estimation associated with
determining the fair value.

The investment properties of the Group mainly comprise
shopping malls and apartments located in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). As disclosed in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements, the investment
properties are carried at RMB152,486 million as at
December 31, 2020, which represents 20% of the Group’s
total assets. A fair value loss upon transfer to investment
properties of RMB42 million and a change in fair value
of investment properties of RMB2,351 million were
recognised in profit or loss for the year then ended.

All of the Group’s investment properties are stated at
fair value based on valuations performed by independent
qualified professional valuers (the “Valuers”) and
directors. Details of the valuation techniques and key
inputs used in the valuations are disclosed in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements. The valuations are
dependent on certain key inputs that involve management
estimation, including term yield, reversionary yield and
reversionary rental for completed investment properties,
gross development value, developer’s profit and discount
rate for investment properties under development,
discount rate and reversionary rental for investment
properties under sublease.
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Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the
investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the Valuers and directors;

o Obtaining an understanding from the Valuers and
directors about the valuation methodology, the
performance of the property markets, significant
assumptions adopted, key inputs and data used in
the valuation and how the Valuers and directors
justify the methodology and assumptions used; and

o Assessing the reasonableness of the key inputs and
source data used in the valuations by the directors
and the Valuers by comparing them, on a sample
basis, to rentals and prices for similar neighbourhood
properties.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Valuation of properties held for development, properties under development for sales and properties held for sales

under inventories of properties

We identified the valuation of the Group’s properties
held for development (the “PFD”), properties under
development for sales (the “PUD”) and properties held
for sales (the “PFS”) (collectively referred to as the
“Properties”) as a key audit matter due to the estimation
involved in the determination of the net realisable value
(the “NRV”) of the Properties and the estimation of future
costs to completion of the Properties, where applicable.

The Group’s PFD of RMB14,173 million, PUD of
RMB322,276 million and PFS of RMB38,691 million
are situated in the PRC as at December 31, 2020. As set
out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements, the
management of the Group determined the NRV of the
Properties by reference to the estimated market prices and
estimated future costs to completion, if applicable, of the
Properties, which takes into account a number of factors
including the recent prices of similar property types in the
same project or by similar properties, and the prevailing
and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC.
Based on the management estimation of the NRV of
the Properties, no write-downs were considered to be
necessary. Besides, as set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management estimated the future
cost to completion of the Properties, where applicable, by
reference to the actual development cost of the Group’s
completed projects, adjusted by certain current market
data.

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of the Properties
included:

o Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
future costs to completion of the Properties, where
applicable, on a sample basis, by comparing it to
the actual development cost of similar completed
properties of the Group and comparing the
adjustments made by the management to current
market data;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the NRV of the
Properties, on a sample basis, estimated by the
management by comparing the estimated market
price that derive the NRV to the market prices
achieved in the same projects or comparable
properties, based on our knowledge of the Group’s
business and the PRC real estate industry; and

o Assessing the accuracy of the estimation of the
market price that derive the NRV and future costs
to completion of the Properties by comparing the
previous estimation to the actual amounts.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

FRAM I T T o e L o = I

Revenue recognised from sales of properties

We identified revenue recognised from sales of properties
as a key audit matter as it is quantitatively significant
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and there are judgments
involved in determining the appropriate point at which
to recognise revenue from sales of properties and whether

the Group should recognise the revenue from sales of

properties over time or at a point in time.

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’
of the properties underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customers as disclosed in

note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Control of

the properties may be transferred over time or at a point
in time. Control of the asset is transferred over time when
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. The Group recognised revenue of RMB156,207
million and RMB14,774 million from sales of properties
at a point in time and over time respectively for the year
ended December 31, 2020 as disclosed in note 5(c) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Our procedures in relation to the appropriate point at
which to recognise revenue from sales of properties by the
Group included:

o Evaluating the terms set out in the relevant contracts
and obtaining evidence, on a sample basis, to assess
whether the control of the properties underlying the
particular performance obligations is transferred to
the customers over time or at a point in time;

o Assessing management’s process and control over
the appropriate point in time at which revenue from
sales of properties is recognised and whether the
Group should recognise the revenue from sales of
properties over time or at a point in time; and

o Assessing the enforceability right to payment by
obtaining legal opinion from the Group’s external
legal counsel regarding the compliance of the
relevant contracts to relevant local laws.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not exptess any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have petformed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment

and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

0 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

U Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

U Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the

directors.

U Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions

and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

U Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during

our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to

eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be

expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor’s

report is Li Man Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

March 26, 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income

BEZRDZET A= R

For the year ended December 31, 2020

i RO R NE
NOTES 2020 2019
AREFE AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue S 184,547,296 151,026,432
BB A Cost of sales (130,516,775) (100,229,340)
EH| Gross profit 54,030,521 50,797,092
HAbA Other income 6 1,466,409 1,166,687
HAl 45 )18 Other gains and losses 7 455,306 (233,730)
HEAEEH Lease liability charges (725,940) (576,455)
B B S 2R AN Fair value (loss) gain upon transfer to
(518 Uk 5 investment properties (41,995) 141,256
WEYENTEEH Change in fair value of investment properties 2,351,050 3,593,396
HAbAT A SR T B THEE) Change in fair value of other derivative financial
instruments (13,532) 353,110
B % T IS A B S Selling and marketing expenses (5,033,937)  (4,034,477)
il Administrative expenses (7,294,236)  (6,520,928)
& A Finance costs 8 (105,970) (76,759)
JREA B N ) 2E A Share of results of associates 691,264 585,822
TN A 2 3EsE Share of results of joint ventures 590,803 766,200
193 o s ) Profit before taxation 46,369,743 45,961,214
IRESH Income tax expense 9 (17,529,431)  (19,408,749)
A R ) Profit for the year 47 28,840,312 26,552,465
DA AL 6 A - Profit attributable to:
EN/NEIE DN Owners of the Company 20,002,025 18,336,577
T RE 4 Non-controlling interests 8,838,287 8,215,888
28,840,312 26,552,465

T—
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income
RE=F BT A= 0L
For the year ended December 31, 2020

Wi CFCRE F A
NOTES 2020 2019

ABBTL  ARKTL
RMB'000  RMB'000

A JE s ) Profit for the year 28,840,312 26,552,465
HAth 2 mlkss (B2 - Other comprehensive income (expense):
MR GEN P F R HH - Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
TN THFI AR 2T f4E  Fair value gain on investments in equity
TAEBEZ A FEE instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income 1,145,616 -

HEWGEEN A EHm 2 HH : Items that may be reclassified subsequently to

profit or loss:
b TEM AT (B8 iz F4 Net fair value (loss) gain on hedging
instruments (1,058,580) 500,072
A ERGEM THELM  Gain (loss) on hedging instruments
4t (s4R) reclassified to profit or loss 1,561,136 (340,525)
502,556 159,547
Foth A T i 45 A AR Total other comprehensive income 1,648,172 159,547
A B A T £ AR Total comprehensive income for the year 30,488,484 26,712,012
DA AL A T i 45 AR Total comprehensive income attributable to:
E/NGIE/ 2SN Owners of the Company 21,650,197 18,496,124
IR 45 Non-controlling interests 8,838,287 8,215,888
30,488,484 26,712,012
BB (N R¥T) Earnings per share, in RMB
A Basic 11 3.41 3.13
i Diluted 11 3.34 3.07

——
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REFCEREFTHAZ+—H
At December 31, 2020

Wk ZF4RE T OE
NOTES 2020 2019
AR#FE ARETT

RMB000  RMB'000

JE L) &
BEMH
EN S ]
AR

[k 5

EL3iA i
JAWE A ) R A
WA BN LR

R NFE R A A AT R 1Y
fEd LA
e TR

TG
UE S
HArr &
L N SR 2ES RN DS

TE SR B LA WO ~ e I

AT HOE
JRE i I 42 i 1 2 O
JRE N A W) FOE
JENCA 7 A S TR
A ] i Y
BN TERI AR 2 SR

CAEHRITE K
RATH B ML &

TE A

JREAH R B AT s~ LA
FRIE T

HBHIAME

JREART el T%ﬁé?ﬂ

AN =NCIE

JERT &R IE

JEAH BT

HEAR

SRAT R B — — R E

HAb A ST A

UL
AR Y B

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Goodwill

Intangible assets

Interests in associates

Interests in joint ventures

Equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Derivative financial instruments

Deferred taxation assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories of properties

Other inventories

Deposits paid for acquisition of
properties held for development

Accounts and other receivables,
deposits and prepayments

Amounts due from non-controlling interests

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Taxation recoverable

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts and bills payables,
other payables and accrued charges
Contract liabilities
Amounts due to non-controlling interests
Amounts due to associates
Amounts due to joint ventures
Taxation payable
Lease liabilities
Bank and other borrowings — due within
one year
Other derivative financial instruments

NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

12 152,485,798 130,804,011

13 2,808,526 1,982,193
14 1,529,334 535,160
15 275,976 -
17 213,848 66,710
18 10,565,712 8,235,167
19 7,569,592 6,570,314
20 3,781,062 1,420,202
32 286,089 644,113
34 8,866,713 6,725,593

188,382,650 156,983,463

21 375,139,846 331,391,372

22 483,111 581,456

6,152,572 5,200,886
23 30,739,772 28,691,884
24 60,349,738 43,881,834
24 9,125,446 9,070,311
24 10,167,763 10,450,049

6,350,307 4,591,727
20 440,000 450,000
25 821,790 169,491
25 77,005,830 60,782,375

576,776,175 495,261,385

26 113,216,036 91,973,602
27 182,388,939 155,155,691

28 36,262,798 27,729,998
28 7,363,712 6,990,797
28 7,310,672 8,845,022

33,352,975 28,288,145
29 1,272,830 1,009,463
30 18,338,133 13,927,462
30 2,120 -

399,508,215 333,920,180

177,267,960 161,341,205

365,650,610 318,324,668

—
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A B AR U R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

PRoFZFETA=1—H
At December 31, 2020

I 00000000

e
NOTES 2020 2019
ANR#EFLE AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000
EA R fk A CAPITAL AND RESERVES

A Share capital 33 527,214 520,725
T Reserves 33 107,816,716 93,435,586
PiN/NiE 2PN AT Equity attributable to owners of the Company 108,343,930 93,956,311
TP £ Non-controlling interests 84,380,223 72,721,445
WE 5 4z TOTAL EQUITY 192,724,153 166,677,756

e I=Y NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
AR B £ Lease liabilities 29 12,439,194 10,246,579
SRAT KA — — 15 Bank and other borrowings — due after one year 30 130,996,474 117,378,159
B R — — AR Senior notes — due after one year 31 18,032,587 14,693,411
fitt4m T A Derivative financial instruments 32 864,522 68,883
HAbfd: 4/ T A Other derivative financial instruments 30 30,299 14,780
RSl T B 1 Deferred taxation liabilities 34 10,563,381 9,245,100
172,926,457 151,646,912
365,650,610 318,324,668

—

FNBE30AZ HFAMBHMENR —F - —H—=H
TN BAEE SO LA > SR A

The consolidated financial statements on pages 113 to 319 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on March 26, 2021 and are signed

116

TAREE on its behalf by:
RuiH fiiL

WU Yajun ZHAO Yi
£ Y
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

“FORE CF N

2020 2019
AR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

REihE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
I ot s 1) Profit before taxation 46,369,743 45,961,214

KLUT i Adjustments for:

FVE A Finance costs 105,970 76,759
HEAGEEH Lease liability charges 725,940 576,455

W~ W KT Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 160,965 130,758

AR g EE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 78,871 11,563

MY & A Amortisation of intangible assets 18,280 -

T 1 BRI R AP (R 1R Ol as) Fair value loss (gain) upon transfer to

investment properties 41,995 (141,256)

BEW) 2N T-E ) Change in fair value of investment properties (2,351,050)  (3,593,396)

HAbATA A TR TS Change in fair value of other derivative financial

instruments 13,532 (353,110)

3N IE Share of results of associates (691,264) (585,822)

FEf A 224 Share of results of joint ventures (590,803) (766,200)

HEFE - W R (s ) E1E (Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and

equipment (2,713) 4,873

FLEUA Interest income (823,215) (709,372)

BEE B8, (043 ) s 1R 4 Net exchange (gain) loss (1,610,439) 313,424

DL 73 2 FE B A A5 B 2 Share-based payments expenses 477,046 300,493

HESEHANESHERE Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 41,922,858 41,226,383
HA A7 & 5> Decrease in other inventories 99,383 245,193
VESSe Increase in inventories of properties (21,571,945) (28,283,441)
TR AR R0 O AT a3 Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of properties
held for development (12,354,794)  (16,469,398)
JRE SR S At FE ST ~ e Increase in accounts and other receivables,

TEA FTE RN deposits and prepayments (2,635,635)  (5,260,735)
JREAST R AR AT B ~ LAt REAS 3RUE Increase in accounts and bills payables,

MESTE B other payables and accrued charges 19,652,149 15,515,380
BRI EEEM Increase in contract liabilities 27,233,248 41,715,873
BN B4 Cash generated from operations 52,345,264 48,689,255
A e A BN ([ A ) AR Bl The People’s Republic of China

(The “PRC”) income tax paid (15,615,418) (14,412,853)
FSESr R ES TR RRE NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 36,729,846 34,276,402
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

I 200000000

e T
NOTES 2020 2019
ARETFE ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PG B INVESTING ACTIVITIES
G RN Additions to investment properties (11,759,078)  (15,929,829)
P R 2 Additions to right-of-use assets 14 (1,073,045) -
TR B EE B N Additions to intangible asset 17 (16,230) -
BRI S B EE KB E Acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries 35 (2,023,859)  (3,655,318)
Wi 2 Acquisition of business 36 (318,749) -
SR AR E AR Settlement of consideration payable for
WO E e B R 2 UE acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries in prior year 35 (40,000) (1,210,072)
8 — I B 2~ Disposal of a subsidiary 40 (255,194) -
—HEBELERYE Capital reduction from a joint venture 147,000 -
k- NTIR A<y Capital reduction from associates 44,671 135,176
NEEEENRE Investments in joint ventures (823,499) (46,989)
WEE AT EFFA M 2T IR Purchase of equity instruments at fair value
TR through other comprehensive income (1,522,990) (685,937)
AR ATEFIAIBLE 2 SR EE  Purchase of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (440,000) (450,000)
WERATEF ARG Z Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair
G RGBT A value through profit or loss 450,000 -
B AT TG Investments in associates (3,912,883) (900,893)
A BN A Dividend received from joint ventures 259,000 450,089
B Ui A 7 AR Dividend received from associates 154,000 594,822
I B ) AR Advances to associates (3,366,784)  (4,589,541)
Tk vl K Repayments from associates 3,311,649 2,395,807
] 8 A EBGK Advances to joint ventures (2,366,202)  (2,928,822)
RN Repayments from joint ventures 2,648,488 5,314,677
I FF 122 1 HE 25 B Advances to non-controlling interests (28,175,113)  (23,143,607)
T FEHIHE 75 2 Repayments from non-controlling interests 7,963,945 8,864,897
AR TR Placement of pledged bank deposits (694,753) (116,955)
PRIE AR T K Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 42,454 127,993
HEAWIE - BB Bkt Purchase of property, plant and equipment (865,174) (198,164)
EFILE Interest received 823,215 709,372
R —HAESEBREEAR Return of capital upon deregistration of
an joint venture 9,024 -
HEE B SO\ T S B Proceeds from disposal of an associate 31,493 -
A TEFAHMATIER  Proceeds from disposal of equity instruments
Rt CEA TS 30E at fair value through other comprehensive
income 307,746 -
WEYZE - WS R T R Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and
equipment 57,554 19,691
SR B BT B NET CASH USED IN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (41,403,314)  (35,243,603)
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Wik “F5RE T E
NOTES 2020 2019

AR#ETFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

T B FINANCING ACTIVITIES
W R B g A R AR O MiE 5 Acquisition of additional interests in

subsidiaries 37 (1,036,882) -
H B 2 R A B AR 4 Disposal of partial interests in subsidiaries not

(RS HEHIHE) resulting in losing of control 38 - 89,950
LA 5 A 2 ) A T i i Deemed disposal of partial interests in
(RLe L PEHIRE) subsidiaries not resulting in losing of control 39 = 1,237,357

TERARAT S HAbAE R Repayment of bank and other borrowings (53,403,345)  (41,195,758)
AR Interest paid (7,731,243)  (6,386,701)
HTHERAT B A K New bank and other borrowings raised 61,944,852 58,041,492
AT IR BT i 3RO Proceeds from issue of bonds 10,500,000 4,200,000
AT e SR P T AR 3 Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 4,485,235 5,951,791
HRAEH Repayment of bonds (6,369,073)  (1,495,000)
BATES B S Expenses on issue of bonds (61,300) (26,244)
BT IE R Y B 5 Expenses on issue of senior notes (36,643) (31,019)
BT SRR I TS 2H Proceeds from issuance of asset-backed

securities 7,300,000 -
R i R Repayment of asset-backed securities (4,589) -
EREHE A E Repayment of lease liabilities (689,679) (535,029)
AT E AR Lease liability charges paid (725,940) (576,455)
JEPE M AT Capital injection from non-controlling

shareholders 10,613,622 10,967,384
Wi JE 2 ) el Capital reduction of subsidiaries (3,259,639)  (6,021,560)
AT A T A 2R Proceeds from issue of shares 2,186,704 351,228
Bl Lol CIRR =g i) Payment for purchase of shares under the

fhak share award scheme (2,347,503) (595,897)

CATIRE Dividend paid (7,180,794)  (5,893,586)
I 478 TR 25 S A A LS Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (277,830) (935,655)
T A1 AKX Advances from associates 4,363,141 658,540
I W ) R K Repayments to associates (3,990,226)  (2,612,761)
BB AR Advances from joint ventures 1,268,417 2,747,656
] B AN 2R K Repayments to joint ventures (2,802,767)  (1,075,773)
T FE IR 7 K Advances from non-controlling interests 22,369,003 10,416,880
BT I EAG 22 5 AR Transaction costs attributable to issue of

new ordinary shares (16,225) -
Ii) I 2 ) i 2 HE Repayments to non-controlling interests (14,200,373)  (10,614,324)
Tl 0 O A B P NET CASH FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES 20,896,923 16,666,510
P4 B B4 (B Wy s h g 48 NET INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS 16,223,455 15,699,309
AERII B RO ) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 60,782,375 45,083,066
ARG R CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

THE END OF THE YEAR 77,005,830 60,782,375
Bl BB A EWAS R T ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
SRATHE R KB Bank balances and cash 77,005,830 60,782,375

I—
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For the year ended December 31, 2020
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Longfor Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated on
December 21, 2007 as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The shares of the
Company are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “SEHK?”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The addresses of the principal
place of business of the Company in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and Hong Kong are 18/F, CSC Fortune International Center, No.5
An Ding Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing, and 15/F, 1 Duddell Street,

Central, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details of the

principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 55(a).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is the functional currency of the Company and its major

subsidiaries.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments to References
to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards and the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 for the preparation of

the consolidated financial statements:

HRZEFR

Definition of Material
EH 2 ER

Definition of a Business

M) R B E e
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The application of the Amendments to References to the Conceptual
Framework in IFRS Standards in the current year has had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements. The impacts of the application of the amendments to

IFRSs are set out below.

2.1 Impacts on application of Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8
Definition of Material

The Group has applied the Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 for
the first time in the current year. The amendments provide a
new definition of material that states “information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements,
which provide financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments also clarify that materiality depends on
the nature or magnitude of information, either individually or in
combination with other information, in the context of the financial

statements taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no

impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

2.2 Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition

of a Business

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments clarify that while businesses usually
have outputs, outputs are not required for an integrated set of
activities and assets to qualify as a business. To be considered as
a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include,
at a minimum, an input and a substantive process that together

significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of replacing any missing inputs or processes
and continuing to produce outputs. The amendments also introduce
additional guidance that helps to determine whether a substantive

process has been acquired.

In addition, the amendments introduce an optional concentration
test that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. Under the optional
concentration test, the acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting from
the effects of deferred tax liabilities. The election on whether to
apply the optional concentration test is available on transaction-by-

transaction basis.

The amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the current year as the Group did not
elect to apply the optional concentration test on the acquisition of
the Companies as detailed in Note 35 but may impact future periods

should the Group make any acquisition.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year (Continued)

2.3 Impacts on application of Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and
IFRS 7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments modify specific hedge accounting
requirements to allow hedge accounting to continue for affected
hedges during the period of uncertainty before the hedged items
or hedging instruments affected by the current interest rate
benchmarks are amended as a result of the on-going interest rate
benchmark reform. The amendments are relevant to the Group
given that it applies hedge accounting to its benchmark interest rate

exposures.

The Group has floating rate debts, linked to Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”), which the Group cash flow hedges using
cross currency interest rate swaps and interest rate swaps. The
amendments permit the continuation of hedge accounting even
though there is uncertainty about the timing and amount of the

hedged cash flows due to the interest rate benchmark reforms.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to
IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

TRER A # AR BB T

Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments'
LS A R L 4 D

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions*
MESHESE 2 $ai2

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

A BRI I — 55 PR B

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°
BEHHERE A A A BN M2 G B E RS

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture’

BB R RE) A EE R & &

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current!

AR EORE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

RHbET 2 E R

Definition of Accounting Estimates'

W ~ s B s VR E AR BTG A5

Property, Plant and Equipment — Proceeds before Intended Use?
RS %) — JBAT & 4 A

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

TR N R A B R B R Y 4R
Annual Improvements to IFRSs Standards 2018 - 2020°

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after June 1, 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

The amendments:

o update a reference in IFRS 3 Business Combinations so that it refers
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued by
IASB in March 2018 (the Conceptual Framework) instead of the
International Accounting Standards Committee’s Framework for
the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements (replaced
by the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued in
September 2010);

o add a requirement that, for transactions and other events within the
scope of IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets or IFRIC 21 Levies, an acquirer applies IAS 37 or IFRIC 21
instead of Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination; and

o add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.

The Group will apply the amendments prospectively to business
combinations for which the date of acquisition is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after January 1, 2022.

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate to the modification of financial
assets, financial liabilities and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting
requirements and disclosure requirements applying IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the amendments regarding
modifications and hedge accounting.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 Interest
Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 (Continued)

. Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced for modifications
required by the reform (modifications required as a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and made on an
economically equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All other modifications
are accounted for using the current IFRSs requirements. A similar
practical expedient is proposed for lessee accounting applying IFRS
16 Leases;

o Hedge accounting requirements. Under the amendments,
hedge accounting is not discontinued solely because of the interest
rate benchmark reform. Hedging relationships (and related
documentation) are required to be amended to reflect modifications
to the hedged item, hedging instrument and hedged risk. Amended
hedging relationships should meet all qualifying criteria to apply

hedge accounting, including effectiveness requirements; and

o Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in order to allow
users to understand the nature and extent of risks arising from the
interest rate benchmark reform to which the Group is exposed
to and how the entity manages those risks as well as the entity’s
progress in transitioning from interbank offered rates to alternative

benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this transition.

As at December 31, 2020, the Group has several HIBOR bank loans which
may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group expects
the application of the amendments will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current

The amendments provide clarification and additional guidance on the
assessment of right to defer settlement for at least twelve months from
reporting date for classification of liabilities as current or non-current,
which:

. specify that the classification of liabilities as current or non-current
should be based on rights that are in existence at the end of the

reporting period. Specifically, the amendments clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by management
intentions or expectations to settle the liability within 12

months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with covenants,
the right exists if the conditions are met at the end of the
reporting period, even if the lender does not test compliance

until a later date; and

. clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer of the entity’s
own equity instruments, these terms do not affect its classification
as current or non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying IAS 32 Financial

Instruments: Presentation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE A= H LA
For the year ended December 31, 2020

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-

current (Continued)

As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s right to defer settlement for senior
notes of RMB18,032,587,000 are subject to compliance with covenants
within 12 months from the reporting date. Such borrowings were classified
as non-current as the Group met such covenants at December 31, 2020.
Pending clarification on the application of relevant requirements of the
amendments, the Group will further assess whether application of the
amendments will have an impact on the classification of these borrowings.
The impacts on application, if any, will be disclosed in the Group’s future

consolidated financial statements.

Except for as disclosed above, the application of the amendments will not
result in reclassification of the Group’s other liabilities as at December 31,
2020.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1 Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose of
preparation of consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably expected
to influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
SEHK (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for the investment properties and certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values, at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the

consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of IFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable
value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS 36 Impairment of

Assets.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market

participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial recognition the

results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs are the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

J Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can

access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company

and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved where the Company:

o has power over the investee;

U is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

U has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of
an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting rights
are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the
Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,

including:

U the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the

size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote holders
or other parties;

U rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

o any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the
Group has, or does not have, the current ability to direct the

relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,

including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group losses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the date when

the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the

Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented separately
from the Group’s equity therein, which represent present ownership
interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets

of the relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant
components of equity including reserves and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests

in the subsidiaries.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing

subsidiaries (Continued)

Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of

the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted
by applicable IFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments ot, when applicable, the cost on initial

recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Optional concentration test

Effective from January 1, 2020, the Group can elect to apply an
optional concentration test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis,
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The concentration test is
met if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar
identifiable assets. The gross assets under assessment exclude cash
and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill resulting
from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is
met, the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a business
and no further assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquites a group of assets and liabilities that
do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and recognises
the individual identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
by allocating the purchase price first to investment properties
which are subsequently measured under fair value model and
financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective fair values, the
remaining balance of the purchase price is then allocated to the other
identifiable assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise
to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Except for certain recognition exemptions, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an
asset and a liability in the International Accounting Standards
Committee’s Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements (replaced by the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in September 2010).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

o deferred taxation assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS
19 Employee Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are
measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date
(see the accounting policy below); and

U assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with
that standard; and

U lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the present
value of the remaining lease payments (as defined in IFRS 16)
as if the acquired leases were new leases at the acquisition date
except for leases for which (a) the lease term ends within 12
months of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset is
of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and measured
at the same amount as the relevant lease liabilities, adjusted
to reflect favourable or unfavourable terms of the lease when
compared with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the relevant
subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are initially
measured at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair
value. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-

transaction basis.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement,
the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date
fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period adjustments are
adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during
the “measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the

acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration that
do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how
the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration
that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting
dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control), and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss or other comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts
arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
and measured under IFRS 9 would be accounted for on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Business combinations or asset acquisitions (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete
by the end of the reporting period in which the combination
occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for
which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted retrospectively during the measurement period (see above),
and additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new
information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts

recognised at that date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as
established at the date of acquisition of business (see the accounting

policy above) less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each
of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or group of CGUs)
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
which represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored
for internal management purposes and not larger than an operating

segment.

A cash-generating unit (“CGU”) (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting
period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based

on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)
On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within the

group of cash generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill
is included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on
disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation within the CGU
(or a cash generating unit within a group of CGUs), the amount of
goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the relative values of
the operation (or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU
(or the group of CGUs) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an

associate and a joint venture is described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation
is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying

the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a bundle
of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or

services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised over time
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of the

relevant performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs;

J the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an

alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable

right to payment for performance completed to date.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

For property development and sales contracts for which the
control of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is
recognised when the customer obtains the control of the completed
property and the Group has present right to payment and the

collection of the consideration is probable.

For sales of properties that have no alternative use to the Group
and when the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date, after considering any
laws that apply to the contract, revenue is recognised over time by

using the input method.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the

customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress

towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

For property management and related service, hotel operations and
consultancy fee income, the progress towards complete satisfaction
of a performance obligation is measured based on output method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of
the value of the services transferred to the customer to date relative
to the remaining services promised under the contract, that best

depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right to consideration in
an amount that corresponds, directly with the value of the Group’s
petformance completed to date, the Group recognises revenue in the

amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation
(Continued)

For sales of properties that have no alternative use to the Group
and when the Group has an enforceable right to payment from the
customers for performance completed to date, after considering any
laws that apply to the contract, revenue is recognised over time by
using the input method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction
of that performance obligation, that best depict the Group’s
performance in transferring control of goods or services.

Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the
promised amount of consideration for the effects of the time value
of money if the timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customer or the Group with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer.
In those circumstances, the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component may exist regardless
of whether the promise of financing is explicitly stated in the
contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties to
the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and transfer of the
associated goods or services is less than one year, the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price for any
significant financing component.

For property development and sale contracts for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to delivery of the
properties to the customers are recognised as contract liabilities in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation (including properties under construction
for such purposes). Investment properties include land held for
undetermined future use, which is regarded as held for capital
appreciation purpose.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties also include leased properties which are being
recognised as right-of-use assets and subleased by the Group under
operating leases.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude
any prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which they
arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of the
investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal. A leased
property which is recognised as a right-of-use asset is derecognised
if the Group as an intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as
a finance lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit
or loss in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with finite useful lives are reported at cost
less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
(Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains and
losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that are held for
use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
and are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment (other than construction in progress)
over their estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any

changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the

carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements the entire consideration is allocated between the leasehold
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values at initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold
land that is presented as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that are classified
and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified as

property, plant and equipment.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control ot joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing
of control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the

parties sharing control.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint ventures
are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the
equity method of accounting. The financial statements of associates
and joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate or
joint venture. Changes in net assets of the associate/joint venture
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income are not
accounted for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of
an associate or joint venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that
associate ot joint venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the
joint venture and associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate or a joint venture, any excess of the cost
of the investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the
period in which the investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence that
the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be impaired.
When any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any assets including goodwill that forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with IAS 36 to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for
as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the Group
retains an interest in the former associate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the
Group measures the retained interest at fair value at that date and
the fair value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
of the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the associate
or joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation
to that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would be
required if that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income by that associate or joint
venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) upon
disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an investment
in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate.
There is no remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an associate or a
joint venture but the Group continues to use the equity method, the
Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive income
relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint venture
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests in
the associate or joint venture that are not related to the Group.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Inventories of properties

Properties held for/under development which are intended to be
sold upon completion of development and properties for sales
are classified as current assets. Except for the leasehold land
element which is measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets, properties held for/under
development/held for sales are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on a specific identification
basis including allocation of the related development expenditure
incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs capitalised.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the
properties less estimated cost to completion and costs necessary to

make the sales.

Properties held for/under development are transferred to properties

held for sales upon completion.

The Group transfers a property from property held for sales to
investment property when there is a change in use to hold the
property to earn rentals or/and for capital appreciation rather than
for sale in the ordinary course of business, which is evidenced by
the inception of an operating lease to another party. Any difference
between the fair value of the property at the date of transfer and its

previous cartying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for the

inventories less costs necessary to make the sales.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a settlement date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by

regulation or convention in the market place.
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BEZEERETAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts with
customers which are initially measured in accordance with IFRS
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.

Financial assets
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both selling and collecting

contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL”), except that at the date of initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment in
other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment is
neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by

an acquirer in a business combination to which IFRS 3 applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in

the near term; or

J on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces

an accounting mismatch.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(@)

(ii)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired (see below). For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of
the reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in OCI and
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative gain
or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of
the equity investments, and will be transferred to retained
earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other income” line item in
profit or loss.

4 % Annual Report [|||| 2020

151




152

Ko B 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

wE

—p—

—R R

FEHZA=T—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

b

HAMBEMA SRR
HRHBOR ()

3.2

FEEFHEOR (4
ST H %)

BB ()

S RE B BUR HAR R ()

Gii)y FEATHFIABG 2 S /E
7

UNCICELS 1 SR A
E R A At 2 T i i B
P4 FE R A A 2 T
i R SR E R
NFEF AR -

AR » P EE
AR 3 09 5 B E 5 - FE
AT o T AT AT (0
fe R 4R 2 AR -

<5l 9 % 7B AR 4 B
5 o e B SR O WA A T el (L T A
i) HAtIE B

AL AR (E B R (TR
BhiE ) HAH M EE (B
i B A RE WSRO~ R i I £
et - BhE A m KA B R SEOR -
CAEARSRATAF R DL B SRAT A5 B S Bl
) BRI W S 5 i o U 3R 0 9
JROEEAT B (EL AT A B HL AT B (F6 3
BAEREGA) E AT WA A5 - B
i B0 1R 10 & AU 25 5 F B
H o IR B R AR 5 HE R
L -

- EMTENE SR H B TR
V1 TR0 (55 P 300 70 T A T RE ) 4
Tz G SR - R
121/ A TS S48 ([ 121/ A
fREEE ) IR S H %12
5 A AT R A Y A -
FREMTENGE SRR - 5T
R A 42 1] 10 BB o f5 5 s 18 AR B
fro WREEE NSEHEE - —
J A SR WL A e 3 1 I 3 IR
Ut 36 A A IR ot 78 0 A 1 o

% o

A B 0 A S 5 MR R e SR AF
AT R REE -

3.

Longfor Group Holdings Limited || &2 it & M iz i% A [R 2 7

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(Continued)

(iii)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected credit
loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, amounts due from non-controlling interests, associates
and joint ventures, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) and other items (representing financial guarantee contracts)
which are subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The
amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument. In
contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance

equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the

Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime

ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(1) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

J an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; or

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, ot technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on the Group’s financial assets has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial assets
are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date.
A financial asset is determined to have low credit risk if 1) it
has a low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a financial asset to have low
credit risk when it has an internal or external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ as per globally understood definitions.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
for financial guarantee contracts, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(iif)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to
impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when the
amounts are over two years past due, whichever occurs
sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment
of the probability of default and loss given default is based on
historical data and forward-looking information. Estimation
of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition. For a lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with IFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items subject to

impairment assessment under IFRS 9 (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed. Accordingly, the ECL is the present value of
the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit
loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to

receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate

instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or
loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of account and other receivables
where the corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also

recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the

consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the
Group has elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is

transferred to retained earnings.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.



Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. EAMBHREGHILER:E
ROk )

3.2

FEEFHEOR ()
SMTH )
ERA R R TR ()

A =

iz A /B 5 IR AT B 2k £+ 52
15 ~ HAth AT B - AT I o e
% BEARRAECERE -
SR TR DL R R AT B A ) Eo R
o B PR R AT B PR A T i

MR EH)

S5 9% DR 44 i TR 4 7 A5 AR e

?“ﬁ%&%lifiﬁﬁﬂ% AN s - 5%
TNRZAHEE ST A AL

%E%E%ﬁ%%%%o%ﬁ%%

RGBS HHAFERE -

B RE A A RO T o8&

i

o RERBIEI B AR 0 BE
i E MR B R R

o WP HERR SRR (IE M) 7
PE ORI AERD 2 R A8 -

Ak ThERR

o LA AR AR Y T AT AR - B
THEE R > e bR S
BE o S IEHERR I & B R 2 IR T
EHRCA KM RER R - R
i N D

iy W&

A TREMAE TREGH % HI
O PRI UCHE RS B AR TR s IR
W AFEEHEE - BREMETR
F6E A TR EAR > A HIE
AR A R AR R RD. > TELLHR
DU T i R P A 4 T [ A6 38
BRI PR 7 -

REZZFEF A=+ —HIMEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including accounts and bills payables, other
payables, amounts due to non-controlling interests, associates and
joint ventures, senior notes and bank and other borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest

method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values. It is

subsequently measured at the higher of:

. the amount of the loss allowance determined in accordance
with IFRS 9; and

o the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised over the guarantee

period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
to their fair value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends

on the nature of the hedge relationship.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging (Continued)
Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid contracts that contain financial
asset hosts within the scope of IFRS 9 are not separated. The entire
hybrid contract is classified and subsequently measured in its

entirety as either amortised cost or fair value as appropriate.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts that are not
financial assets within the scope of IFRS 9 are treated as separate
derivatives when they meet the definition of a derivative, their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host

contracts and the host contracts are not measured at FVTPL.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges for foreign

currency and interest rate movements exposure (cash flow hedges).

At the inception of the hedging relationship the Group documents
the relationship between the hedging instrument and the hedged
item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at
the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group
documents whether the hedging instrument is highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item

attributable to the hedged risk.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Hedge accounting (Continued)

Assessment of hedging relationship and effectiveness

For hedge effectiveness assessment, the Group considers whether the
hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which
is when the hedging relationships meet all of the following hedge
effectiveness requirements:

J there is an economic relationship between the hedged item
and the hedging instrument;

o the effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes
that result from that economic relationship; and

J the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as
that resulting from the quantity of the hedged item that
the Group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging
instrument that the entity actually uses to hedge that
quantity of hedged item.

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness
requirement relating to the hedge ratio but the risk management
objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same,
the Group adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e.
rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the qualifying criteria again.

In assessing the economic relationship between the hedged item
and the hedging instrument, the Group assumes that the interest
rate benchmark on which the hedged cash flows and/or the hedged
risk (contractually or non-contractually specified) are based, or the
interest rate benchmark on which the cash flows of the hedging
instrument are based, is not altered as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that
are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in hedging reserve
limited to the cumulative charge in fair value of the hedged item
inception of the hedge. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss and is included in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Cash flow hedges (Continued)

For the purpose of reclassifying the amount of gains and losses
accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve in order to determine
whether the hedged future cash flows are expected to occur, the
Group assumes the interest rate benchmark on which the hedged
cash flows (contractually or non-contractually specified) are based is
not altered as a result of interest rate benchmark reform.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity (hedging reserve) are reclassified to profit or
loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit or loss, in the
same line of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as the recognised hedged item.

Discontinuation of hedge accounting

The Group discontinues hedge accounting prospectively only
when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to meet
the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This
includes instances when the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised. Discontinuing hedge accounting can
either affect a hedging relationship in its entirety or only a part
of it (in which case hedge accounting continues for the remainder
of the hedging relationship). Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that time
remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transactions is
ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in
equity is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract s, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange
for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on
the definition under IFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed. As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group reasonably
expects that the effects on the consolidated financial statements
would not differ materially from individual leases within the
portfolio.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or more
additional lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property which
includes both leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
leases of lands and buildings that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:
U the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

U an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets, restoring
the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of
the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties and
measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end of the
lease term are depreciated from commencement date to the end of
the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the

lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment property or inventory as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position. Right-
of-use assets that meet the definition of investment property
and inventory are presented within “investment properties” and

“inventories of properties” respectively.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS 9
and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments and

included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises and
measures the lease liability at the present value of lease payments
that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is

not readily determinable.
The lease payments include:

J fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less

any lease incentives receivable;
o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

U amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees;
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

U the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be

exercised by the Group; and

U payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the lease term

reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by

interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease by adding the

right to use one or more underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the increase in
scope and any appropriate adjustments to that stand-alone

price to reflect the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a separate lease,
the Group remeasures the lease liability based on the lease term of
the modified lease by discounting the revised lease payments using

a revised discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modifications (Continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease liabilities and
lease incentives from lessor by making corresponding adjustments
to the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the modified contract to each lease component on the basis of the
relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate

stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as finance
or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
underlying asset to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance

lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value model.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are

recognised as income when they arise.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s ordinary course

of business are presented as revenue.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease components,
the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate consideration in a contract
to lease and non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their relative stand-
alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease payments from
lessees.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for the head
lease and the sublease as two separate contracts. The sublease is
classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not part
of the original terms and conditions are accounted for as lease
modifications, including lease incentives provided through
forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification, considering any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the original lease as
part of the lease payments for the new lease.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. For properties under development for which revenue is
recognised over time, the Group ceases to capitalise borrowing costs
as soon as the properties are ready for the Group’s intended sale.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Borrowing costs (Continued)

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding after the related
asset is already for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a

foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit

or loss in the period in which they arise.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred taxation.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation because of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred taxation liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
taxation assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which these deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred taxation assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit

nor the accounting profit.

Deferred taxation liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests
in associates and joint ventures, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred taxation assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of
the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the

foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to

allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the

reporting period.

The measurement of deferred taxation liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or

settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the carrying
amounts of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred taxation liabilities and deferred taxation assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with the above
general principles set out in IAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected

manner as to how the properties will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use assets
and the related lease liabilities, the Group first determines whether
the tax deductions are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the
lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are attributable
to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12 requirements to
the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a net
basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities resulting in net

deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied to the same

taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred taxation are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred taxation are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred taxation arises from the initial accounting for
a business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting

for the business combination.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching

to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants related to income are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they

become receivable. Such grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, which
is a defined contribution plan, are recognised as an expense
when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions. Payments made to state-managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution
retirement benefit plans and state-managed retirement benefit
scheme are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

services entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid as and when employees
rendered the services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another IFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such as

wages and salaries) after deducting any amount already paid.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are measured at

the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Share options to employees (Continued)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration all
non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis
over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of options
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options or shares expected to vest based on
assessment of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a corresponding
adjustment to share option reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium. When
the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
share option reserve will be transferred to retained earnings.

Share awards to employees

The fair value of service received, determined by reference to the fair
value of awarded shares granted at the date of grant, is expensed on
a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share award reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of the awarded shares that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates during
the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share award reserve.

When awarded shares are vested, the amount previously recognised
in share award reserve and the amount of the relevant awarded shares
(presented under the shares held for share award scheme) will be
transferred to retained earnings.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually, when it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporates assets are allocated to
individual cash generating units when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.2

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable
and consistent basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying
amount of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the group of
CGUgs. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that
would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata
to the other assets of the unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment

loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs) in prior years. A reversal of

an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
Control over certain entities

During the year, certain entities (the “Subsidiaries”) have been accounted
for as subsidiaries by the Group (note 55) although the Group has only

held less than 50% equity interests in them.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the Group has
control over the Subsidiaries based on whether the Group has the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities of the Subsidiaries unilaterally.
In making the judgment, the directors of the Company considered the
Group’s voting power in making decision over the relevant activities of the
Subsidiaries at different times throughout their lives, such as the approval
of the operation plan and budget, the status of the property projects of the
Subsidiaries, pre-sale of property projects and the extent of workforce in
place and the right of appointing, remunerating and terminating the key
management personnel or service providers of the relevant activities. After
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group has
sufficiently dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of the

Subsidiaries and therefore the Group has control over them.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies (Continued)
Revenue recognition from sales of properties

Control of the asset is transferred over time when the Group’s performance
does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.
Significant judgment is required in determining whether the terms of the
relevant sales contracts create enforceable right to payment for the Group
for which the Group has considered the relevant local laws that apply to
those relevant contracts and has obtained external legal counsel opinion.
After assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that the Group

has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred taxation arising from investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the directors of
the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment property portfolios
and concluded that the Group’s investment properties are held under
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment propetties over time, rather
than through sale. Therefore, in determining the Group’s deferred taxation
on investment properties, the directors of the Company have determined
that the presumption of investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As a result, the
Group has recognised deferred taxation for PRC Enterprise Income Tax

(“EIT”) on changes in fair value of investment properties.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company
determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value

measurements.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses
market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs
are not available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to
petform the valuation. The Chief Financial Officer of the Company works
closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief Financial Officer
reports the findings to the board of directors of the Company every half
year to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value of the assets and

liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of investment
properties and certain types of financial instruments. Notes 12 and 53(f)
provide detailed information about the valuation techniques, inputs and
key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of various assets

and liabilities.

Properties held for development (“PFD”), properties under
development for sales (“PUD”) and properties held for sales (“PFS”)
under inventories of properties (collectively referred to as the

“Properties”)

As explained in note 3, the Properties are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value (the “NRV”). The directors of the Company make
significant judgments in determining the estimated selling prices of
the Properties and the estimation of future costs to completion of the

Properties, where applicable.

Based on the experience of the directors of the Company and the nature of
the subject properties, the directors of the Company determine the NRV of
the Properties by reference to the estimated market prices of the Properties,
which takes into account a number of factors including the recent prices
of similar property types in the same project or by similar properties, and
the prevailing and forecasted real estate market conditions in the PRC.
The directors of the Company estimate the future cost to completion of the
Properties, where applicable, by reference to the actual development cost of

the Group’s completed projects, adjusted by certain current market data.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Properties held for development (“PFD”), properties under
development for sales (“PUD”) and properties held for sales (“PFS”)
under inventories of properties (collectively referred to as the
“Properties”) (Continued)

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in selling
prices, this may result in write-downs for the Properties. Such write-
downs require the use of judgment and estimates of the directors of the
Company. As at December 31, 2020, the carrying amounts of PFD,
PUD and PFS were RMB14,172,529,000, RMB322,276,158,000
and RMB38,691,159,000, respectively (2019: RMB11,316,747,000,
RMB296,503,846,000 and RMB23,570,779,000, respectively).

No write-downs of the Properties were considered necessary for the year
ended December 31, 2020 (2019: Nil).

Land appreciation tax (“LAT”)
LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for sale in the PRC,

at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land
value, being the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including the cost of land, sales charges, borrowing costs and all relevant

property development expenditures.

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. Significant judgments are
made by the directors of the Company in estimating the amounts of land
appreciation and the applicable land appreciation tax rate due to the
uncertainty of proceeds of sales of properties and deductible expenditures
for the whole project.

The Group recognises LAT in its consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income when properties are delivered
to the buyers. However, the LAT calculation and payments with local
tax authorities in the PRC for the year will not be finalised until the
appreciation amount of the whole property project is confirmed with local
tax authorities. The final tax outcome could be different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, and these differences will impact the income
tax expense and the related income tax provisions in the period in which

such tax is finalised with local tax authorities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Income tax expense

As at December 31, 2020, deferred taxation assets of RMBS§,866,713,000
(2019: RMB6,725,593,000) mainly in relation to tax losses, land
appreciation tax provisions, unrealised profit on intra-group purchases and
right-of-use assets, and related lease liabilities have been recognised in
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position, after offsetting
certain deferred taxation liabilities as set out in note 34. The realisability
of the deferred taxation assets mainly depends on whether sufficient future
profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. The
directors of the Company determine the deferred taxation assets based on
the best knowledge of profit projections of the Group for coming years
during which the deferred taxation assets are expected to be utilised. The
directors of the Company review the assumptions and profit projections
by the end of the reporting period. In cases where the actual future profits
generated are more or less than expected, an additional recognition or a
reversal of deferred taxation assets may arise, which would be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which such a recognition or reversal takes

place.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on internal reports

about components of the Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief

operating decision maker (“CODM”) (i.e., the executive directors of the

Company) in order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its

performance.

The Group is organised into business units based on their types of

activities, based on which information is prepared and reported to the

Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

performance. The Group’s operating segments under IFRS 8 Operating

Segments are identified as three main operations:

(a)

Property development: this segment represents the development
and sales of office and commercial premises and residential
properties. All of the Group’s activities in this regard are carried out
in the PRC.

Property investment: this segment represents the lease of
investment properties, which are self-developed or under subleases
by the Group to generate rental income and to gain from the
appreciation in the properties’ values in the long term. Currently the
Group’s investment property portfolio mainly comprises shopping

malls and rental housing and are all located in the PRC.

Property management and related services and others: this segment
mainly represents the income generated from property management
and related services, hotel operation and others. Currently the

Group’s activities in this regard are carried out in the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Company’s executive directors
monitor the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable to

each operating segment on the following bases:
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5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and
current assets directly attributable to each segment with the
exception of deposits paid for acquisition of properties held for
development, interests in associates and joint ventures, equity
instruments at FVTOCI, deferred taxation assets, taxation
recoverable, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at
FVTPL and other corporate assets. Other corporate assets are not
allocated to the operating segments because they are head office
assets or assets which are managed centrally by the Group. The
investment properties included in segment assets are stated at cost
when assessed by the CODM.

Segment liabilities include accounts and bills payables and accrued
expenditure on construction, lease liabilities and contract liabilities
but exclude taxation payable, deferred taxation liabilities, bank and
other borrowings, senior notes, derivative financial instruments,
other derivative financial instruments and other corporate liabilities.
Other corporate liabilities are not allocated to the operating
segment because they are head office liabilities or liabilities which

are managed on a group basis.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the operating segments with
reference to sales generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments. Segment profit does not include the
Group’s share of results arising from the activities of the Group’s

associates and joint ventures.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is adjusted earnings
before interest, other income, other gains and losses, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation, share of results of associates and
joint ventures, change in fair value of investment properties and
upon transfer to investment properties, change in fair value of
other derivative financial instruments and finance costs (“Adjusted
Earnings”), where “interest” includes investment income and
“depreciation” includes impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at Adjusted Earnings of each segment, the segment
earnings are further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as directors” emoluments, auditor’s
remuneration and other head office or corporate administration

COsts.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the measurement of segment assets and results, property, plant
and equipment and certain right-of-use assets are allocated to
segments while their corresponding depreciation and amortisation

are not allocated to segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning segment
profit, management is provided with segment information
concerning revenue (including inter-segment sales) and additions
to non-current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations. Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices

charged to external parties for similar service.

Information regarding the Group’s operating and reportable

segments is set out below.

BEZZRE A HILEE
Year ended December 31, 2020

W BR

MBI R
VIES R E Hofl 5t

Property

management

and related

Property Property  services and
development  investment others Total
ARFFE  ARWFLE  ARETLE  ARFFZ
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

KASMFF A Revenue from external customers

AR B A Recognised at a point in time 156,206,825 = - 156,206,825
KEN TR Recognised over time 14,774,416 7,576,110 5,989,945 28,340,471
AEbEA Inter-segment revenue - - 1,906,791 1,906,791
Vix LON Segment revenue 170,981,241 7,576,110 7,896,736 186,454,087
DR (R F) Segment profit (Adjusted Earnings) 41,400,941 4,987,239 1,882,464 48,270,644
NG E Segment assets 399,504,991 123,912,565 3,128,463 526,546,019
NiEE Segment liabilities 267,071,062 18,721,978 312,937 286,105,977

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| &8 #1 & @ = i 5 1R A 7



5.

Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE =B = H I

For the year ended December 31, 2020

vig: ¥-g ittt 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Concinued)
@ EES - BERAE® (a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)
BEZ-NEF AT AR

Year ended December 31, 2019

WEEHR

HIBRE R
EZT WERE it A5t

Property

management

and related

Property Property  setvices and
development  investment others Total
ANRETFT  AEEFr AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

KASMFF A Revenue from external customers

i A Recognised at a point in time 120,539,767 - - 120,539,767
B e ] R Recognised over time 20,253,469 5,789,150 4444046 30,486,665
Vi iileN Inter-segment revenue - - 715,165 715,165
Vi LON Segment revenue 140,793,236 5,789,150 5,159,211 151,741,597
ARl A (R ) Segment profit (Adjusted Farnings) 40,997,197 3838157 1350,806 46,186,160
B Segment assets 348103914 110,242,825 1,905,105 460,251,844
e E Segment liabilities 225,378,067 15,123,893 97,253 240,599,213
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5.
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SR )

(a)

aibsEs - BELAM @)
Al A B

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

Other segment information

PFEEER
AR R
LUE 3 S 3 i AR Bt
Property
management

and related
Property Property  services and
development  investment others  Unallocated Total

ARKTE  ARKFE  ARKTL  ARKFE  ARKTZ
RMBO00  RMBU0O0  RMBO00 ~ RMBUOO  RMBO0O

FEMBERERTIAZ  Amounts included in the measure of

TR segment assets:

CRCRAE 2020

INETFRE A () Additions to non-current assets (Note) 769,619 17,914,115 214,053 1,089,275 19,987,062
~F U 2019

REFMBEE (W) Additions to non-curren assets (Note) 158,100 19,703,187 153,960 - 20,015,247

WRE - FOHRRBELEY - W36 - i
15 BBl ~ TV E T R
i o

I 288 B B o D i A 1 2 68 R
b > EEEEFRNERBA R A
KEEGETHENER - ARG
T AR A S A AT B 3
B TR AR SE A HE SR K A AR B
HH - BEYE R LB
P PSS - KRR &M T
WO EEE) - HAbUA ~ HAtlds
Rkt - AERORMERA - 78
& S DY g D
WAEREE (A) -

Note: Amounts represent additions to investment properties, property, plant and

equipment, intangible assets, and right-of-use assets.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment profit, the chief operating decision maker is provided
with information concerning the Group’s consolidated amount
of interests in associates and related share of results, interests in
joint ventures and related share of results, change in fair value of
investment properties and upon transfer to investment properties,
change in fair value of other derivative financial instruments, other
income, other gains and losses, finance costs from borrowings,
depreciation and amortisation and impairment losses (if any) which

are not allocated to operating segments.
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(b)

AN~ 1R - BE KA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE =B = H I

For the year ended December 31, 2020

5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

1B W R assets and liabilities
A
2020 2019
ARWEFE ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
A Revenue
AR Segment revenue 186,454,087 151,741,597
3 R A N 3 4 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (1,906,791) (715,165)
AU Consolidated revenue 184,547,296 151,026,432
i | Profit
3B s Segment profit 48,270,644 46,186,160
HoAtu A Other income 1,466,409 1,166,687
HAthlle 25 K518 Other gains and losses 455,306 (233,730)
R B RCEY R A TE (B598) 145 Fair value (loss) gain upon transfer to
investment properties (41,995) 141,256
TGN T E) Change in fair value of investment properties 2,351,050 3,593,396
AT A 4 i T LA T 5 ) Change in fair value of other derivative
financial instruments (13,532) 353,110
& A Finance costs (105,970) (76,759)
N E S Share of results of associates 691,264 585,822
[ e o Share of results of joint ventures 590,803 766,200
e gy Depreciation and amortisation (258,116) (142,321)
RIMHCHH X Unallocated expenses (7,036,120)  (6,378,607)
SE A BB TG Consolidated profit before taxation 46,369,743 45,961,214

—
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

5. ER )

by A - Hik - HERA

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of segment revenues, profit or loss,

R EHR (49) assets and liabilities (Continued)
“ERTRE TN
2020 2019
AR ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B Assets

O ER Segment assets 526,546,019 460,251,844

BEYRERNTHRR S Cumulative change in fair value of

JATE 2 A RE AR

iSEg eIk £
R NTE R A A A T i Y
M4 TA

SO ASHESE YN C AR &

e TR

AT el B
BAFEF ARG S REE
RO BRSO A E

BEEERE
fafR

AR

TEATBLIH
EAERIA A i

BRAT BOHAAE K

[ i

e TR
HAbRTE 2R T A

R BLARED B AR R

oA

investment properties
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures

Equity instruments at FVTOCI

Deposits paid for acquisition of
properties held for development

Deferred taxation assets

Derivative financial instruments

Taxation recoverable

Financial assets at FVTPL

Unallocated head office and other assets
Consolidated total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Taxation payable

Deferred taxation liabilities

Bank and other borrowings

Senior notes

Derivative financial instruments
Other derivative financial instruments

Unallocated head office and other liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

36,109,997 33,800,942
10,565,712 8,235,167
7,569,592 6,570,314
3,781,062 1,420,202
6,152,572 5,200,886
8,866,713 6,725,593
286,089 644,113
6,350,307 4,591,727
440,000 450,000
158,490,762 124,354,060
765,158,825 652,244,848
286,105,977 240,599,213
33,352,975 28,288,145
10,563,381 9,245,100
149,334,607 131,305,621
18,032,587 14,693,411
864,522 68,883
32,419 14,780
74,148,204 61,351,939
572,434,672 485,567,092
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

vig: ¥-g ittt 5.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Concinued)

(0 B RIRE T HBA ©
A B S AR
BIAELAR 2 3 AR A MRS T 0

Revenue from major product and services

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its

properties sold, properties self-developed or under subleases for

AR investment and services provided:
ZERIRE R UE
2020 2019
AREFE ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HEYE Sales of properties
A TR ] 2 e Recognised at a point in time 156,206,825 120,539,767
s I [ e Recognised over time 14,774,416 20,253,469
B9 at! Property development segment 170,981,241 140,793,236
W) 3 TR BR R s B HE A A — Revenue from property management and
i I [H] A related services and others — recognised
over time 5,989,945 4,444,046
HEEHA Revenue from contract with customers 176,971,186 145,237,282
FHE A Rental income 7,576,110 5,789,150
A A Total revenue 184,547,296 151,026,432
———————————
@ ME (d) Leases
CRIRE ZEF U
2020 2019
ARWEFE  ARKFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEamE - For operating leases:
I8 2 FH 5 AROE (LSRR I T 1Y Lease payments that are fixed
BRI (including those under subleases) 7,252,159 5,433,808
AT HE—8 Bl 2R 2 1Y) Variable lease payments that do not
A B FH B 2 IA depend on an index or a rate 323,951 355,342
P 7 AR I i 4 4R Total revenue arising from leases 7,576,110 5,789,150

T—
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5. ER ) 5.
(e) HEERl

TREFNE HEWE - SE S
W3 B AR AR P A v I 3k i

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(e) Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the Group’s revenue

from external customers by cities in the PRC, based on the location

O B AR AR B AN A F A at which the properties are sold, properties are invested or under
R o JETE) K E ERHE G T subleases and services are provided. Information about its non-
IR BT - current assets is analysed by geographical location of assets.
A B AN P EBON PR B G A
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
“EROFRE CTNFE ZB5FFE TNE
2020 2019 2020 2019
AREFL ARWTIT ARWFLT ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000
e Beijing 4,276,253 5,564,861 19,708,539 14,767,340
HHD Chengdu 15,338,435 13,476,132 20,082,649 17,655,927
iy Chongging 29,085,889 30,052,573 32,254,928 27,686,139
WA Hangzhou 15,943,072 12,182,167 17,209,050 16,431,695
i Jinan 9,393,998 13,928,125 652,273 68,631
Y Ningbo 11,217,699 5,699,706 1,295,353 930,000
HE Qingdao 5,595,008 8,541,821 1,380,821 984,547
i Shanghai 11,759,954 3,975,358 16,901,555 14,644,518
ks Shenyang 9,344,402 6,403,504 593,613 5,791
Tk r Sunan 5,851,121 6,913,374 1,104,959 1,132,986
B Xiamen 4,379,801 6,032,060 2,377,111 2,413,117
754 Xian 8,925,161 3,117,919 2,253,192 1,847,721
o g EAb I T Other cities in the PRC 53,436,503 35,138,832 59,634,743 49,625,143

184,547,296 151,026,432 175,448,786 148,193,555

WL« R U R A AT S TR R

4 BB — SRR A T2 ) i
NEAREER AR 1028 L -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| &8 #1 & @ = i 5 1R A 7
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Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred taxation

assets.

No revenue from transaction with a single external customer

amounts to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue.
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6. JLABBA 6. OTHER INCOME
EE——— 00000
N
2020 2019
AR¥TFT AR¥TT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEHA Interest income 823,215 709,372
U FERG (B iEa) Government subsidies (Note a) 83,986 46,330
AN (FEED) Penalty income (Note b) 183,555 97,571
AEFA (B iEC) Consultancy income (Note c) 211,714 152,360
HETE A Sundry income 163,939 161,054
5t Total 1,466,409 1,166,687
—
WRE - Notes:
(a) SRR TEAR B o B R R A S5 A 72 (a) The amount represents the grants received from the relevant PRC government to
[ 5% ¥ T 3 et 2 AR TR O A B o Je U s encourage the investments in specific regions and COVID-19-related subsidies. The
AR BT A A $ T A A T A B subsidies are unconditional and granted on a discretionary basis to the Group during
the year.
(b) e AT B B ek E (b) It represents penalty received from property buyers who did not execute sales and
R B AR A& LR B R AL ORI purchase agreements on property sales and from tenants who early terminated
& e tenancy agreements.
(© A RRAE HA  SE BR R T E e AR 4 Y (c) The amount represents the consultancy services provided to the Group’s joint
BB AR SE B O R SRS = B A Y ventures and associates and independent third parties in relation to the property
AR development projects.

4 % Annual Report || 2020 189



i I R 2 MR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

7. e bW RER 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

“EORE CF A
2020 2019

ARMTFE  ARWTT
RMB'000  RMB'000

HEWE - WS KM (B1E)  Gain (loss) on disposal of property,

plant and equipment 2,713 (4,873)
BEE S i (R 98 R (BT Net exchange gain (loss) (Note) 2,014,327 (568,875)
EES i it 2B 0 e LY Reclassification of fair value (loss) gain of hedging
ONTE (B8R Weas (BfFaE32) instruments from hedging reserve (Note 32) (1,561,136) 340,525
HAth Others (598) (507)

455,306 (233,730)
—————————

WERE : 5 SaHR AT ([T ) 836 (M 365 1) 3 Note: It represents exchange difference arising from the translation of bank balances, bank
ERSRITAER - AT R RE R E IR & borrowings and senior notes denominated in foreign currencies of Hong Kong Dollar
4 HEE 50258 o (“HKD”) or United States Dollar (“USD”).
8. WA 8. FINANCE COSTS

“RIRE CF A
2020 2019

AR#FE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

AT BRI AR Interest on bank and other borrowings
I HLAFE R S Wholly repayable within five years (5,646,818)  (5,046,349)
IJEU AR N R B R Not wholly repayable within five years (1,575,213)  (1,099,163)
B E R FIE B 2 Interest expense on senior notes (756,528) (442,283)

(7,978,559)  (6,587,795)
B BRPGEY BRI RE Less: Amount capitalised to properties under

MR G &5 development for sales and investment

properties under development 7,872,589 6,511,036

(105,970) (76,759)
EE———
EAAL Y B RA T IR A A Y — ARG Borrowing costs capitalised arose on the general borrowing pool of the
PH RERECFFRETA=T—H Group and were calculated by applying a capitalisation rate of 4.48%
IR 4P 4.48% (ZF—JUAF © 470%) (2019: 4.70%) per annum for the year ended December 31, 2020, to

HEARL LRFE > stAREREEM expenditure on the qualifying assets.

Yo
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

9. PBifaBihx 9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
EE——— 00000
e A
2020 2019
ARWFLT  AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000
AL E Current tax
ki B EIT (10,696,401)  (10,163,110)
O IR BRI AT Withholding tax on distributed earnings (319,693) (588,423)
T (AR LAT (8,591,298)  (10,325,402)
(19,607,392)  (21,076,935)
P ST HITAF FEE 1 R AR A - Overprovision in prior years:
fPTIBL (i iEa) EIT (Note a) 453,914 125,258
T EBE (K iEb) LAT (Note b) 869,022 636,100
1,322,936 761,358
TRIERLIA (Ffsk34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
AAE Current year 755,025 906,828
(17,529,431)  (19,408,749)
I
MsE - Notes:
() WA T % T 2ETE H 0 E A 7 ks (a) The assessment and computation of EIT payable in respect of certain subsidiaries
Kt FREAT PR B C 52 B > oA R which held completed property projects were finalised which differed from the
EH BN AE S ST R B AR A management’s estimation on EIT in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of EIT
AR RIS R AR - WE— in respect of prior years. During the year ended December 31, 2020, preferential tax
FoREFAZ—HIEEE s H T rate has been granted to certain PRC subsidiaries for calculation of EIT in prior years,
WEFJB 2 452 0D 8 R Rt B e i 4 resulting to an overprovision of EIT in respect of prior years.
i) A SE A BE > A ST Al 4 BE HY b 2E BT
B AR
(b) HTYEE E N E R ERHC THEE i (b) The actual appreciation amount of certain property projects had been finalised and

TYEEH SRR BT > B
AERT Al Rl oI A 0 (LB 4 P A6t ) 3
BRI - 35 B7E 47 o b (B o 2 1B
s o

R A LB BARAEAIRERAE
> HO AR A BB

R4 B A 2E R A B (TP amiE )
T A SE TR BUR BRG] A RAEA -
196 i T RO B R 2 B 2595

AN FI R B 4 T MR 22 7 & B
A G A A B RGeS P A

B o

the development plan for certain property projects had been revised in which the
revised estimated or final appreciation amount was different with the appreciation
amount made in prior years, resulting in an overprovision of LAT in respect of prior
years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group does

not have income which arises in, or is derived from, Hong Kong.

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.

Certain of the Company’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC are eligible for

exemption from PRC EIT for both years.

4 # Annual Report ||| 2020

191



192

Ko B 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZFZBET AT —HIMEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

9. MBI )
FEERIE B A1 M AL IR E A

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation

Bl F AR A per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:
“ERORE TN
2020 2019
AREFLT  ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000
R i s ) Profit before taxation 46,369,743 45,961,214
25% 1 E PTG R EIT at 25% (11,592,436) (11,490,304)
JREAL Bt N P SE AR R B S S 2 Tax effect of share of results of associates 172,816 146,456
JEAG A8 A S5 AR BT R 2 Tax effect of share of results of joint ventures 147,701 191,550
SUBETT S AR PSR BS 32 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
(P 5Ea) tax purposes (Note a) (976,459) (619,276)
FUBUETT 5 WEABA B2 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 1,725 3,167
T s e LAT (8,591,298)  (10,325,402)
- M R RS Tax effect of LAT 2,147,825 2,581,351
TEAE B Overprovision in prior years 1,322,936 761,358
R R R B 2 Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (68,815) (59,229)
TERRJC AT R MR BB R BIF 2 Tax effect of recognition of tax losses previously
not recognised 17,261 -
FR e AR R B T s 1 Utilisation of tax loss previously not recognised 35,722 85,152
HTH B A AR B % ) Effect of tax exemption and preferential rates
BB BR A 2 granted to certain PRC subsidiaries 33,284 44,383
BRI IRPE R B A TR (Bf5Eb)  Withholding tax on retained earnings to be
distributed (Note b) (378,565) (727,955)
FERTE IR R A E M BUE R Tax exemption on reinvestment of dividend
previously declared 198,872 -
EER Tax charge for the year (17,529,431)  (19,408,749)
————————
W5 - Notes:
(a) % 4 A R A 3 A B R e B S (a) The amount mainly comprises the tax effect of non-deductible corporate expenses and

T S A 0 W 2 ) AR E 5 T
TEE M) 2~V L6 B T W ol 4 ) B S
HABHBLIARBLE I AT R BB B2

(b) R R R A B B A e A
3k O, OB A 7 1 R B 1 2 B ) Sk
B 12008111255 » 5% M B T ATR Bl 2
A BB A A0 2 ) A B 2596 I B
Vb RN ) o SRR A N R T AR
7 R A 43 DR T T O 40 TR B AS B,
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fair value surplus of certain assets acquired through acquisition of subsidiaries of the
Group and the expenses of certain subsidiaries in excess of the allowable deduction

limits in accordance with the relevant tax regulations.

(b) According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the
Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa {2008}
No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25% of the
capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.
The amount represents the withholding income tax provided on the undistributed

profits of certain PRC subsidiaries during the year.
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10. M 10. DIVIDENDS
I —
“RORE CENE
2020 2019
ANR#EFLE ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ENHERSIRM M, - Dividends recognised as distribution during
the year:
TR TR A B Interim dividend recognised in respect of 2020
B NER#0.400C of RMB0.40 (2019: RMBO0.36) per share
(ZF— U4 - ARWo0.3670) 2,423,341 2,145,338
TR JUEIRM R B S Final dividend paid in respect of 2019 of
BRAR0.847C RMBO0.84 (2019: in respect of 2018 of
(ZF—JUF : ZF— 4 RMBO0.69) per share
B R¥0.6970) 5,035,456 4,111,731
7,458,797 6,257,069
————————————
ﬁ/\ﬁﬂlﬁﬁ‘@ﬁﬁfﬁ VNN N e e Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
BFOR-BES A= —HIFEERE RMB6,240,269,000, representing RMB1.03 per share, based on the
WS R 6,240,269,0007C » AR number of shares in issue as at December 31, 2020, in respect of the year
W13 (RN E_FEES A=+ — ended December 31, 2020 (2019: final dividend of RMB5,025,813,000,
HIE BT EE) (ZF—UE - 82 representing RMB0.84 per share, in respect of the year ended December
ZERNFET A ST H IR R 31, 2019) has been proposed by the directors of the Company and is
JB BN R #5,025,813,00070 » A B subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General
0.847C) » MEZEoF FB AR I IRE Jik P 548 4 K Meeting.
BHOE -
11 RBAA 11. EARNINGS PER SHARE
AN TR N AL o P R AR R 8 22 ) 11 The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to
R I EGA DU EE the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
“ROFRE _FIEF
2020 2019
AREFLE ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000
A G A I AR A A 1Y) Earnings attributable to the owners of the
AN FHEA NTEAS 2R Company for the purposes of calculation of
basic and diluted earnings per share 20,002,025 18,336,577

I—
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11.

12.

FRBA )

11.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

ZFIFE CFNE
2020 2019
TH T
000 ‘000
et 4 H Number of shares
FA G E R AR Z RIS @ B Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
TH 8 purpose of calculation of basic earnings per share 5,869,386 5,859,146
BLDUT S JEAR B 2 L BV 7E S Effece of dilutive potential ordinary shares in
W respect of
— R 5 I 473 5 — Share options and share awards 112,087 119,677
IR EA I R A 05 @ e Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
4 the purpose of calculation of diluted
earnings per share 5,981,473 5,978,823

A T 8 4 B PR AR B A 2 A P B
) 38 R 2 BUS A BR — 2 WS 3%
REAARAEA > 7] B 03 8% Bl T 3] AR RE T 5K
RARFIFA AR RS

BHYE

AEERBEEEEEHHAE AT ETER
> A S - HERRIRBIR—
A L8 A 2 204F - TEIEHIHE RS
1819 5 289 81 15 5151 1 B AR B AT AR AR
AR B IR I8 72 ) B IR 47 BE A B Ak

AR 55 18 PRI AL % D o T e S R e > DR
RITAREY LB TR AR
Wt o A A0 S R AR 1 (E O R
B/ BORAE T AR5 5 B ) 2 1
A o

12.
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The weighted average number of ordinary shares adopted in the calculation
of basic and diluted earnings per share for both years have been arrived at
after deducting the shares held in trust for the Company by an independent

trustee under the share award scheme of the Company.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group leases out various apartments and retail stores under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 1 month to 20 years. The leases of retail stores contain variable
lease payment that are based on 1% to 28% sales and minimum annual

lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of the lease
arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the respective functional
currencies of group entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual
value guarantee and/or lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end

of lease term.
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12. BEWE @) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
%971 B
Erace/ES BEWR st
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  development Total

ARBTFL — ARWTFL  ARKTL
RMB'000 RMB000  RMB000

AVE FAIR VALUE
RZE—F—A—H At January 1, 2019 72,399,380 30,234,756 102,634,136
N Additions 4,549,770 15,136,304 19,686,074
BRI A AU EE  Acquisition of assets through acquisition of

(B 3E35) subsidiaries (Note 35) - 2,751,777 2,751,777
WO AR EYE(FEE) Transfer from PES (Note) 2,138,628 - 2,138,628
g Transfer 13,843,350  (13,843,350) -
AR PR Net increase in fair value recognised in

ONTAE Y 18 A profit or loss 846,958 2,746,438 3,593,396
REFE—JETZHA=1T—H At December 31, 2019 93,778,086 37,025,925 130,804,011
WE Additions 3,042,185 13,014,059 16,056,244
BRI A B EE  Acquisition of assets through acquisition of

(Fit5E3s) subsidiaries (Note 35) 1,684,106 399,256 2,083,362
L A R Ll B 2E (B ) Transfer from PES (Note) 2,083,679 = 2,083,679
R Transfer 21,148,278  (21,148,278) =
MBI RN AT EISMIFAE  Net increase in fair value recognised in

profit or loss 245,849 2,105,201 2,351,050

AL Early termination of leases (892,548) = (892,548)
RNoEFEFELA=Z+—H At December 31, 2020 121,089,635 31,396,163 152,485,798

FIARG 2 WEEMN RSB Unrealised gain on property revaluation

g included in profit or loss 320,971 2,105,201 2,426,172
WfsE : HRESE = MRS EC L - BRY Note: The transfer from PFS to investment properties were made since there was a change
ER®RC B AREL SRR in use as evidenced by the inception of operating leases to third parties.
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12.

BHWE )

BEYFEIIO B o R H AP
{E 2 51 B C % BB W) 36 4% h A 4R
BERRMYIE K B 5 = E AE AR Y
*

ALEEAERRNCHBBEYE AT
FE 0 S B R B B S s H
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the PRC. The completed
investment properties which are stated at fair value as at the reporting date
included properties developed by the Group and properties leased from

third parties for sub-lease purpose.

The fair values of the Group’s self-developed completed investment
properties, certain leasehold land and investment properties under
development at the reporting date have been arrived at on the basis
of valuation carried out by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited (“Savills”), a firm of independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group, who have appropriate qualifications and recent
experiences in the valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations.
The fair values of properties held for sales transferred to investment
properties during the year have also been arrived at on the basis of

valuation carried out at the dates of transfer by Savills.

The fair values of the Group’s remaining leasehold land and investment
properties under development at the reporting date have been arrived on
the basis of valuation carried out by the directors with reference to the basis

of valuation carried out by Savills or based on recent transaction prices.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best use of
the properties is their current use. The fair values of certain investment
properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid on accrued operating lease

income to avoid double counting.

The fair values of the investment properties were determined by the valuers

on the following basis:

Completed properties — arrived at by capitalising the net rental income
derived from the existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary

potential income of the respective properties.

Properties under development — valued on the basis that they will be
developed and completed in accordance with the latest development
proposals and taken into account the construction costs that will be
expended to complete the development as well as developer’s profit margin

to reflect the quality of the completed development.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

All of the Group’s property interests in leasehold land and buildings to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured using the fair

value model and classified and accounted for as investment properties.

Lease liabilities of RMB12,634,607,000 (2019: RMB11,256,042,000)
are recognised with related investment properties under subleases
of RMB14,623,457,000 as at December 31, 2020 (2019:
RMB14,081,637,000). The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor and the relevant leased assets may not be used as security for

borrowing purposes.

The Group's investment properties are grouped under Level 3 fair value
hierarchy and there were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during both
years. The following table gives information about how the fair values of
these investment properties are determined (in particular, the valuation

techniques and inputs used).
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12. BHEWE)

12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

R/ 4¢ /S BRPRENE
Completed investment Investment properties
properties under development
L
CRIRE SR ZRIRE CERE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ANREFE  ARBTT  ARETFLZ  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
AR P — L Western China - Shopping malls 46,038,158 33,014,800 4,360,743 9,100,555
HB TR — A Western China — Apartments 2,711,850 1,835,900 = -
R P - A A Western China — Apartments under sublease 1,534,594 1,784,940 = -
TR — YL Pan Bohai Rim - Shopping malls 14,265,000 11,705,900 6,526,680 5,296,164
TR — A Pan Bohai Rim — Apartments 66,400 - = -
TR R — BN E Pan Bohai Rim — Apartments under sublease 3,833,905 3,350,468 = -
R - RSN Pan Bohai Rim — Undetermined future use - - - 2,853,036
RIL=fM -0 Yangtze River Delta - Shopping malls 37,417,870 30,274,650 13,115,005 15,437,929
RIZAN-AE Yangtze River Delta — Apartments 3,013,100 2,491,800 = -
RIL= AW - AR Yangtze River Delta — Apartments under sublease 4,240,230 4,101,421 = -
RIL= MM —A%E Yangtze River Delta - Office 1,046,100 - = -
HEP R — N Central China — Apartments 660,100 373,400 - -
R - L Central China - Shopping malls - - 5479845 3523867
Herp s — AR Central China — Apartments under sublease 1,789,329 1,791,389 - -
HE R — O Southern China - Shopping malls = - 1,913,890 814,374
R A Southern China - Apartments 846,000 - = -
SR — A A Southern China — Apartments under sublease 3,225,399 3,093,418 = -
R AT Southern China — Office 401,600 - - -
Ht Total 121,089,635 93,778,086 31,396,163 37,025,925

198 Longfor Group Holdings Limited |[||| #2 58 & @ 1 iz & B 2 7)

I— s



Z A B R M
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BER RS L

For the year ended December 31, 2020
12. BEWE @) 12. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

RS RRE B R d

Significant unobservable inputs for completed investment properties

Mg i ETHARE HEE EREnte THETHE
Term yield Reversionary yield Discount rate Monthly term rental Reversionary tental
(Hita) (Hikb) (Hike) (Hikd) (Hite)
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ) (Note d) (Notee)
— — — - O eee—

CECEE CTNF ZECEE CTONE CRCRE CTNE CRCRE CT0F CECER CIAR
m oy 0 019 0 019 0 019 0 019

(] (7 (] (5
307 S o7 S 70 S 707
AT AREr) AREE) ARED)
(RMB (RIMB (RMB [RMB
persqm.  persgm. persqam. persq.n.
permonth)  permonth)  permonth)  per moneh)

HETA- B Western China - Shopping malls 36-65%  3%-63%  45%-1%  45%-7% - - 36-368 36364 91-719 91-719
HEfY- A Western China - Apartments 45% 45% 5% 3% = - =16 9-1120 =100 3-106
HEATA-EHAE  Western China - Apartments under

sublease - - - - 5.5% 3.3% - - -8 91-93
FRIHE - 16HL  Pan Bohai Rim - Shopping malls 55%-6%  5S%-6%  5.5%-6% 6 - - l8-27 163-30  268-578  257-34l
RbE- g Pan Bohai Rim - Apartments 45%  TERNA 5% TR NA = - 06 TERNA 65-12  TERANA
RENE-EAAE  PanBohai Rim - Apartments

under sublease - - - - 6% 5%-1% - - BT Y-154
RUZAH-80  YangueRiver Delra- Shopping malls 5% 6%~ 33%-6%  6%-1%  6%-7% = - -6 M-194 138515 162-515
RI=AN-1E Vangtae River Delta - Apartmenss —— 375%-45% 45% 5% 3% = - p-10 8- -1 B-116
RIZAN-BHAE  Yangte River Delta - Apartments

under sublease - - - - 5%-65%  5%-T% - - 0000 75-19
RIZAN-BAZ  Yangtee River Delta- Office 45%  TERNA  375%-5%  FERNA = - G6-17  TEEANA O H-17  TEENA
HEE-NE Central China - Apartments 45% 45% 5% 3% = - £-53 £5-51 47-67 47-67
FOUE-#HAE  Centrl China - Apartments

under sublease - - - - S%-0%  5%-T% - - R-100 82-106
EEHE-NE Southern China - Apartments % TERNA 5% TR NA = - 64-89  TEMNA 64-94  TEMNA
FHNE-#HAE  Southern China - Apartments

under sublease - - - - S%-0%  5%-T% - - 0-15 w-127
HiE-#AE Southern China - Office 35%  MERNIA % THERNA - - 61 FEANA 60-64  MERNA

— — — . EE———
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12. $EWE @)

12.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

BRI SEN TR TRE S\t

Significant unobservable inputs for investment properties under development

ARREE AR L3 ES
Gross development value Developer's profit Discount rate
(k) (Witg) (Hith)
(Note f) (Note g) (Note h)
EEass—— 0 sssssssss 0 O Seeeess—— 0
e T ST = M ST = T ST
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
AEWEEL  AREEET
RMB'million  RMB million
ST~ B Western China - Shopping mall 756- 1,160 1,005-1545 6-20%  10%-200  435%-475% 433%-475%
TR - B Pan Bohai Rim - Shopping malls 267-490 100128 10%-20% 0% 435%-475% 475%
RIL= fl - e Yangtze River Delta — Shopping malls LI44-1321  1242-13% 5% - 20% S%-20%  435%-475%  435% -4.75%
bR - B Central China - Shopping malls 551-913 1-940 5% - 20% 10%-20%  435%-475%  435% -4.75%
ElE-RhL Southern China - Shopping malls 130-160  FEHNA 5% FERNA 475%  THERNA
L NN I
WsE - Notes:
(a) A AR 3R R B T 4 T BT e (a) Term yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average selling price
SE T T YR 4 AR s 2 o WA R and the market average rental from comparable properties and adjustment to reflect
B DI AR 8 (E AR 5 U the lower market risk for the term value.
(b) AT RE T AT AL A W 2 % T B 51 A (b) Reversionary yield has taken into account of yield generated by market average
Jow] b S 5P Y A G e AR Y Mg % selling price and the market average rental from comparable properties and
AR A% > DS MR o0 R A B IR adjustment to reflect the conditions of the shopping malls and apartments.
P o
(©) BB ARG R AR R R IR o BB R (c) Discount rate has taken into account of the net profit margin and inflation. The
ONTAE AR o higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
(d) HEEA A A e R B AR ER (d) Monthly term rental for each unit is derived from the rental as stated in the existing
RTINS o B H B e > AT rental agreements. The higher the monthly term rental, the higher the fair value.
(TR o
(e) ] REE T AL A T He ) 3 T R 4 OB (e) Reversionary rental is derived from the market rentals from comparable properties or
fﬁ 55 1o e BT 5 A AL o T AR R AT AL G the rental as stated in the latest rental agreements. The higher the reversionary rental,
o ATAEB the higher the fair value.
® DA TR HE 1) 0% R A (2% 18 21 m] L) (63} Gross development value on completion basis has taken into account of location
%&%%E‘H‘zﬁ%ﬂﬁlﬁﬂ FZ o i Ak and individual factors such as frontage and size, between the comparables and the
I o HEEEFRAB (B o AT B property. The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value.
(® [ 2 T 1 A 2% TR ] B k38 5 R 3 ()  Developer's profit has taken into account of the comparables land transactions and
R HE B o B B O R ERL AT (B progress of the property. The higher the developer’s profit, the lower the fair value.
1 -
(h) 5 B 225 8 B 7 35 BLAT A o B B R B (h) Discount rate has taken into account of the prevailing market interest rates. The
o A TEBE - higher the discount rate, the lower the fair value.
(6) /RS </ E AR EVEE YR i BT (1) The fair value of remaining investment properties is based on recent transaction

HETIE
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

13. W3 > W Bt 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
R
i HELHR
R mEmE S LU it
Structure Leasehold Equipment
and leasehold Hotel land and Motor and
improvement  properties buildings vehicles furniture Total

ARBTE ARWTE ARETE ARMFE ARETFE ARETZ
RMBUO0O  RMBU0O  RMBUOO ~ RMBUOO  RMBOW)  RMBUOO

A COST
REZ—NE-A—H At January 1, 2019 100,927 854,053 339,377 71,494 389,571 1,755,422
NE Additions - - 64938 4429 128,797 198,164
R PR B Transfer from PES - 199,706 321,983 - - 521,689
AR 0 TR B Acquisition of assets and liabilities through

(Bf3E35) acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) - - - - 7,754 7,754
i Disposals (8,245) - (17,594) (6,631) (13,599) (46,069)
RoF-NE+-A=+—H At December 31, 2019 92,682 1,053,759 708,704 69,292 512,53 2,436,960
E Additions 261,014 = 462,635 4465 137,060 865,174
PR Transfer from PFS = = 174,189 = = 174,189
B RIRREM A P A e B R Acquisition of assets and liabilities through

(BHfE35) acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35) = - = - 675 675
IS (Hi7k36) Acquisition of business (Note 36) - - - - 2,101 2,101
hE Disposals = = (45,249) (8,687) (18,474) (72,410)
WoF-EE+-A=+—H At December 31, 2020 353,696 1,053,739 1,300,279 65,070 (633,885 3,406,689
Zatire ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
REZZ— A0 At January 1, 2019 - 13,033 89,338 49,006 194,137 345,514
LR 2l Charge for the year - 22,995 20,136 6373 81,254 130,758
RS Eliminated on disposals - - 9,713) (5,681) (6,111) (21,505)
REE—NEFZA=+—H At December 31, 2019 - 36,028 99,761 49,698 269,280 454,767
LR 2l S Charge for the year 10,793 37,569 19317 6,09 87,196 160,965
IS Eliminated on disposals = = (4,104) (7,077) (6,388) (17,569)
WoZ-REF =10 At December 31, 2020 10,793 73,597 114974 48,711 350,088 598,163
e CARRYING VALUES
BoRZ-FEF A=t At December 31,2020 342,903 980,162 1,185,305 16,359 283,797 2,808,526

R ZA= 1 At December 31,2019 92682 1,017,731 608,943 19,594 23043 1,982,193
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13. W3 ~ B Bt ) 13.

LA R RS (R TR
Bb) BERT R H DT AR A A £t R BR 1
ERUESEITE -

5% HeAlwhn] B A 406

BT AREFER I R
M K59 (AR 5 7 8 )

MY SRS A ST 6 A -4
e (AT AE )

e 5 LA 20%

R REE 33%

TS5 W 3 e 5 A S Y O e o

Longfor Group Holdings Limited |||| &2 i & M 2 j% 5 & 2 A

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except for construction
in progress, are depreciated using the straight-line method after taking

into account of their estimated residual values at the following rates per

annum:

Hotel properties Over the estimated useful lives of 40 years

Leasehold land and Over the shorter of the lease terms of the land on
buildings which buildings are erected, or 5%

Structure and leasehold ~ Over the shorter of the lease term or estimated
improvement useful lives of 10 years

Motor vehicles 20%

Equipment and 33%
furniture

The hotel properties and buildings are all situated on lands in the PRC.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

14. {EHRERE e 14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

L 180 e Ht

Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
ARETFLE  AREFT AR
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000

EE$ COST

A F—NE—A—H At January 1, 2019 421,147 - 421,147
T A R E Y Transfer from PFS 132,363 - 132,363
HZF—NE+T"H=1+—H At December 31, 2019 553,510 = 553,510
RE Additions - 1,073,045 1,073,045
NoT o TEF T H=+—H At December 31, 2020 553,510 1,073,045 1,626,555

2
W_FE—JUE—H—H
SEFEIBR

AEJUET A=+ R
FEREIBR

A Y

R
MEFZFEF A=+ 0

A JUE A =1 —H

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

At January 1, 2019 6,787 - 6,787
Charge for the year 11,563 - 11,563
At December 31, 2019 18,350 - 18,350
Charge for the year 11,806 67,065 78,871
At December 31, 2020 30,156 67,065 97,221
CARRYING VALUES

At December 31, 2020 523,354 1,005,980 1,529,334
At December 31, 2019 535,160 - 535,160

“EORE CF N
2020 2019

ABBTL  ARKTL
RMB000  RMB'000

PGS B GRS I S A IR Expense relating to lease of low-value assets and

B3

short-term leases 230,866 234,871

Ieees—

RWEEERN > AEEHESHEBAER For both years, the Group leases various offices for its operations. Lease contracts
TR HAEE o S AL E HBR A 1218 A are entered into fixed term of 12 months to 20 years. The Group is the registered
F205FEFT L o A Sy AR B B A owner of the underlying leasehold lands.

A A -

WAL > AEEEA A TRIEYE - ALH In addition, the Group owns several hotel properties. The Group is the registered
ez Y E R (RS AR ) 5% owner of these properties interest, including the underlying leasehold land.

AN -
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16.

LE 4 15. GOODWILL
FoE
Total
ARHFFI
RMB’000
%N COST
ﬁ(\#z\#ﬂgﬁﬂ —HIK At January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2020
— ? — ? E'E H H -
RIS 27 2 A ([ 2E36) Arising on acquisition of business (Note 36) 275,976
W_FZFET A=+ —H At December 31, 2020 275,976
W T {E CARRYING VALUES
W_FZFFET A=+ —H At December 31, 2020 275,976

6 Tl T el R WA 1 G

A0E A 1) 4 0 2 v B M8
FEZ AR

RETHERREN > HEesRESA
A1 ) B8 < A LA RV 1A S I 1) B J
N FEAEFRMEY TR o R
S B AU A SR I 2 R Y
BB RIEEK -

16.

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in note

16.

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing of goodwill, goodwill is allocated
to several individual CGU (being subsidiaries, engaging in provision
of property management service, acquired during the year). The CGU
represent the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is

monitored for internal management purposes.

e 225
2020
AR
RMB’000
SR R AU MRS A R ) Sanhe Shi Tianyuan Property Management Service
([ =¥ XRAt 1) Company Limited (“Sanhe Shi Tianyuan”) 221,831
e ) S B R 2 A B I 0 ) Other subsidiaries engaged in property management service 54,145
275,976
——

B Bt mESL - BB SRR - R
b5 R ﬁu&ﬁiﬂﬁﬁtﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁnf
NS A B A AT BUE RTAY

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| &8 #1 & @ = i 5 1R A 7

In addition to goodwill above, property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets that generate cash flows together with the related
goodwill are also included in the respective CGU for the purpose of

impairment assessment.
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16.

BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH INDEFINITE USEFUL
LIVES (Continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections primarily based
on the respective financial budgets of the CGU covering a five-year period

estimated and approved by management.

The following table set out the key assumption on which management
has based its cash flow projections for the purpose of impairment testing
of goodwill arising on acquisition of Sanhe Shi Tianyuan at December 31,
2020:

=3RS

Sanhe Shi

Tianyuan

REBERE Long-term growth rate 3%

BRI BL% Pre-tax discount rate 14%
—

B (B TR HoAt 2 St AT
WA BB A B 0 R T B A4 R
B o A B T R A R B L S
R RN - EEERR - ETZ%
TR () (A & B AT AR 2 AL 39 A BB A
R B 2 E A B P R T (DR AR L% A A T
Wi [e] 28

RE AR AR REEER %
T A=A H A v B

Other key assumptions for the value-in-use calculations relate to
the estimation of cash flow forecast included budgeted revenue and
gross margin, such estimation is based on the past performance and
management’s expectations for the market development. The management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the carrying amount of each of CGUs to exceed their

respective recoverable amount.

Based on the results of the above assessment, the Group determines that

there is no impairment on goodwill as at December 31, 2020.
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£ 5IA A 17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
R8s 4
[T S 8N Bt
Service
concession Software
arrangement and others Total

ARHETE  ARETFZ  ARETL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

JA COST
RZF—JFE—A—H At January 1, 2019 - - _
R BB 2 Acquired on acquisition of assets and

Wi B T % B AR I liabilities through acquisition of

(FfF3E35) subsidiaries (Note 35) 66,710 - 66,710
WoE—IE+F"H=+—H At December 31, 2019 66,710 - 66,710
NE Additions - 16,230 16,230
W 5 R JE TR Acquired on acquisition of business

(BifiE36) (Note 36) 149,188 - 149,188
NoEZFEFA=+—H At December 31, 2020 215,898 16,230 232,128
o SO AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
BoE—JUFE—H—H At January 1, 2019 - _ _
ERETER Charge for the year - _ _

o FE—JUEFH=1+—H At December 31,2019 - _ _

HERERTRR Charge for the year 16,265 2,015 18,280
ANCETEREFLTHZ+—H At December 31, 2020 16,265 2,015 18,280
EEE{E CARRYING VALUES
MEEZZEF A=+ —H At December 31, 2020 199,633 14,215 213,848
AT —NFEFT H=1T—H At December 31, 2019 66,710 - 66,710
bR e A AT BR AR AE I o A A The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets
TWE RN T8 105 AR B AR RS o are amortised on a straight-line ranging from 8 to 10 years.
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BEZRDZET A= IR
For the year ended December 31, 2020

18. TR A v WHE SR 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

= =T
2020 2019

ARMTFE  ARWTT
RMB000  RMB'000

BB A Cost of investments 8,253,954 7,070,794
[k Goodwill 1,337,050 -
JRE A SRR 1 > FIBR DU Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend

received 975,122 1,164,787
W D E R Less: Impairment loss recognised (414) (414)

10,565,712 8,235,167

—

N ZEEATH =+—H2Z FEEE Details of the principal associates as at December 31, 2020 are set out in
A IR ROR RS S () © note 55(c).

R A ) B AR Summarised financial information of material associates
BRI /A R B B 2 FR A (L Summarised financial information of Hangzhou Xuhai Real Estate
M 1) e M T 41k 32 5 b 7 A PR A ) Company Limited (“Hangzhou Xuhai”) and Guangzhou Zhenliang Real
(TEMIRR D) (ZF—JU4F : baiE Bl Estate Company Limited (“Guangzhou Zhenliang”) (2019: Beijing Shokai
5 B A PR A A ([HE R ]) K2l Xutai Real Estate Company Limited (“Beijing Xutai”) and Anhui Qiantai
REME R EA R ([ ZRH )1 Real Estate Company Limited (“Anhui Qiantai”)), which are the material
AT G R E B I o DhR BB R associates, is set out below. The summarised financial information below
BB gt ) AR R i Y ) represents amounts shown in the associates’ financial statements prepared
W2 MBIRE IR Z S - in accordance with IFRSs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE A= H LA
For the year ended December 31, 2020

18. JAWRE A R WIRERR () 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
R AR B ERHEE () Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
WS A IR AR R S AR A The associates are accounted for using the equity method in these
BMEANAL o consolidated financial statements.
BRE-ZFETH=1—HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2020

B A T e
Hangzhou  Guangzhou
Xuhai Zhenliang

ARHTFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB’000

LB E Current assets 930,987 3,465,985
T & Non-current assets 81 2,601
E A Current liabilities (277,473) (917,066)
I E & Non-current liabilities = (700,000)
A Revenue 2,571,446 3,339,952
AE R IR R A THT i 45 A Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 680,579 314,778

B R B A A B R R TR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
BRI B KBB4 ) M 2o ) R T (LA SR carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

M 3 MR
Hangzhou  Guangzhou
Xuhai Zhenliang

ABBTL  ARWEFL
RMB000  RMB’000

/NP At 3 <3 Net assets of the associates 653,595 1,851,520
B [N s R 2 PR AT HEREZE LU Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests in the
associates 25% 50%

AR BN N F RO RE RS A BRI (E Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in the

associates 163,399 925,760
T ———
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18. BB A WL ) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
AW A A v B EREEE () Summarised financial information of material associates
(Continued)
BEZZ-NEFZA=Z+—HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2019

JemEz LR
Beijing Anhui
Xutai Qiantai
ANR¥TT  ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

MENEE Current assets 9,216,779 1,060,582
Fms g Non-current assets 1,839,560 74
T & Current liabilities (6,227,404) (319,797)
e R IN= Non-current liabilities (689,899) _
A Revenue 4,233,284 3,835,118
A Y R B 2 T W i AR Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 997,704 591,489
Al B A B A A A A R R R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
B BRI/ ) REE 4 P R T (PSR carrying amounts of the interests in the material associates recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

JemEz LR
Beijing Anhui
Xutai Qiantai
ANR¥TT  ARWTIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B AT 2ZIFERE Net assets of the associates 4,139,036 740,859
AL S A 7 2 A RERE S Ll Proportion of the Group’s ownership interests in the
associates 49% 20%

AL B NS N B RO RE RS B R T Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in the
associates 2,028,128 148,172
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18. TR A vl MR SR (4) 18. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
8 Bl Sl A B K B B ] B 48 Aggregate information of associates that are not individually
Bl material

“RURE CF A
2020 2019

AR#TFE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

ASEE REAG 3% A (B548) e 2T WsE The Group's share of profit (loss) and total
(B 32) 485 comprehensive income (expense) 363,730 (21,351)

A [T ) A E P R T £ Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in the

associates 9,476,553 6,058,867
e

19. RHBAENHELRS 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

“RoRE FAF
2020 2019

AR#ETFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

TERA > b Cost of investments, unlisted 5,716,087 5,048,612
JEA AR 1 > FIBR T RS Share of post-acquisition profits, net of dividend
received 1,853,505 1,521,702

7,569,592 6,570,314

—

MoFE-EEFTH=FT—HZFELGE Details of the principal joint ventures as at December 31, 2020 are set out
R TR REESSb) © in note 55(b).
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TR B AR 4)

RO REME TR

A KA R TS B s
HEARAT (THAAR ) - W LA

e BB R R ([ 275 ) e 3ol
R ER BEAA AR (555 ])

CEJUE MR REREARA
A (TEMER ) - JLat 5 e
PR R (LA 2R 1) B UHRRE A8k B3
A B R] (T ARERAR 1) ) A A5 BRI
HINGWT - UTMBERHERISEA
SRR I ¥ o o 4 A A 5 2 B 5 R
P2 & o

AR B AR SN S A
BRENAL

19.

REZZFEF A=+ —HIMEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of material joint ventures

Summarised financial information of Nanjing Yizhi Jiangbei Real
Estate Development Limited (“Nanjing Yizhi”), Jinan Anqi Real Estate
Development Company Limited (“Jinan Anqi”) and Ningbo Honglu
Real Estate Information Consultancy Limited (“Ningbo Honglu”) (2019:
Guangzhou Junliang Real Estate Limited (“Guangzhou Junliang”),
Beijing Zhaotai Real Estate Development Company Limited (“Beijing
Zhaotai”) and Chengdu Longhu Jinyu Real Estate Company Limited
(“Chengdu Jinyu”)), which are the Group’s material joint ventures, is
set out below. The summarised financial information below represents
amounts shown in the joint ventures’ financial statements prepared in

accordance with IFRSs.

The joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in these

consolidated financial statements.
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19. B EFEWHELR @) 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
HERGBMEMHERE ) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
BREZBETHSHIERE For the year ended December 31, 2020

R AR B LR PR
Nanjing Jinan Ningbo
Yizhi Anqi Honglu
ANBETL  ARWTFT  ARKTL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

B e Current assets 7,153,377 1,433,637 2,131,363
FERENEE Non-current assets 75 846,431 36
E A Current liabilities (5,206,960) (2,003,020) (1,103,861)
JEmE A H Non-current liabilities - _ _

Pl &R R EESEEELL N The above amounts of assets and liabilities

JEH : include the following:
Eia-CYES Investment properties - 827,262 _
R B PFS 3,501,422 215,683 239,086
B4 KRA%EY Cash and cash equivalents 558,416 210,850 6,318
Lt 3 58 4 il Other current financial assets 2,619,817 912,221 1,885,959
WE A E Current financial liabilities (677,952) (445,411) (997,795)
HHAR Contract liabilities (4,422,560)  (1,557,609) (412)
A Revenue 3,159,157 1,885,875 2,014,895

A Vi ) A T W SRR Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year 459,812 360,324 281,225
_—————
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19. B EEWHELR @) 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
BERGBMEMHERE ) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
At B B R MR B A PP R TR Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
R FEK A SE M A A R T (LAY SR carrying amounts of the interests in the matetial joint ventures recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

Hi AR E ValiR-y s B A B
Nanjing Jinan Ningbo
Yizhi Anqi Honglu
ARWTFE  ARWTL  ARMTI
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

BESELTERE Net assets of the joint ventures 1,946,492 277,048 1,027,538
REFENEEMEZIAR  Proportion of the Group’s ownership
HE£5 H B interests in the joint ventures 50% 10% 50%

AALBIN G B AN LR Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in

R {E the joint ventures 973,246 27,705 513,769
|

BE_Z-WET_H=Z+—HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2019

BN JeiE FRERSAE
Guangzhou Beijing Chengdu
Junliang Zhaotai Jinyu
AR¥TT ARWFT  ARWTT
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

B Current assets 2,957,590 8,779,451 1,131,525
FEmE Non-current assets 78,756 13,885 2,124
e BER Current liabilities (1,876,696)  (1,997,299) (401,060)
Fe s £ Non-current liabilities - _ _
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19. B EFEWHELR @) 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
HERGBMEMHERE ) Summarised financial information of material joint ventures
(Continued)
BREZZ-NEFT A= —HILEE For the year ended December 31, 2019 (Continued)
(%)

BT IR TR SR AR
Guangzhou Beijing Chengdu
Junliang Zhaotai Jinyu
AR¥TLT  ARETT AR¥ETL
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

Pl EE R EESEEIEL N The above amounts of assets and liabilities

JHH - include the following:

FrEH &Y PFS 170,844 1,277,165 12,645
e RBE%EY Cash and cash equivalents 383,899 280,941 28,744
HAb R & mE = Other current financial assets 2,261,686 6,885,694 1,090,136
s 4R A & Current financial liabilities (1,164,293) (62,933) -
BHARH Contract liabilities (156,308)  (1,004,982) (1,559)
A Revenue 2,219,042 5,711,859 935,971
A ) A T A AR AR Profit and total comprehensive income for

the year 653,378 1,419,204 280,004

EREAECERBABE  Dividend received from the joint ventures

during the year (125,000) (40,394) -
bl A A B A AT SR R R Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to the
A BB A SERE A IO AR TET (LY 2R carrying amounts of the interests in the material joint ventures recognised

in the consolidated financial statements:

BN Jesmiz FARSRAR
Guangzhou Beijing Chengdu
Junliang Zhaotai Jinyu
ARETT ARETFT  ARWTT
RMB000 RMB’000 RMB’000

HESEL FERE Net assets of the joint ventures 1,159,650 6,796,037 732,589
REFNGERELZIER  Proportion of the Group’s ownership
fi 4 LU fl interests in the joint ventures 50% 25% 50%

AREMNGEMEMHELRR  Carrying amount of the Group's interests in
JIATRIER the joint ventures 579,825 1,699,009 366,295

214  Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| 88 #7 £ B 5 i% A5 R A 7



Ao B 2 R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE =B = H I

For the year ended December 31, 2020

19. B EEWHELR @) 19. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued)
A ) S AS K B A SE R AR Aggregate information of joint ventures that are not
B individually material

“RURE CF A
2020 2019

AR#TFE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

ARAEBMEAG IO A (B59R) e 2Tz The Group’s share of profit (loss) and total
(BA3) M8 % comprehensive income (expense) 184,252 (55,292)

ASSEE N A A 2 HE 25 1 R T (B Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in

the joint ventures 6,054,872 3,925,185
EEEEe——

HA TR AL 2w AR 200 EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE

B T H A AR THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
) 4 1B FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

e
2020 2019

AR#TFE  ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

INEre< Listed investments:
— AU L F R B (35]) 1Tl — Equity securities listed in Hong Kong and the
Z W e (W k) United States of America (USA) (Note a) 951,723 -
FELTHHE : Unlisted investments:
— s e (fTb) — Equity securities (Note b) 2,829,339 1,420,202
M5t Total 3,781,062 1,420,202

—
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BEZFZBET AT —HIMEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

20. WATPHFARMEEWER 20, EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE
Hid T3 AP A 4R THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
I B ) FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)
WRE - Notes:
(a) bt BRSO AE A A E K EE BT (a) The above listed equity investments represent ordinary shares of entities listed in
B2 M o %S BOE IR £ 5K B R Hong Kong and the USA. These investments are not held for trading, instead, they
F o AR H W mREE o are held for long-term strategic purposes.
(b) bt IR R AR A% A AR A B A AE B A (b)  The above unlisted equity investments represent the Group's equity interest in the
S FLE B R I B o private entities established in the PRC.
2z /NI A S i= BN A 2R e The directors of the Company have elected to designate these investments
N 2 S 8 B A £ )y R Y in equity instruments as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising short-
BFAEZSEREHARERBE N 2K term fluctuations in these investments’ fair value in profit or loss would not
AT » I A S s LERE be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding these investments for
T6 78 B A TR A A 2T lias o long-term purposes and realising their performance potential in the long
run.
N TERT AR 45 10 2 il 2 45 4 i Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represents investments
AT A RS R o in financial products issued by financial institutions.
21. AR 21. INVENTORIES OF PROPERTIES
“EORE TN
2020 2019
ARWEFLT  ARWTL
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEESE YR PFD 14,172,529 11,316,747
IR EY PUD 322,276,158 296,503,846
FHEH &Y PFS 38,691,159 23,570,779
375,139,846 331,391,372
———————————
WEERRET A S —HIEEE During the year ended December 31, 2020, there are additions to
L 7 B 5 A R 64,804,481,000 TG leasehold lands amounting to RMBG64,804,481,000 (December 31, 2019:
(ZF-RE+ZA=1T—H: AR RMB69,547,016,000).
69,547,016,0007C) °
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22. HAbfERR 22.  OTHER INVENTORIES

I 4000000900000

RO R NE

2020 2019

ARETT ARBTFIL

RMB’000 RMB’000

ey Construction materials 463,407 578,901

TH 2 BRI Consumables and others 19,704 2,555

483,111 581,456

23, WMok B Uil ROk B~ 4%
& BB H

—

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

AND PREPAYMENTS

SERCRE R
2020 2019
AREEFE ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B o REMCEE (B k) Trade receivables (Note a)

—KFAH — Contract with customers 2,534,201 3,052,232
4 — Rental 96,415 67,340
2,630,616 3,119,572

HoAEUCEIE 5 R IR (B D) Other receivables, net of allowance for doubtful
debts (Note b) 6,962,012 8,290,142
[HESE RS Advances to contractors 2,608,750 2,333,881
TE A B (AR S oAb R TE Prepaid value added tax and other taxes 16,637,315 13,657,455
TAAT A R st 4 (B ske) Prepayments and utilities deposits (Note c) 1,901,079 1,290,834
30,739,772 28,691,884

—
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23, MEWCHR K B U fib EWOSK o > .
& B K E )

it :

(a)

(b)

(©)

5 ME ORI L A 1 W 38 4 I
B o A7 B 1 B S ARl AR BEAR B
BRSNS SESR TS - fl
WA B R IR R A AR
PRHLA e AT -

WoZE—LE—HA—H > KAKEF&HN
Z 5 e IR B N R 2,477 415,0007C ©

U"Fé%%ﬁ"xﬁ‘é% F 3 B S A s H
LFUI B 5 MECERIRHRE AT

23. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS
AND PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sales of properties and properties
investment. Considerations in respect of sales of properties are paid by customers
in accordance with the terms of the related sales and purchase agreements. For
properties investment, rental income are paid by tenants within two months from
invoice date in accordance with the terms in the tenancy agreements.

As at January 1, 2019, trade receivables from contract with customers amount to
RMB2,477,415,000.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on dates of
delivery of goods and date of rendering of services.

e —

CRORAE ZE A

2020 2019

AR HFoc ANBRIEF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

60H " Within 60 days 2,254,739 2,902,868
615180 H 61 — 180 days 88,033 28,343
181%365H 181 — 365 days 278,477 183,650
1524 1 - 2 years 9,367 4711
2,630,616 3,119,572

MoFFBEL A=+ —H  AEH
JRE U 5 5 # R 5 SR L AR (AR
257041100076 ( = F — L&+ AR
#31002,560,000 7C ) H JE Wi BE 2% o A i
HEHMEEE o REMseh > AR
#375.877,0007C ( =% — JL4E © AR
216,704,0007C) B @i 90 H 5 A EHIEAR
B BRA > HNAZSERFEELA
TR EEE RAF ST HLAR 2 iR T4 -

A FRE SR 2 AR AR S e~ Bt
WIE RN - B TR S - R
PR CAHE I —4F T AR A 1 & TR
il

TS B Rkt & F B E SRR R
2 N R #1,850,406,0007C (—FE—JL4E + A
F#1,282,355,0007C) > AR EASEE A
B AN T 5l (R EE % ) X
1 EHRRBR > S MNHT RS EER
B G SEE RIE H AT R

(b)

(c)
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As at December 31, 2020, included in the Group’s trade receivables balance
are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of RMB2,570,411,000 (2019:
RMB3,002,560,000) which are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, RMB375,877,000 (2019: RMB216,704,000) had been past due 90
days or more and are not considered as in default as those balances are mainly with
those banks with good credit quality and pending for completing their mortgage
procedures.

Other receivables mainly comprise rental deposits, receivables of refund of the
deposits for land auction, deposits for construction work, temporary payments and
miscellaneous project-related deposits paid which are refundable within one year.

Included in the prepayments and utilities deposits, there are payment mainly for
the properties held for development amounting to RMB1,850,406,000 (2019:
RMB1,282,355,000) which are paid on behalf of certain entities which the Group
potentially invests in them (“potential investees”). In the opinion of the directors,
such payments are prepayment for property development projects for those potential
investees.
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ME W Tk P R BB A
EVg:5e T L]

PR ORI GT BB — [ A8 2k
TH N [ #2,267,251,0007C ( =% — JLAF
N R #2,195,914,00006 ) PL# JTEHES -
2 I DA R HE o BB S A R K
AECENEFERRYERPEYE
H A AS o

ASEEME RS > L5 AR
AR 120 A KR > RIS R S
7 o

TG RAT Ak BT 45 B
Bl&

@  EIEMBRTEAUANREGHE > &
FEIEEH T RITNTR > AL E
P EER o RZF B
ToAZt—H > R E R
27%50.35% (ZF—JUF £ 0.35%) °

i
&

by WA RITBUGEHR - AT
S B a 0 Z B SRAT IR RS R A
R#1,016,236,0007C (=& — JUAF -
N R #434,083,00070) - 7] i
Y EERIAR -

SRATHE B RO & B AR A SR A 1Y
B4 RRE IR A =18 A g LA
FR I A7 3K o SRAT 1 B A7 3K AR A
RAEERE1S9 (" —NFE  FFE
1.5%) °
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

The amounts are denominated in RMB, except for an amount due from a
joint venture of RMB2,267,251,000 (2019: RMB2,195,914,000) being
denominated in HKD, which are unsecured and interest-free. The amounts
due from associates and joint ventures mainly represented the land costs

paid on their behalf for properties held under development for sales.

In the opinion of the directors of the Group, the amounts are expected to be
repaid within 12 months after the end of the reporting period and therefore

classified as current assets.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/'BANK BALANCES AND
CASH

(@)  Pledged bank deposits are denominated in RMB which mainly
represent deposits pledged to banks to secure the mortgage
guarantees provided to customers. The deposits carry fixed rate at
0.35% (2019: 0.35%) per annum at December 31, 2020.

(b) Included in bank balances and cash are balances which,
in accordance with the applicable prevailing government
regulations, are placed in restricted bank accounts, amounting to
RMB1,016,236,000 (2019: RMB434,083,000), which can only be
applied in the designated property development projects.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
demand deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
The interest rates on cash placed with banks ranged from nil to
1.5% (2019: nil to 1.5%) per annum.

“RORE N

2020 2019
ARWFLT  AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000
P& E SR SRITAA S % SRTT  An analysis of pledged bank deposits and bank

MR R Bl balances and cash by currency:
— LA EEHE — Denominated in RMB 74,699,035 59,656,249
— DI TTRHE — Denominated in HKD 2,908,656 96,886
—PIETTFHE — Denominated in USD 219,929 1,198,731
77,827,620 60,951,866

—
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26. MEATUHR K B HEAT 4% - HfbE 26, ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLES, OTHER
RECY Tindiil PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES

= =
2020 2019

AR#TFE ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000

B 5 MEAT 3B I R 28 B ¥ (Bi3Fa)  Trade payables and accrued expenditure on

construction (Note a) 89,886,799 73,576,157
JREATT 2208 (Kl Ea) Bills payables (Note a) 118,215 611,323
90,005,014 74,187,480
JEAST R, Dividend payables 2,423,341 2,145,338
oA A T S RE R () Other payables and accrued charges (Note b) 12,714,377 10,739,300
JRE AT 38 (Bl Value added tax payables 7,607,242 4,861,484
A AR S T A R E Consideration payable within 1 year for acquisition
AR VAR EA A (5E35) of assets and liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries (Note 35) 414,757 40,000
RSB DR IEAT AR (FiFE36) Consideration payable for business combinations
(Note 36) 51,305 -

113,216,036 91,973,602

—

WF5E = Notes:
(a) 2 M AT L I B Ao S 0 R R B B (a) Trade and bills payables and accrued expenditure on construction comprise
BLHE A S ) R O I AR B BH S TR construction costs and other project-related expenses which are payable based on
PR R R - AEE D project progress certified by the Group. The Group has financial risk management
TG B TR A B OR - DATE (R A5 B o policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit timeframe.
I AR RS BR A
DR B R K » 55 e Aof T B B The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables, based on the invoice date
SRATEE S H Y R SR EAT H AR and issuance date of each bill, at the end of the reporting period:
BAAT
ee—— 0000
e 23 —EuE
2020 2019
AR ANRHTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
60H N Within 60 days 32,070,812 24,400,737
612180 H 61 — 180 days 23,106,270 19,090,592
1812365 H 181 — 365 days 16,691,969 15,180,713
1524 1 -2 years 3,175,846 2,897,771
PEXY:S 2 - 3 years 1,063,962 645,589
s Over 3 years 259,089 211,014
76,367,948 62,426,416
Ieeeessee———
(b) FoA EAT S R e 2 E RS EF (b) Other payables and accrued charges comprise mainly tax received and payable to
R R Bl AT BUR R BLIE ~ (RERAE T the government on behalf of customers, receipt on behalf of certain entities from
HH ARG B ORI FOE ~ RERHE potential investment partners, accrued salaries and accrued staff welfare.
&N ERT B TARF] o
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BEZEERETAZ—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The contract liabilities mainly represent the receipt in advance from
property sales. The Group normally receives 30% - 100% of the contract
value as deposits from customers when they sign the sale and purchase
agreement. The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised

in the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

“RIRE CF O

2020 2019
ANBHTFE AR¥TL
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEAER AR A G ERILE  Revenue recognised that was included in the
contract liabilities balance at the beginning
of the year 85,744,693 65,486,524

WoZ—NE—H—H AYEEESER
N EH113,439,818,0007T ©

BB EYIEM S - AEBEHIE
5 5 S 0 S R B ) 48 B ) 63
FrE PR IR > T 46 fR AL 1o 2 ) S A il
B E70% o 40 E 77 A5 R R R re 4
IR > MRS I RAT T RE & 2R A
O R R M 2 O B Y
EfTRERTFLE o FERIFDL T - ALK
W% 5 B 4% I 0 5 B LA [ AT
AR AT FRATHIFOA o BRIF B T %
309 > A5 A& 7E 81 OB 36
REZARK -

MBS I Pl B, 8 A )
AEEE

GAEFIRUANRKTHE - RERHIE -
A 408 R EORFEIR -

28.

—

As at January 1, 2019, contract liabilities amounted to
RMB113,439,818,000.

For properties under development for sales, the Group typically provides
guarantees to banks in connection with the customers’ borrowing of
mortgage loans to finance their purchase of the properties for an amount up
to 70% of the total purchase price of the property. If a purchaser defaults
on the payment of his/her mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the Group to repay the
outstanding amount of the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the customer’s deposits and
sell the property to recover any amounts paid by the Group to the bank.
Unless the selling price would drop by no less than 30%, the Group would

not be in a loss position in selling those properties.

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
INTERESTS/ASSOCIATES/JOINT VENTURES

The amounts are denominated in RMB which are non-trade in nature,

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

29. MR 29. LEASE LIABILITIES
——— 0
“EFTFE F N
2020 2019
ARETFT ARWTT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEATAH A A Lease liabilities payable:
—4ER Within one year 1,272,830 1,009,463
LI —4 - (HAB R W E Within a period of more than one year but

not more than two years 1,265,894 1,002,380

ZIRMAE - (BB AR Within a period of more than two years but
not more than five years 3,672,275 2,906,573
A AR Within a period of more than five years 7,501,025 6,337,626

13,712,024 11,256,042
W RE B AR 128 A NEIAEE Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 months

HIH shown under current liabilities (1,272,830)  (1,009,463)
FE B BTN 12ff A & 21 Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown
GEERIE under non-current liabilities 12,439,194 10,246,579

I—

JRE FE S L B AR 2 0 RE T 2 3 The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
FLEAF5.27 %% 6.12% ( ZF— JLAE liabilities range from 5.27% to 6.12% (2019: 6.12%).
6.12%) °

30. ST B ILfb AT 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

=
2020 2019

AR#FE  ARKTT
RMB000  RMB'000

SRATER - AR Bank loans, secured 41,614,577 45,610,757
HATRE > ML Bank loans, unsecured 58,553,612 48,130,973
A - MK Bonds, unsecured 41,871,007 37,563,891
HEERES Asset-backed securities 7,295,411 -

149,334,607 131,305,621

I
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30. ST BICAAT K 40 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)
R R ) B T (L2 i Rk Bk Pl The carrying amounts of the above borrowings are repayable, based on
i H R > REEI R scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows:

“EORE CF A
2020 2019

ARWTFE  ARETT
RMB'000  RMB'000

kv Analysed into:
TRMERRATIE 2R Bank loans repayable:
—AE R Within one year 831,908 5,415,965
ZIN—4F > HA A AR Within a period of more than one year
but not exceeding two years 16,314,477 18,428,327
ZIRMAE - (HAEIE =4 Within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding three years 37,198,203 23,477,620
A (AR Within a period of more than three years
but not exceeding four years 20,325,518 13,814,931
ZIRMAE > (BAEIE AR Within a period of more than four years
but not exceeding five years 12,506,973 19,428,815
i A AT Exceeding five years 12,991,110 13,176,072
100,168,189 93,741,730
B REE BN AR Less: Amount due within one year shown under
B IR current liabilities (831,908)  (5,415,965)
—EA S IR Amount due after one year 99,336,281 88,325,765
IR MR ARG K Other borrowings repayable:
—4 R Within one year 17,506,225 8,511,497
ZIR 4 HA R R Within a period of more than one year
but not exceeding two years 5,243,100 2,605,948
ZIATAE > A =4 Within a period of more than two years
but not exceeding three years 2,059,018 3,121,806
ZIRZAE  (HARIE AR Within a period of more than three years
but not exceeding four years 5,480,663 13,181,315
ZHATIAE > (BB AR Within a period of more than four years
but not exceeding five years 3,315,549 6,594,236
I AR Exceeding five years 15,561,863 3,549,089
49,166,418 37,563,891
B B AR —ERN Less: Amount due within one year shown under
B HE current liabilities (17,506,225)  (8,511,497)
— B PR Amount due after one year 31,660,193 29,052,394
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30 SRAT BICABAT K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
ARSI $RAT B LA A 2R T4 B B Mt The Group’s bank and other borrowings are denominated in the following
ff currencies:

=
2020 2019

AR#FE ARETT
RMB000  RMB'000

) B AT An analysis of borrowings by currency:
—UARHFHE ~ Denominated in RMB 118,736,634 108,333,012
— PitsTaHE — Denominated in HKD 30,597,973 22,972,609
149,334,607 131,305,621
E—
A [ RAT S Y 4 A IO R o i [ The exposure and the range of effective interest rates on the Group’s bank
T borrowings are as follows:
e e 22 “T-0E
2020 2019
ARH T BEA%E  ARKTT HHFI%
Eftective Effective
RMB000  interest rate RMB000  interest rate
ERATER Fixed rate bank loans 1,457,700 4.90% 975,000 4.88%
7 EATER Variable rate bank loans 98,710,489 427% 92,766,730 4.32%
e —
T B Y b 2 G RAT Bk DA B 5 The above secured bank loans at the end of the reporting period were
43 PRI E o T IR secured by the pledge of assets as set out in note 43.
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30. BAT B ILABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
AEFR -E-FEF-HA=+—HMH The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at December
b EELUT 31, 2020:
AT REEGEERE TR
fireh W EmAE REAY fMR ERAE ARMRY fik] AEH JABLT FAI AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust the 0 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at

TZAE-R TZAST-H
December 31, December 31,

(Wita) (Wit) CERE “ENE
(Note a) (Note a) 2020 2019
NRHTFT ARKTFT  ARFFT ARHTFT
RMBU0O RMBU0O RMBU00 RMBU0O
RRAF
Domestic Corporate Bonds
B RARAR (R EAR) - [ T3 54 (Jib) ing R FER 2,000,000 - 2012,000
NRESRATES [ F-HES—-HEE]) ik 5 years (Note b) NA NA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July7,2015
Development Company Limited (“Chongging Longhu
Development”) (2015 First Tranche Bonds”)
BRRRCERRARTRALA R - 393 “%F-LF 54 (Jb) LN e 2,000,000 - 35259
([ZF—- RS s E)) EAZ+LH 5 years (Note b) AAZTER tH-+tEH
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 27,2015 June 27,2018 July 27,2018
Development (i) form of 201 Second Tranche Bonds”)
TRENLERARBSERA S 1695010 ing  ZE-RE 7 in%  EIEE “RRE 304990 1682297 2010000
([ ZZ— R i ) ) THZtHER 7 years ARZAER tHZER
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 27,2015 June 27,2020 July 27,2020
Development (“(i) form of 2015 Second Tranche Bonds”)
ERENEEIRARBSENAD S 10,000 i ZE-EE 7 Q3% ZBIEE - 1,990,000 9854 2010600
([ZE-RE5=AEE]) +-AZH 7 years TAZH +-AZH
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu November 2, 2015 October 2, 2020 November 2, 2020
Development (2015 Third Tranche Bonds”)
B INS T e 20519% 330 ZF-RE 5t M ZFAE RN 248,004 2,066,770 2072516
([ZF-REF— iR R ) il 3 years TZAZTHA —AZ11A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 25,2016 December 25, 2018 January 25, 2019
Development (‘(i) form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds”)
BREROERRARTRALT R 1,800,000 Y s 86 EAE e S i R 1,800,000 1,800,000
([ZZ-NEE- ARG ) gime it 8 years +oAZ R At NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 25, 2016 December 25, 2020 January 25, 2021
Development (‘(i1) form of 2016 First Tranche Bonds”)
ERENLERRARBSERAA S 1482998 EAC/ 6 8% CE-NE RN 1017002 1490,116 1498718
([ ZF—RES ) =AlH 6 years ZmA ZHIH
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu March 4, 2016 February 4, 2019 March 4, 2019
Development ((i)form of 2016 Second Tranche Bonds”)
BERNOFRRARRSAL AN 1500000 3% ZEFRE 105 ERL A S i RER 1,302,250 1,509,000
([ZZ-NER A ESREG) =AlA 10 years ZAMA =AlA NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu March 4, 2016 February 4, 2021 March 4, 2021
Development (‘i) form of 2016 Second Tranche Bonds”)
EEENLENRARBSRAA S 470,000 306 “FRE 5 e ZFUE “ENE 230000 B4l 351
([=F-AES= A tATIA 5 years AATEA tATINA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 14,2016 June 14,2019 July 14,2019
Development (‘(i) form of 2016 Third Tranche Bonds”)
e—
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30. BT R IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
AERR -FE-FEF-A=F+—HMH The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at December
L EIELT : (4) 31, 2020: (Continued)
AT REEGEERE  CHIGOH
ezt W RmAE REAY foRMm ERAE ARMRE fik] AeH TRV RN AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust the o exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at

e R e
December 31, December 31,

(Hista) (Wita) 2% FE
(Note a) (Note a) 2020 2019
ARHT ANBRTE  AREFE AEH T
RMBU0O RMBU0O RMBO00 RMBU0O
BRATS )
Domestic Corporate Bonds (Coneinued)
e INS e 3000000 s  “FRE 7 3% ZFE SR R 2997000 3,001,800
([ZF-REE=HER R ) tATmA 7 years AATEA LA+ /A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 14,2016 June 14, 2021 July 14,2021
Development (‘(i) form of 2016 Third Tranche Bonds”)
BEENLERRARBSNAA I 3,000,000 4960 “F-MEAA-H st 0% “ES e IRt 3,019,500 3,061,200
([ =% NEF—HHEE]) August 1, 2018 5 years tA-H AA—H NAA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu July 1,202 August 1, 2021
Development (2018 First Tranche Bonds”)
ERENL R ARMSERAA 2000000 i80%  E-AE st s CEF e S 2 It 2004000 2039400
([ZF-NEEZ A5 ) T=AAA 5 years THAH T=HAH N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu November 6, 2018 October 6, 2021 November 6, 2021
Development (2018 Second Tranche Bonds”)
BRERCERRARTRALARE 1,700,000 399%  ERE ke o EOTE " FER 1,705,950 1694560
([ =F—- NSk ZAZTH 5 years —AZtH ZAZtA NA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu February 20,2019 January 20, 2022 February 20, 2022
Development (“(i) form of 2019 First Tranche Bonds”)
FRENEERAR B A 500,000 Q0% ZE-NE 7 e CEZWE “RE R 496750 496750
([ZZ- WS- AR “AZHE 7 years —A=tH e ot | NiA
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu February 20, 2019 January 20,2024 February 20, 2024
Development (“(i) form of 2019 First Tranche Bonds”)
TEEALERRARKSNAARS 500,000 5% “FCRE 5t NP - “EIER R 500,000 FER
(RS- —Attn § years FZALR —~fttR N/ N/
RMB domestic corporation bonds of Chongging Longhu January 17,2020 December 17,2022 January 17, 2023
Development (“(i) form of 2020 First Tranche Bonds”)
BN AT e 2,300,000 TR S 7 dagn  EZIE S R 2312650 FER
(=R FEE— R ) —ATtH Tyaars TR —A1tH NiA N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu January 17, 2020 December 17,2024 January 17,2025
Development (‘(ii) form of 2020 First Tranche Bonds”)
TR ERRARKSRAA RS 2,000,000 ERE T 5 5 EE I e I SeELE RN 1,989,600 RN
([ZRZFEF M ERR ) SR 5 years tAtH Mt NiA A
RMB domestic corporation bonds of Chongging Longhu August 7,2020 July7,2023 August 7,2023
Development (‘(i) form of 2020 Second Tranche Bonds”)
ERENEERAR PSR A 1,000,000 0% ZRIEE 7 i ZBIRF S R 997,700 R
([=F-ZES Wik afm) AHLH 7 years tHtH VR NA N/A
RMB domestic corporate bonds of Chongging Longhu August 7,2020 July7,2025 August 7, 2029
Development (‘(i) form of 2020 Second Tranche Bonds")
Tae—
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30. BAT B ILABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
AEFR -E-FEF-HA=+—HMH The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at December
EFEIELT : (4) 31, 2020: (Continued)
AT REEGEERE TR
ezt W EmAE REAY fRlR ERAE ARMRY lik] AeH TABLT FAI AP
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  to adjust the 0 exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at

e RS BT
December 31, December 31,

(Hiita) (Hiita) e e 2 “FnE
(Note a) (Notea) 2020 2019
NRHFE ARHFE NRHTE NRHFE
RMB00O RMBO0O RMB000 RMBO0O
Rblk
Green Bonds
BRERCERRARRALI 1,599 904 4oy ZF-LE s iy CECEE SRR % 1606304 1,606,720
([ZF-LEE- R ERFE)) ik v 5 years ~AtAH ik v
RMB green bonds of Chongging Longhu Development February 16,2017 January 16,2020 February 16,2020
(“() form of 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds”)
TEENLERRARRAGRS 1440000 iem  “FLE 7 i ZERCTH SRR TR 1440000 140,000
([=F— LSRR a5 o)) ZJit7H 7 years —AtAH ZATAR NiA
RMB green bonds of Chongging Longhu Development February 16, 2017 January 16,2022 February 16,2022
(i) form of 2017 First Tranche Green Bonds”)
ERENEERARBAGRS 1,000,000 ir5%  E—LE 7 ann  ZEZCE e TN 1022000 LOI6400
([ZZ-LEE A aRE ) =HAH 7 years “ARH AR N/A
RMB green bonds of Chongging Longhu Development March 6, 2017 February 6, 2022 March 6, 2022
(2017 Second Tranche Green Bonds”)
R
Medium-term Notes
N Lk - % “EF-LE 3 (Htb) so - AT R 1700000 - 1712019
([ZF— LS ) R I years (Note b) NA NA
RMB medium-term notes (“(1) form of 2017 First July 21,2017
Medium-term Notes”)
ARR RS 300000 s F—LE sE s10%  TER R R 304023 307,638
([ZE-ER MR o)) tAZ-A 5 years NiA NiA NiA
RMB medium-term notes (“(if) form of 2017 First July 21,2017
Medium-term Notes”)
EEENLERRARKRE 1,200,000 395%  EIEE 3 409 RER N R 1,203,204 P i
(e S 2 0P ) LAT=R 3 years NiA NiA NiA N/A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongging Longhu July 13,2020
Development (“(i) form of 2020 First
Medium-term Notes”)
EEENEERRARKRE 500,000 s CECEE )t is6m AR AR R 508230 P i
(2R =B~ i ) ) LAT=R 5 years NiA NiA NiA N/A
RMB medium-term notes of Chongging Longhu July 13,2020
Development (“(i) form of 2020 First
Medium-term Notes”)
T
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30. BT R IABAE K ) 30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Conrinued)
AERR -FE-FEF-A=F+—HMH The Group’s other borrowings comprised the followings as at December
L EIELT : (4) 31, 2020: (Continued)
AT REEGEERE  CHIGOH
ezt W RmAE REAY foRMm ERAE ARMRE fik] AeH TRNT B ATFE
Date of Date of Principal
entitlement investors amount
Term of Effective  toadjust the o exercise of bond
Name of bond Parvalue  Couponrate  Issue date thebond interestrate  coupon rate the option redeemed Fair Value as at

e R e
December 31, December 31,

(Wizta) (Hfita) CECRE “E-AifE
(Notea) (Notea) 2020 2019
ARHT AEBHTL  AREFE  ARKTE
RMBU0O RMBU0O RMBO00 RMBU0O
R HEERAR
Rental Apartments Special Bonds
BRENCEIR AR ERHELALARS 3000000 s E-NE 55 sl “FF . FER 3024000 3075000
(MEF-MEE-MERRETEL T ZAZt-R 5 years i ZAZA-H N/A
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging March 21,2018 February 21, 2021 March 21,2021
Longhu Development (*2018 First Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)
TEENCERRAR KRR AL S 2000000 dogr “EME 5t sus  CER 3 AR 2015400 2046000
([ZF-NEH_HERREREARES ) JATLA 5 years LATLA AATLH NiA
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging August 17, 2018 July 17,2021 August 17, 2021
Longhu Development (*2018 Second Tranche Rental
Apartments Bonds”)
BRERCEARARN ERHELRAARS 500000 0% E-RE 5 g ZEITE " KR 498550 498550
(2SO FEEEAR ) tATAR 5 years AR LATAR NiA
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging July 19,2019 June 19,2022 July 19,2022
Longhu Development (*2019 First Tranche Rental
Apartment Bonds”)
BEENCERR ARV AR AR S 1,500,000 461 EFNE % iy CEFCRE “FE T 155400 1492650
(MEF- LS MERREIALT) LAt 7 years AR LAt NiA
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging July 19,2019 June 19,2024 July 19,2024
Longhu Development (*2019 Second Trande Rental
Apartments Bonds”)
ERERCERRARKEFRESRATES 3,000,000 3809 “EFCEE % 3% ZECLE S 1 TR 3,003,600 TR
([ZH-RER-BERREREATRE]) =AmA Tyers “AmA =AWA NA NiA
RMB rental apartments special bonds of Chongging March 4, 2020 February 4, 2025 March 4, 2025
Longhu Development (*2020 First Tranche Rental
Apartment bonds”)
I
WFeE - Notes:
(a) 7% 5 [ A R A HEE A 2 2 6 1) H R (a) The Group is entitled to adjust the coupon rate on the date of entitlement to adjust
T U R A TSR A A R 2 the coupon rate and the investors have the option to sell back the bonds between the
T A1) F 0 G5 R A R E o date of entitlement to adjust the coupon rate and or hold until maturity.
(b) TR AR BE N E 1 B 2B RO ] o (b) The bonds are maturied and fully redempted during the year.
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30. BAT B ILABAE K )

B —F— hAE S — AR R RS
PrA EoA 5 1 A 3 S it B [ 38
£

() AEED R R RS
T B J i 4% 4% T EL AR PR DL
i3 TR F B 7 R 3 3 8RR B

EWBEHGHLERE -

BEZRDZET A= IR
For the year ended December 31, 2020

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Except for the 2015 First Tranche Bonds and the Medium-term Notes, all

other bonds contain a liability component and early redemption options:

@

Liability component represents the contractually determined stream
of future cash flows discounted at the rate of interest determined
by the market instruments of comparable credit status taken into

account the business risk and financial risk of the Company.

(ii) AR -EREFTH=+—H & (i)  As at December 31, 2020, the fair value of put options of
T HE N TN R %32,419,000 7T RMB32,419,000 (2019: RMB14,780,000) have been recognised in
(=& —JLF - N ¥ 14,780,000 the consolidated statement of financial position, of which, fair value
) ERNG S MBI KRR > & loss of RMB13,532,000 (2019: gain of RMB353,110,000) was
N R 13,532,000 7C [ 2 - (E recognised for the year ended December 31, 2020.

BB (= — L4« s AR
353,110,0007C) R #HE —F %
F+ A=+ —HIFERER o
W TZAZT—HWAFE
Fair value as at December 31,
e R
2020 2019
AR#EF AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE s & Non-current liabilities 30,299 14,780
e BER Current liabilities 2,120 _
32,419 14,780

BER A R S R AE S AL B HIE A
TR S AR S i 55 5 2 5
Lo

Rk AR5 I S R S PP B A
R AR AR LT -

FR SR A SRS DR B H B SR AT
525 Wt L o

—

The Domestic Corporate Bonds and the Rental Apartments
Special Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the Shanghai Stock

Exchange.

The Green Bonds are non-guaranteed and listed on the China

Central Depository & Clearing Co., Ltd..

The Medium-term Notes are non-guaranteed and listed on the

National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors.
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FETZAZF—HIMEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

30. BT B ILABAR K (42)

30. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued)

Gii) AL AREBRIEEHL R (i) During the current year, the Group through Chongqing
BamEEEN R RE R ER Longhu Development and Chongqing Longhu Chengheng Land
HE 09 1AL B PR ) ([ & Property Development Company Limited (“Chongqing Longhu
P A 1) (25 7R 4 ) B 2 Chengheng”), subsidiaries of the Company, issued asset-backed
Al) BT UM E S TYER B securities (2020 ABS”) under securitisation arrangements
AT A B 4 AT 0 i?—rﬁﬁ collateralised by the future earnings relating to leasing of certain
(TR REGREIFFER]) - properties respectively. The 2020 ABS were issued with aggregate
ZS 4$$§‘Fiﬁﬁ§#ﬁﬂﬂu@ﬁ nominal value of RMB4,650,000,000 and RMB2,650,000,000
A N R %4,650,000,000 70 K A R which carry interests 3.99% and 4.48% per annum respectively.
5 2.650,000,000 TG BE AT > FEAFF R Under both of the securitisation arrangements, the principal
3.99% J4.48% T B o HLEZ M 0 & and interests are payable semi-annually and with maturity of 18
FALLHE > ARG FF) U\Eﬁ:l:ﬁfi years. The effective interest rate is 3.99% and 4.48% per annum
= > WIBR F184F o B BR4EFIR respectively. Chongqing Longhu Development and Chongqing
H £53.99% e 4.48% o T BEFEW A4 Longhu Chengheng is entitled to exercise the prepayment option of
SE A R B P HE I AR A R A R the 2020 ABS at specific dates set out in the 2020 ABS agreement
) % TR R SRR IR T correspondingly.
HAMHMTHE —Z - REREX
FERE IR O B AT R o
B R 31. SENIOR NOTES
Kerife
Carrying amount
.
“RORE CEnR
1+2A +2A
L e k& BOER RGRM AN LENE ERAE =t-H =t-H
Nominal ~ Effective  December 31,  December 31,
Name of senior notes Principal ~ Issued price  Issue date Maturing date interest rate  interest rate 2020 2019
TET  WALEAY
USD000 % of principal
T {74 40000 9425%  ZE-LELATER ZECZFEATER S 38T% 4% 2974743 3170400
“ECTRRURME
2022 USD Notes issued in 2017 July 13,2017 July 13,2022
REE-MERHZ 00000 9699%  “EME-ATAR SEZZEBATAR O 390% 4% 198286 2115169
T
2023 USD Notes issued in 2018 January 16,2018 April 16, 2023
e S {174 500000 979%%  ZE-ME-REAR SEDAE-ATAR S 450%  40% 3209095 3494159
D MEETRR
2028 USD Notes issued in 2018 January 16,2018 January 16,2028
REZ—-NEEZ 80000 WOM%  SEF-UEAAAR ZESAERATAR 395%  399% 558301 5913683
RN
2029 USD Notes issued in 2019 September 9,2019  September 16, 2029
e s {174 50000 99940% CEZFE-AAH CECUENALER 3% 348%  LE3L96 -
ITLEERER
2027 USD Notes issued in 2020 January 6,2020  April 13, 2027
REE-FERAZ 00000 9857%  CESFE-RAR CESTE-RESHE O 380% 39%% 265789 -
i;:iﬁixﬁﬁ
2032 USD Notes issued in 2020 January 6, 2020 January 13,2032
LIIBFREARNEL R 18032587 14693411
Total amount presented as non-current liabilities
—
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B E )

P (B SRR B PS8 25 28 5 B A PR
Al b e HARRFNELEE -

AR R T B AR I (o] 2 0 s 4 T 1
S WEEER LT RBEE  )fF
S T A 4 L AR G SR AR B L 1009 3
L e 25 DR B SR 50 2 PR e S
B R ALE () B ) B a e &4

K IR E B R AR D 1 109% B9 A 5 AR
(BHELR 1T B IR BT R X Q)
[ — B 84T | T HERF AT 81T H
MBATI T TRSNEIR) 0 oR I % A
BRI A F A ((H
ASAT R4 ) SR [] 5 ORJUE I 8 O R
i I (2 T B A T SR R R AR Y
100% 7 N E 2 (BG4 I A
BARAHOALE (A

[ 2 A I B 4 45 T B ST AT
[m] A AR E Z A0 - ()M B IR B
SEA S B BLE (BSUR 21 A 55
BT L) B 2 RAFEE A KR
THEE BRI R BIE » RAEI T %
I ] 5 5 O 5 4 6 22 22 e A0

EHRS > ) HERR I Bl s AR R
SEIER) APEIEAEK -

i B A R I RS S A SR > AR ]
78 LhB 4 1 A 55 TR A 2 31019 Y (B A
I Z (EAS L) W ) F A0 HE S1HE R
AL (A ) 2 40 B o] BT R A P S 52
1z -
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SENIOR NOTES (Continued)

All senior notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading

Limited. They are senior obligations of the Company.

At any time, the Company may at its option redeem each senior notes, in
whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of
the principal amount of each senior notes to be redeemed plus accrued and
unpaid interest on each senior notes to be redeemed, if any, to the date of
redemption and (2) the Make Whole Price.

At any time on or after the date when each senior notes of no more than
10% of the aggregate principal amount (1) originally issued on issue date
and (2) issued on issue date of any Additional Notes permitted under
“Further Issues” remain outstanding, the Company may at its option
redeem the remaining outstanding senior notes, in whole but not in part,
at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of such each
senior notes plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to (but not including)

the redemption date.

“Make Whole Price” means with respect to each senior notes at any
redemption date, the sum of (1) the present value of the principal amount
of such each senior notes, assuming a scheduled repayment thereof on
the maturity date, plus (2) the present value of the remaining scheduled
payments of interest to and including the maturity date, in each case
discounted to the redemption date at the Treasury Rate plus 50 basis
points.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of the early redemption
options is insignificant at initial recognition and the end of the reporting
period.

Upon the occurrence of a change of control triggering event, the Company
must make an offer to repurchase all outstanding senior notes at a price
in cash equal to 101% of their principal amount plus accrued and unpaid
interest, if any, to (but excluding) the repurchase date.
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32. RiAEE@ TR

32. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

e Jwe 2: 2 —E -
2020 2019
ARHTFL ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSI B Tk ARRRINT A Derivative financial assets (under hedge
i e accounting)
iR SR Cash flow hedges
— ZE W AR e ] — Cross curtency interest rate swaps 286,089 611,000
— | F 4] — Interest rate swaps - 4,238
— A1t A A 4 — Foreign currency forward contracts = 28,875
286,089 644,113
AR Bt iE BRI A Derivative financial liabilities (under hedge
Eo IS =L accounting)
Bl Cash flow hedges
— 2C S WA e g — Cross curtency interest rate swaps 128,486 35,190
— | bl — Interest rate swaps 183,995 -
— S iR A A A — Foreign currency forward contracts 390,260 33,693
—HTHH RN A ([ HEHHE — Capped and floored forward contracts
wEHEH]) (“CFF contracts”) 161,781 -
864,522 68,883

SRR R~ R
O E T 91 5 20 e TR B R R
A
TSR A 16 B T
L2 SRR R USRI —sE I
116 72 53 T S R AR 2
LIIESTR 2V YN Y P i SU TS
3% 15 3 e P S R AR B 35
HOS s BB 6 AR, =

ARSI - AR EA 1 E B A R T
HEF R0 DU D HoE BB T3k
A 2 A B B B R

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| &8 #1 & @ = i 5 1R A 7

T—

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency forward contracts and CFF contracts

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had cross currency interest
rate swaps designated as highly effective hedging instruments in order
to minimise its exposures to foreign currency and cash flow interest
rate risk on its fixed rate USD senior notes and corresponding interest
payment by swapping a portion of those borrowings and senior notes and

corresponding interest payment from HKD and USD to RMB.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had interest rate swaps
designated as effective hedging instruments in order to minimise its
exposures to cash flow interest rate risk on its floating-rate interest

payments to fixed rate interest payments.
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BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

At the end of reporting period, the Group had foreign currency forward
contracts and CFF contracts designated as effective hedging instruments in
order to minimise foreign currency risk on its HKD bank borrowings by

selling RMB in exchange for HKD at the borrowings maturity dates.

The terms of the cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps,
foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts have been negotiated
to match the terms of the respective designated hedged items and the
directors consider that the cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate
swaps, foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts are effective

hedging instruments.

The effects of applying hedge accounting on the Group’s financial position

and performance are as follows:

(a) Derivative financial instruments — Cross currency interest rate

swaps:

TR R —E—JUE

2020 2019

ZFEEH(TFEIL) 1,450,000 1,310,000
Notional amount (USD’000)

FHH X CELA+T=E —“EZ-"HELA+T+=HZ

Maturity date

&Y ESUNE3TE ok )
Strike rate (RMB: USD range)

AT ([ 5 M < )

Strike rate (Fixed rate range)

“EFTHEATAH
July 13, 2022 -
September 16, 2029

SEZHEFEILATAH
July 13,2022 -
September 16, 2029

0.1408 - 0.1596 0.1408 — 0.1596

3.875% — 4.5% 3.875% —4.5%
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32. R4S mTH ) 32.

R X BRI R - R R
A 72 ] 5 A0 B B TH 8 ) 2 ] 6

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

#1(4)
(b)  ArAE A T H — R R (b)  Derivative financial instruments — Interest rate swaps
“Rol —% i
2020 2019
AEEF(THT) 9,900,000 600,000

Notional amount (HKD’000)

FIH

Maturity date

e I K
ZEONE—AZH
January 25, 2023 —

January 2, 2024

0.8% - 1.6%

“EC=E-ACSTHARE
e e
January 25, 2023 —

January 2, 2024

AT (18 52 M A ) 1.54% — 1.6%

Strike rate (fixed rate range)

(c) ML TR -AEEB &4 : (¢)  Derivative financial instruments — Foreign currency forward
contracts:
—RIFE ZE A
2020 2019
HAEEH(THT) 9,800,000 9,300,000
Notional amount (HKD’000)
RG] “FOEHE-AS+HHHAE SF AT HHEZE

“EFTNE—-HZH “FTE-AZH

Maturity date

234

BT AN O\ R S T iy # )
Strike rate (RMB: HKD range)

January 25, 2023 —
January 2, 2024
1.0699 - 1.127

January 25, 2023 -
January 2, 2024
1.0699 - 1.127
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32. RiAEEWTH )

R B BRI R R B

A B 12 1] 5 A0 T B TE B R = B A

#(4)

@ MEEmITH—BEEES
&8

32.

BREZZEFT A=t —HIEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps, foreign
currency forward contracts and CFF contracts (Continued)

(d) Derivative financial instruments — CFF contracts

SRR “E N

2020 2019

ZFESH (T 7,100,000 -
Notional amount (HKD’000)

FHHH R HH—HZH -

Maturity date

BATAIAR AR s Tl
Strike rate (RMB: HKD range)

GIES N RUNG TR ML )

Floor rate (RMB: HKD range)

GIESNRUNGL SR ESHE )

Cap rate (RMB: HKD range)

January 2, 2025

0.8900 -

0.8900 —0.9030 -

0.9805 -

e A 58 SRR S R SR Al
AW T ) A T TH G e 5 4035 4
EERBRGREHRHEAR - R T
THETZH=1—H » Ll EWF R
R R %%i%A%&ﬁﬁ
HIREY AN ATEBRFHEEIEA

#5578,433,0007C ( —F — JLAF @Wﬁk
R #575,230,0007C ) B\ FAHE £ 1A 1F 2 48 J&
o B CEMEE A R¥1,561,136,000
I (= F—JUAE s A R #340,525,000
TC) AT AF A S R E R - 48 A o

All of the above cross currency interest rate swaps, interest rate swaps,
foreign currency forward contracts and CFF contracts are designated and
effective as cash flow hedges. The net fair value loss of the above cross
currency interest rate swap, interest rate swaps, foreign currency forward
contracts and CFF contracts totalling RMB578,433,000 (2019: net gain
of RMB575,230,000) have been deferred in equity at December 31, 2020.
The loss of the hedging instruments amounting to RMB1,561,136,000
(2019: gain of RMB340,525,000) were reclassified from hedging reserve

to profit or loss in the same year.
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

33. JBeAs i i 33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES
(a) Jge AR (a) Share capital
R {E
0.10#TZ
U5 B E i {H
Number of
ordinary shares
of par value
HKDO0.10 each Nominal value
T
HKD’000
HE Authorised
R-F—F—H—H - At January 1, 2019, December 31, 2019
“E-NWE+A=Z+H—H R and December 31, 2020
I S <5 gy [ e 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
CEHT R Issued and fully paid
W oE—fE—~H—H At January 1, 2019 5,938,471,605 593,847
(R A UG E6) Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (Note (1)) 44,639,000 4,464
WE—NFE+ZA=+—H At December 31, 2019 5,983,110,605 598,311
G Gl R T)) Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (Note (i)) 25,403,000 2,540
BT E I (BTG Issue of ordinary shares (Note (ii)) 50,000,000 5,000
W E-EE+TH=+—H At December 31, 2020 6,058,513,605 605,851
S M IRE TR Shown in the consolidated financial
statements
W E-EE+TH=+—H At December 31, 2020 RMB’000
equivalent
AR T 527,214
REFE—IFETF A= —H At December 31, 2019 RMB’000
equivalent
HHNRMET G 520,725
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33, JBAS Bedil )
@ BA ()

Bk -

(@)

(ii)

(b) fEfE

BWE_Z-ZEL_H=1—H
IR AR ) R AT {0 P
7 25,403,000 B ( = % — JL4E ¢
44,639,000 % ) 45 JBC T EL0.1 %5 TG 1)
JRAY o 4F- 1R BT AT o M AR R A £ 7 (1
18,28 TE 2 12,5285 7T (AR E
ANE¥7.07tE AR¥11.3100) (&
T—JL4F 1 8. 2 8 L F 12,528
76 (FE AR 7,090 28 AR H
10.7276) ) = B BT HIRAE &
BRI E A B = A TR S AR o

WEZEZFFE+ZATH > ARH
T4 47 W T RO 1025 T E
HHE1750,000,000 5 45 1% 1 (0.1 76
TCHY A o BT A5 0 TE AR R B i A
3 T 1 5,000,000 95 TG (A 3 5 A R
#4,223,00070 ) $1BR BLEE1T B4 4
B 19 B 4T BAR £92,320,844,000 5 7T
(AR A AR 1,964,362,00070) 17
J A7y i A R

L A Y

1)

TR0 it 1

TR COEBER E—JUE
+ A=+ —HE A
FEA N T AR AE

B A Ut 1B M 52 B 2 O A )
R > WA AR AR IR
(A ) A0 4 2 7 K 4 B A B
W E R LR & © @3t
AR TR b#E
B AT T HE 25 IR A B A
AT A AR R BEAT A
(BB BEE A RIL S 371k
A T I B [ PG4 5 (d)
WA A B 5 (o) BN
BEAT AN B A B 2 A
A SRk I S A A R 4 B T
WD s BenfE £ T e ki
AR N BT AT e A7 o A 5
JHT A% -

REZZFEF A=+ —HIMEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(a) Share capital (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(ii)

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company issued 25,403,000
shares (2019: 44,639,000 shares) of HKDO.1 each upon exercise of share
options. The exercise prices of the share options exercised during the
year range from HKD8.28 to HKD12.528 (equivalent to RMB7.07 to
RMBI11.31) (2019: HKD8.28 to HKD12.528 (equivalent to RMB7.09 to
RMB10.72). The new shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing

shares in all respects.

On December 10, 2020, the Company completed the issuance of 50,000,000
shares with par value of HKDO.1 at a price of HKD47 per share to certain
investors. Excess of total proceeds net of the issue costs directly related to
the issuance, over the par value of shares of HKD5,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB4,223,000) amounting to approximately HKD2,320,844,000
(equivalent to RMB1,964,362,000) was recognised in share premium.

(b) Reserves

Name, nature and purpose of reserves

@)

Share premium

Share premium at December 31, 2020 and 2019 represented

share premium of the Company.

The share premium account is governed by the Cayman
Companies Law and may be applied by the Company subject
to the provisions, if any, of its memorandum and articles
of association in (a) paying distributions or dividends to
members; (b) paying up unissued shares of the Company to
be issued to equity shareholders as fully paid bonus shares;
(c) the redemption and repurchase of shares (subject to the
provisions of section 37 of the Cayman Companies Law);
(d) writing-off the preliminary expenses of the Company;
(e) writing-off the expenses of, or the commission paid or
discount allowed on, any issue of shares or debentures of the
Company; and (f) providing for the premium payable on
redemption or purchase of any shares or debentures of the

Company.
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FEHZA=T—HILEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

RE-FF

33, JBeAS Befi il (a2)

bt (48)
kAR E RS )

(b)

1)

(i1)

(iif)

SR i 1 (48

B I B A L IR B
AR A% o AN
B3 B W R P 3
B B B iR
Ie) 8 45 A SRR H AT o 3 R B
AT, o

JZ N

RERAN RO LT > 0
“EEZNEAAT—H &
i 317 3,999,999,000 A B i
T {E0. 1 785 T 1 i 403 52 1 4 T
A o AN T EAT A 1Y
TE {1 B 37 4 3 o2 A A (R )
HRAF ([ FARER] > A%
30 TR A A2 A D ) 1 PR A 4
R B B EA R
% o

AZETRFETHAZH A
N ) 1) R R IR R
100,000,000 7T (F% i AR

#88,120,0007C ) i F & A %
EENE
R

WE_ZZLFE+ A
= t—HIEHEE > FHE
BEmM—ZE2EMEA
AEEENCERENE
770,000,000 7 JC > T A2 A
B R A R P o S R
Tt BB TR R E
W1 4 2E 4 JR2 1 FE 8 il JBEOR. -
AL [E 0 B A 4 R
H 1% HE H 609 1 % 91.3% >
T A58 1 Wi B Y e N R
620,672,000 7G HIl 75 iy Wit 1 4
HIME i 10 JRE A O Y (L 1
EESFNH S > E R
bt e A S A AT
% .

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited || &2 it & M iz i% A [R 2 7

Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(@)

(i)

(1i1)

Share premium (Continued)

No distribution or dividend may be paid to the equity
shareholders out of the share premium account unless
immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

On June 11, 2008, a group reorganisation was completed
for the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
by issuing 3,999,999,000 shares of HKDO.1 each. The
difference between the nominal amount of the shares issued
by the Company and the aggregate amount of the share
capital of Juntion Development Hong Kong (Holding)
Limited (“Juntion Development”), the then holding company
of the Group, was charged to capital reserve.

On October 2, 2009, the Company declared dividend of
HKD100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB88,120,000) to the
then shareholders of the Company and was charged to capital

reserve.

Special reserve

During the year ended December 31, 2007,
Juntion Development injected additional capital of
HKD770,000,000 in a non-wholly owned subsidiary,
Chongqing Longhu Development in which the non-
controlling shareholders are Madam Wu Yajun and Mr.
Cai Kui, who are also the ultimate controlling shareholders
of the Company at that date. The Group’s equity interest
in Chongqing Longhu Development has increased from
60% to 91.3% and a discount on deemed acquisition of
RMB620,672,000 which represents the excess of the share of
net assets attributable to the additional interest acquired over
the amount injected was recognised in special reserve as the

contribution from equity owners.
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bt (1)
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(b)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

H Attt

Sl 457 55 TORE L 4
WA 4 A ST (R
sk P U 10 R VP
o

VEBBR

AR AE B T 1 25 T B e
NEl A SRR - ZE
W B 2 0 2 1) v o B R Rt
43 L BR B AR Ui 1 A 1096
HERMED M EAR
509 & 1F o HEHE % % 0 £ ZE
T ) i 2R AT N IR IS 2
IR o 1 2 AR et T
JH SRR A R B
KIUE ) 28 75 i /%
B /A AR RSN AR

FEIEIR 17 v Bt 30 A
WA G PR R R T
FE46() B ) 7E T 5 b i
TAEH A K o

(vii) B

S b fok A LB < 0L 9 2
RIS B TR 2 NP EE
B 2 845 2 Rt E R
g o EEEHWNZ S X ER
di o FRZ Aok A T R S 2
At 2 TR 2 A FHEE)
EAZ BatHs A g ZHs
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BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

33. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Reserves (Continued)

Name, nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Other reserve

Other reserve represents the change in net assets attributable
to the Group in relation to changes in ownership interests in

subsidiaries without obtaining or losing of control.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the articles of association of certain
subsidiaries established in the PRC, these subsidiaries are
required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory surplus reserve until the reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital. Transfer to this reserve must be
made before distributing dividends to equity owners. The
statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up for previous
year’s losses, expand the existing operations or convert into

additional capital of the subsidiaries.

Shares held for share award scheme

The amount represents the payments made to acquire shares
from the market for the share award scheme as disclosed in

note 46(a).

(vii) Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve represents the cumulative effective
portion of gains and losses arising on changes in fair value of
hedging instruments entered into for cash flow hedges. The
cumulative gain and loss arising on changes in fair value of
the hedging instruments that are recognised and accumulated
under this reserve will be reclassified to profit or loss only

when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss.
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

34. BRI 34. DEFERRED TAXATION
PUR BN AS A B J R AF BE R RR Y £ R The followings are the major deferred taxation (liabilities) assets
FEBLIE (A &) B M) recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior years:
#& SER AR T
mE - AR L TR (RBHRINT e BRI
REE  AFE O REBER UERERG  ORREE SRR ARSEA BRR HERR Jif gt
Withholding ~ Right-of-
Fair value Land Unealised taxon  useassets
Accelerated of appreciation  Allowance profiton  retained and
tax  investment tax for doubtful Government intra-group profits to be related lease
depreciation ~ properties  Taxlosses  provisions debts  subsidies  purchases  distributed liabilities Others Total
NBBFE NREFE AREFLE ARRTE ARBTL AREFE AREFE AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFL
RMBU00 ~ RMBU00  RMBUO0  RMBUO00 ~ RMBU00  RMBUO0  RMBU00  RMBUOOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBU00
(Hizka) (Hfzkc) (Hzkp)
(Note a) (Note c) (Note b)
REFNE-A—H  AJanuary 1,2019 (468083)  (1507240) 1822619 2905393 3,750 8027 170186 (625.738) - 8T (35539%9)
TR (1) FTA (Charge) credit to profit or loss (168385) (1,139,537) 835,081 1,266,698 - -9 (195D RN 60503 906828
RURME ATIEE  Acquisicion of assets and liabilities
e R B8 (f3kss) through acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35) - - 913 126,751 - - - - - - 127,664
REF-UE At December 31, 2019
tZA=1-H (636,468)  (8,646,777) 2658613 4,298,842 3,750 8027 39414 (652700 32772 197590 (2,519,507)
R EAEI RN (Charge) credit to profic or loss (15699 (060747 532970 863985 = 6215 270317 140000 229675 9 75500
BRORME A FEE  Acquisicion of assets and liabilities
G s B8 (f75) through acquisition of subsidiaries
(Note 35) - - 61 126,867 - - - - - - 126928
EHNE (E36) Acquisition of business (Note 36) = = 33 - - - - - - (37,297) (36,864)
#— /A7 (M7k40) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 40) = = - @»0) = = = = = - @0
RoZ-ZE At December 31, 2020
ToAZ-H 952,167)  (9,607,524)  3,192077 5,267,444 3,750 1812 599,731 (625,270) 262,447 161,032 (1,696,668)
Bt 5E Notes:
() 7% G B G ) BB 046 S BT (a) This represents the tax effect of the temporary difference arising from the treatment

1) 3R T A T R BB R R o BT
BB BN RS A > (R T S 2
S I B G 6 11 3 e v A ) 2E P
SCATBANE

(b) SRR R B SO0 A A R 2R R
DR 5 G 2 48 o ) - (L 2 £ B 5
R AL R A R 15% 1
S5 B o TS T HTBR (93 20 (A ) BT
TSR A ] A o

© AR R A Vs AT I I R A O
3k 7, o OB A 7 1 MR B 1 2 B ) S
B 12008111255 » 5% M B T ATRL Bl 2
FRTA BB A TR 02 ) A B 25 96 I B
WIERAH
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(b)

()

of the government subsidies between the accounting standards and the tax bureau.
Tax bureau treats the government subsidies as an income but for financial reporting
purpose, the government subsidies have been accounted for as deduction from costs

of properties under development for sales.

This represents the tax effect of temporary differences arising from the deduction
of advertising expense and fair value adjustments arising from acquisition of
subsidiaries. The Group can deduct its advertising expense of no more than 15% of
its revenue and for the part that cannot be deducted, if any, it can be carried forward

to future years.

According to the “Arrangement between the Mainland of China and the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the
Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to Taxes on Income” and Guoshuifa {2008}
No. 112, where the Hong Kong resident company directly owns at least 25% of the

capital of the Mainland company, 5% dividend withholding tax rate is applicable.
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PG BRI - & TEERIA
BERAMOAEH - U At HE B
TR £ B AE RS A5 B A -

BREZZEFT A=t —HIEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

For the presentation purposes of the consolidated statement of financial
position, certain deferred taxation assets and liabilities have been offset.
The following is an analysis of the deferred taxation balances for financial

feporting purposes:

—Eo®E 20k
2020 2019
YN n AR¥F
RMB’000 RMB’000
IERERITE & Deferred taxation assets 8,866,713 6,725,593
EIEBLIA A R Deferred taxation liabilities (10,563,381) (9,245,100)
(1,696,668) (2,519,507)

WoE-REFH=+—H » XEH At December 31, 2020, the Group had unused estimated tax losses of

A NE%13,510,880,00070 (& — JLAF
AR H11,351,992,00078) B9 512K B B
TE s 48 T A HE R R 2R i A1) o b AR
#12,768,308,0007C ( —F— JL4E : AR
10,634,452,00075 ) ) i 15 7fE 5 40 A8 ol JE 5
FE o F A S AT TE A A It R IR O
otk AR ¥742,572,00000 (—F— L
AF 0 NR¥717,540,000 70 ) TE R840 48 B T
HE o RMERRBLIE G AL DA T A
-

RMB13,510,880,000 (2019: RMB11,351,992,000) available to offset
against future profits. Deferred taxation assets have been recognised in
respect of RMB12,768,308,000 (2019: RMB10,634,452,000) of such
losses. No deferred taxation asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining RMB742,572,000 (2019: RMB717,540,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The unrecognised tax losses will

expire in the following years:

CRCRAE —E—hAE

2020 2019

ANRI¥For AR BT

RMB’000 RMB’000

CE R 2020 - 39,448
I e 2021 34,071 41,068
SET 2022 163,487 190,088
:i:zﬁ 2023 114,942 210,021
B4 2024 154,813 236,915
SRR 2025 275,259 -
742,572 717,540

T—
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REBCBE TS H L
For the year ended December 31, 2020

34. BHEBLHE @)

AR B A S B B > ik h B 2 R
H FE)\FE— A — HR R i A =
RIS R FEATBE o BRI AT TSR
7R v U A /A ) B R A () 7 I
=4 N R %109,360,223,0007C (% — L
40 AR 114,941,168,00070) 712 1K 4E
BRI > Ji R A 5 T R 42 o1 T IR 2 ) 13
[e] 5 (o] LT IR 22 B 7A 1T AR T RE A
[\] o
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34.

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from January
1, 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to RMB109,360,223,000 (2019: RMB114,941,168,000) as the Group
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.



Notes to

35. BRBORHBABIREER 35
fifi
IBEEFF L H = —HIEE
B AL N BB

o B S AR B
the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—R B = = b H L4

For the year ended December 31, 2020

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group acquired interests

in the following entities:

[l AV ASEPOR  ASER R

(i) UNHEA FRL B i e i s b ARE
Equity Equity
interests interests
held by held by
Place of the Group the Group
incorporation/ before after Total
Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition acquisition  consideration
ARMFx
RMB000
LHEMBREERERSE  Beijing Shoukai Xutai Real Estate Company I 49% 50%( Hfka) 61,159
ARFITAA Limited PRC (Note a)
FEEME KRR E % Chongqing Longhuyitianzhantu Real Estate il % 51% 30,600
Lo Co. Led. PRC Nil
K4 EEMARATR Dalian Jinwan Real Estate Co. Ltd. LaE] % 51% 111,170
PRC Nil
BT A ELHRAT  Huizhou Xinyaozhong Real Estate Co. Led. LT % 51% 65,500
PRC Nil
BR85S i Shanxi Bosai Properties Development Co. Ltd. 1] % 65% 55,331
Lo PRC Nil
VB B 3 Xi'an Chuanhuashengshi Properties Development — H1E] % 49%(Mit7kDb) 213,256
AR Co. Ltd. PRC Nil (Note b)
REEIEEEARAT Wuhan Jinshun Real Estate Co. Ltd. LT % 100% 672,868
PRC Nil
PRI EEARAR  Xianyang Shenghu Huahan Real Estate Co. Led. 1 % 55% 388,684
PRC Nil
AT T2 b g Chengdu Xiteng Properties Development Co. Led. 1] % 100% 1,260,000
HIRAHE PRC Nil
2,858,568
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35. X 3 VB T O 2 il R O
il

Mzt -

(a)

(b)

BEZZCREF A= HILFEE
R4 A S 1 S5 ARG A6 A 45 1 R
499 FBCHE A 0% 2 )AL S N 2% 2 A R
R SL AL SO B A9 A B T AL AR R KA I
AR A P E I B - DUV
TG o REEIL AT ZR WA RT
ALRR R A AR AL R AR B3
P E L HE R - ARMA
MEAZAFAERG=AHHPEI WS
PRI » ARG B T M A T
WL AR T8 7l

B FRLAF B 0 B ZH A ) S e
HAE  ARMAEZEL A ERE=
FERNIAS AR M EREE
FEHIRE > BOLBA AR B A -

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(a) During the year ended December 31, 2020, pursuant to revised memorandum
and articles of Beijing Xutai, which was previously accounted for as an associate
of the Group with 49% of equity interest, entered into between the Group and its
controlling shareholder of associate, the Group has obtained control of voting to
govern the relevant activities of the entity. According to the revised memorandum
and articles of Beijing Xutai, relevant activities of Beijing Xutai require consent
with more than half of the directors in the board of Beijing Xutai. The Group has the
power to appoint two out of three directors in the board of directors. Therefore, the

Group has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

(b) The relevant activities of the entity requite consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
two out of three directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the

Group has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

BB E A W RO ERE K 35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

@) THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)
MEEZF—NFETZH =1+ —HIEE During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group acquired interests
FE > AL T E AR - in the following entities:
Wi Yot
AL e M A%
Wi AR A TRt 5 TR TR HE ARE
Equity incerest

heldby ~ Equity interest

Place of the Group held by
incorporation/ before the Group Total
Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition  after acquisition consideration
ANRH T
RMB000
RERMAEEARAT  Wuhan Yuanboyuan Real Estate Co. Ltd. i 0% (HtiEa) 0% (Htita) i
(TRIER R ) (“Wuhan Yuanboyuan”) PRC (Note a) (Note a) NIL
TR T i o e P % Fuzhou Shengjia Properties Development g i 37% (kb 18,500
ARAT Co., Lid. PRC NIL (Note b)
RERB R ELER Wuhan Chenmingzhongli Real Estate Co. Led. i 60% 6,000
HIEAT PRC NIL
RMEL A EEMARAT  Hangzhou Binzhe Management Co., Led. I i 34% (Hifzkb) 286,200
PRC NIL (Note b)
IR SN Shenzhen Chuangzhen Management Co., Ltd. 1 ki3 309 (ftitc) 621,718
ARAT PRC NIL (Note ¢)
TR nEREEn Beijing Kaiyuanhean Investment Co., Ltd. il i 51% 598,158
LY PRC NIL
EMNEERERERRAT  Guangzhou Fubao Development Co. Lid. i L 80% 650,416
PRC NIL
BENRMTEARA  Nanning Yuyin Development Co. Led. i I 49% (Mf3kD) 245,000
PRC NIL (Note b)
AR —BEARAT Hefei Xiayi Real Estate Co. Led. g I 70% 698,897
PRC NIL
T ES R s B Qingdao Yiyue Properties Development g I 100% 50,008
HIRAH Co. Limited PRC NIL
BEATETEEAMRAT  Yantai Xinhongyu Real Estate Co. Led. il e 60% 420,000
PRC NIL
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

35. BEBOWMHIEA W BREER 35
il

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)
i Yot
s AL/ KA A%
WEAR AR TR 5 TR Fef ARE
Equity interest
heldby ~ Equity interest
Place of the Group held by
incorporation/ before the Group Total
Name of subsidiary establishment acquisition  after acquisition consideration
AEHT T
RMB 000
EINKERLEARAT Shenyang Dahua Real Estate Co. Ltd. H I 65% 152,548
PRC NIL
BN AAE S M Suzhou Heben Investment Co. Ltd. el 50% 100% 135,230
LI PRC
WL R 2R i Zhejiang Kangxi Property Management Co. I I 51% 76,500
Gl Lid. PRC NIL
3,959,175
Mk Notes:
(a) BEZZ—JUFET A=t H IR (a) During the year ended December 31, 2019, pursuant to a supplementary

AR AR G B BT A MRS AE AR SR T 8
B BRI A R PF R P AT S 1
7 T 0 BRI ok o AR B 2
PERIBCRAE » DU TR N B - %%
FTAE T B AT - AT AT BRI 80 280
O A B — B 3 o BERT AR BT IR Hh
kR o T HE AR B B e BRI
TERRKGHHERD YRR - A4EH
TA R K € 607 19 BEZEHE > A4 [ 5%
A PRI - SCHB A A S
HO B 2 ) o

(b) R B R A 0 )~ B (b)
AT ARMAERESAAERG L
FZHEEPM =4 HAKEEZTEEA
FEPEHIE > B B AR B G A
e

©  TERAR RIS Bl 2R A% A0 W) i o ©
HAE  AREARZEZ A EHG =
ZEFPMWAL - HAEEE LT
FEPEHIE > ML B AR B MG
e
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shareholders’ agreement of Wuhan Yuanboyuan, which was previously accounted for
as a joint venture of the Group, entered into between the Group and its joint venture
partner, the Group has obtained control of voting power to govern the relevant
activities of the entity. Unanimous consent from the shareholders of this entity
was required for relevant activities before signing of supplementary shareholders’
agreement. After signing of the revised shareholders’ agreement, relevant activities of
the entity are decided by the shareholders’ meeting and consent with simple majority
is required from the shareholders’ meeting. The Group has 60% voting power in the
shareholders’ meeting, the Group has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as

a subsidiary of the Group.

The relevant activities of the entity requite consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
three out of five directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the Group

has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

The relevant activities of the entity requite consent with more than half of the
directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
two out of three directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the

Group has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.
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BHBOW KR A OB ER 35
il

ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

ZRCRE —E N

2020 2019

ANR#F ANR¥TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

BEWE (H3k12) Investment properties (Note 12) 2,083,362 2,751,777

W3 ~ BiR Bt (PR 13) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 675 7,754

RSA AR Intangible assets (Note 17) = 66,710

AR A (Wata4) Deferred taxation assets (Note 34) 126,928 127,664
MEFE Inventories of properties:

—FHER R — Properties held for development 569,026 2,115,630

— BRI REY % — Properties under development for sales 2,918,963 9,758,413

— i EnE — Properties held for sales - 71,588
FRENSHR 3R B HL A RS 8 ~ 4 Accounts and other receivables,

TR HE deposits and prepayments 461,122 398,832
ELdEEE Taxation recoverable 68,320 -
JE Wi 45 B R Amounts due from the Group 2,644,932 831,013
M R 2 i i Amounts due from non-controlling interests 1,732,289 579,170
TRk — 4% i B 3R 0E Amount due from a former shareholder = 264,990
WATEERE S Bank balances and cash 419,952 223,849
ST RHAB S —— SN2 Bank and other borrowings — due within one year (495,435) -
JEAT R R AT 220 ~ HLADMERT R R Accounts and bills payables, other payables and

TG A accrued charges (1,106,270) (1,830,148)
AT B R Loans from former shareholders (659,614) (112,096)
A FEHE R 25 20E Amounts due to non-controlling interests (356,348) (3,399,459)
JREA5H A% 4 B R Amounts due to the Group (393,385) (2,485,856)
TEATRIE Taxation payable (838,830) (384,767)
ST AR A — — R B Bank and other borrowings — due after one year (689,899) (10,600)

6,485,788 8,974,464
W RIS Less: Non-controlling interests (2,243,396) (3,876,047)
4,242,392 5,098,417
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

725 38 VB U R 2 vl o O
il

35. ACQUISITIONS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
THROUGH ACQUISITIONS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

ZRIFA R
2020 2019
ANR¥F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PIN A B EE - Consideration satisfied by:
Ha Cash 2,443,811 3,919,175
VERRER G Consideration payable within 1 year 414,757 40,000
N EA RS Interests in joint ventures = 1,157,806
NS RO RE RS Interest in an associate 2,043,438 93,532
4,902,006 5,210,513
B R Less: Loans assignment (659,614) (112,096)
4,242,392 5,098,417
BT A Net cash outflow:
A4 Cash paid (2,443,811) (3,919,175)
W DR S & RS S EI AR Less: Cash and cash equivalent
balances acquired 419,952 223,849
(2,023,859) (3,695,326)

FHDL > WORZE N FI AR -
A v A A R 20 5 i R R
W o RSO T B D R A
ook e B SR 3 SRS A pF BT S E SR HE
i -
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In the opinion of directors, the acquisitions of these companies does not
constitute businesses. Therefore, the transactions were determined by the
directors of the Company to be acquisition of assets and liabilities through
acquisition of subsidiaries rather than a business combination as defined in

IFRS 3 Business Combinations.

R 2 A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZRDZET A= IR
For the year ended December 31, 2020

36. EBAE 36. BUSINESS COMBINATION
WARERE > AEBUAREARY During the current year, the Group acquired following subsidiaries at a
379,609,000 JG Ui B T 1 Bt g A ] o %% total consideration of RMB379,609,000. These transactions have been
22 5 (5 P B Er et A AR S & accounted for as business combinations using acquisition accounting.
PF o AUEESE LR - FAIA R A A F Upon completion of the acquisitions, following companies became
HIBHE A A o CUURIHE A Rl £ subsidiaries of the Company. The principal activities of acquired
SETK By 2 BRI o subsidiaries are engaged in the property management services.
BT S - ARCIURIIY EERN Goodwill is provisional pending the finalisation of the valuation of
AR EEAAEE - acquired intangible assets.
AL/ FE
CL IR 2 042 78 JRAL A 2 CIE S ffE
Place of Equity
establishment/ interest
Name of subsidiaries acquired incorporation acquired Consideration
ARHFr
RMB000
M2 R EREA R F Fuzhou Haozhijia Properties Service Company Limited Ll 51% 15,009
PRC
R B A AT Heilongjiang Wanrui Properties Company Limited 1 51% 8,000
PRC
B RS A IR A Hangzhou Zhongguang Properties Service L] 60% 62,100
Company Limited PRC
SR A SR A PR ] Sanhe Shi Tianyuan Property Mangement Service Ll 95% 294,500
Company Limited PRC
379,609
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36. B
JT S B T o R Bl R A B AR Y RERR

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Total recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

HEHE - assumed are as follows:
ARTFIT
RMB’000

i3 ~ R B (B 3) Property, plant and equipment (Note 13) 2,101
MY G (BfaE17) Intangible assets (Note 17) 149,188
TRIERIIE G E (K 5534) Deferred taxation assets (Note 34) 433
JRENST AR 20 B A BN R ~ $524 Jt Account and other receivables, deposits and prepayment

HATHOR 21,948
EEEaE Taxation recoverable 928
HAn e & Other inventories 1,038
JREUS I 3 il W 25 2R Amount due from non-controlling interests 88,068
SRATHG % Bl Bank balances and cash 9,555
B 5 B A IERT 20E Trade and other payables (91,390)
JREAST I 22 il B 25 T Amounts due to non-controlling interests (7,822)
}?Eﬁmlﬁ Taxation payable (5,654)

IEIERI A B A& (MM EE34) Deferred taxation liabilities (Note 34) (37,297)
] kA G AR Total identifiable net assets 131,096
IR A2 Non-controlling interests (27,463)
T (B s Goodwill (Note 15) 275,976

379,609

JA W F S A RE MO (R L4
55 MBSO IR ) 1 (40 55 1 6 4048
B o U B B gl E i & B &
HENREMREHAAER -

The fair value of the receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade receivables) at the date of acquisition is approximately equal to
gross contractual amounts. The best estimate at acquisition date of
the contractual cash flows not expected to be collected is considered as

insignificant.

TA WS F T RERR A JF 2 I B 2 ) 275 B Al
JI S A ) R ) A T Y

Rt net assets of acquired subsidiaries.

The non-controlling interests recognised at the acquisition date was

measured by reference to the proportionate share of recognised amounts of
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FHE B )

R s A P

S 6 A R A TR o JRRIRL 2 W
FIHAF 2B TR O A ) S
EF‘%E%%‘Z%JF‘W”A”J o W% M ak
BB R - IR LA AT
u&?ﬂlﬂfiﬂféﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁ DERIE o

TR R A 2 TS AT B S I HY
I -

36.

BREZZEFT A=t —HIEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Goodwill arose on acquisitions

Goodwill arose on the acquisition of these subsidiaries because the
acquisitions included the assembled workforce and some potential
contracts which are still under negotiation with prospective new customers
as at the date of acquisition. These benefits are not recognised separately
from goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for

identifiable intangible assets.

None of goodwill arising on the acquisitions are expected to be deductible

for tax purpose.

ARH#FFoc
RMB’000
A A Total Purchase considerations

EEH & E Fixed cash considerations
- E FTHEME Settled in 2020 328,304
NTECEREF T A=+ H R Outstanding as at December 31, 2020 20,529
348,833

1?5%1’37‘5)@%/\ RAE Estimated contingent cash considerations
TR CEES A=t —H AT Outstanding as at December 31, 2020 30,776
379,609
——

b RIERIB R AT E A AR =E
e 22y Gt e < K ] N
e AR —E AR ARSEEARIN AT
R 530,776,000 70 ° R IR 7% Bk Sk %
EEE’J"WEEAE%O 776,000 Gl E 7

NG A IR W 2 1A T AT U T B B £
TR~ AR HOE B RERT R o

]l N I NEM N PN 45
A S EE A TR e A R A A 1 i
Hop s & 7B 3 R B AR B
% o

Note: Based on the relevant agreement, the Group is required to pay an additional amount
of RMB30,776,000 if the acquired subsidiaries’ revenue and/or profit for the year
in each of the calendar years 2020 and 2021 exceed certain amount. The fair value
of such contingent arrangement amounted to RMB30,776,000 as at the end of
the reporting period and has been included in “accounts and bills payables, other

payables and accrued charges” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Acquisition-related costs were insignificant and have been excluded
from the cost of acquisition and were recognised as an expense in the
period incurred within the “administrative expenses” line item in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

ARE T
RMB’000

R IR A P B 4 A
wﬁ/‘iﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ‘
CHERIRITH B KBl E

Consideration paid in cash

Bank balances and cash acquired

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:

(328,304)
9,555

(318,749)
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36.

37.

FHE B )

T S A ) A ) B M S A 35
ANR¥32913,0007CFF AR E —F FFE
TZA= T —HIEFERGER - BEZF
ZEREF A =t BIREE A
JT e i o /A D 7 A ) N R 222,363,000
3 o

TR R - —HEW - &
EHEE —F_FRFT_A=T—HILF
BE RSO 55 N B 15184,663,212,000 7
WEZZREFT =T —HIEEERN
i A By N R 5 28,843,830,000 7T © 5%
BORMEER A A - 3 A — 7 Fm Ui
TR ERE—H—HERME N AER

TR E B Wt B A A IR 2
RAERE . BH -

A R RE (B S 2 R A AR 47 B AR ) 2 WOt
UL T ASE A [ %5 A RS > A
I rIEFARGRY3E - W B DA R T
R R UE H B E R SR A
W Bl LA B AT S E ) S B o

TBCE BiF ) 2 i) A A

WE_F-ZET A=+ —HIEFE
AR B IR I B A Bl e A A R
550,182,000 7C * A B % 481,800,000 7C &
N B 4,900,000 78 iR 1 15 1 A BR A 7]
([ ) BEO o9 HE - M A B BER
BRZS A ([REE 4 ) BB D669 BERE B b
HE IR st s BB A PR ) ([ e RERE ]) 2
1499 IR (3255 /A W) JE il £y IR 4 B I
AH) o IECEAMERZ S AR > e
AR 2 ST I 2 A 2 A 1 R
2 [H M 4258 N R 103,803,00000 2 H
TR At A P TERR o

36.

37.
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Included in the profit for the year ended December 31, 2020 was a profit
of RMB32,913,000 attributable to the additional business generated by
the acquired subsidiaries. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2020
includes RMB222,363,000 generated from the acquired subsidiaries.

Had the acquisition been completed on January 1, 2020, the
Group’s revenue for year ended December 31, 2020 would have been
RMB184,663,212,000 and profit for the year ended December 31, 2020
would have been RMB28,843,830,000. The pro forma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on January 1, 2020, nor is it

intended to be a projection of future results.

In determining the ‘pro-forma’ revenue and profit of the Group had
subsidiaries been acquired at the beginning of the current year, the
directors of the Company calculated depreciation and amortisation
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets based on the
recognised amounts of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

at the date of the acquisition.

ACQUISITIONS OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN
SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group acquired additional
49% equity interest in Fast Great Investment Limited (“Fast Great”),
66% equity interest in Nanjing Mingyu Real Estate Company Limited
(“Nanjing Mingyu”) and 49% equity interest in Hangzhou Longyao Real
Estate Company Limited (“Hangzhou Longyao”), which were previously
non wholly-owned subsidiaries, at a consideration of RMB550,182,000,
RMB481,800,000 and RMB4,900,000, respectively, from the non-
controlling shareholders. The acquisition has been accounted for as equity
transactions and the total difference between the consideration paid and
the carrying amounts of the attributable non-controlling interests acquired
of RMB103,803,000 had been recognised directly in other reserve.
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38. MEMBA WM HHER (K% 38 DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN

L PeHE) SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL
BE-Z-NE+-_A=1T—HILEE - During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group disposed of the
ARSI LU B A > i - partial interest in the following entity:
ki HER
Gl A5 AEH
WEA R 4R L AR HA MR AfE
Equity interest ~ Equity interest
Place of held by held by
incorporation/ the Group the Group Total
Name of subsidiary establishment before disposal after disposal consideration
ARETT
RMB000
HAMELERFEHA  Ningbo Jinjun Properties Information g 100% 65% 89,950

HRAF(T#HEH])  Consulting Co., Led. (‘Ningbo Jinjun”) PRC

EHAE  AEEA RN EERERE D In the opinion of the directors, the Group has sufficiently dominant voting
T A A BIE Y > S R AS 4 interest to direct the relevant activities of Ningbo Jinjun and therefore
SR A AT HEHIRE o UL > SR A ER the Group has control over Ningbo Jinjun. Accordingly, Ningbo Jinjun
BAREENEAT > M ECEEMERS remains as a subsidiary of the Group and the disposal has been accounted
SAE o B fCAE K B e A R E 2 for as an equity transaction. The difference between the consideration
) 2 BRI B O B9 o received and the net asset values disposed of are considered insignificant.
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

39. BAEBMERBAG MM AHR  39. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF PARTIAL INTERESTS IN

(RELPEMHE) SUBSIDIARIES NOT RESULTING IN LOSING OF
CONTROL

BE-ZE-NE+_A=1T—HILEE - During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Group deemed disposed of

A EBUE LS T BRI A the partial interest in the following entities:

ks e

HEMAEE  HERAEE K B

(il pagib s P L HANRE  SAORE MEEA  BZNEE
Equity interest Capital

held by  Equity interest injection

the Group held by from

before the Group independent

Place of deemed  after deemed Increased third

Name of subsidiary incorporation  partial disposal  partial disposal  paid up capital parties

ARETT — ARKTx
RMB'000 RMB'000

FHBEEEAMAT  Jiaxing Zhenyue Real Estate Ll 100% 51% 700,000 343,000
Co., Ltd. PRC
EMEFRFEMERRAR  Guangzhou Xuanliang ] 100%  25.1%(Jffzka) 270,000 202,230
Development Led. PRC (Note a)
FMFEERERRAR  Guangzhou Jiaheng I 100% 51% 1,412,525 692,127
Development Ltd. PRC
1,237,357

P2k - Note:

(a) B R IS B A A R (a) The relevant activities of the entity require consent with more than half of the
FAE o AEMAEZREZERESGL directors in the board of directors of the entity. The Group has the power to appoint
ZERRN S o HAEREZEREA four out of seven directors in the board of directors of the entity and as such, the
PR » BOHBAR A A SR B BB A4 ) o Group has control of the entity and thus it is regarded as a subsidiary of the Group.

SR S B B IR S B T Y The difference between the consideration received and the attributable net

2 FR b At A% 1) AR B T A B asset value disposed of is considered insignificant for each of the deemed

iH o disposals above.
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A — S A v
BWE-Z-ZHE+ A=+ —HILFEE
24 [ DL AR N R 60,000,000 7C H 8 H
T BOE 2 ) 8 o 4 1 B 2 A PR A R 609 ik
HE o

BEZRDZET A= IR
For the year ended December 31, 2020

40. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group disposed of its 60%
equity interest in a subsidiary, Shenyang Jinheng Real Estate Co. Ltd., at a

consideration of RMB60,000,000.

e e 223
2020
ANR¥EFIL
RMB’000
i B Net assets disposed of:
FrE 2 Properties held for sales 11,715
JRE MR B LA BSR4 Accounts and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
FAHR 17,818
TEIERI TG Deferred taxation assets 22,250
JREAT R B AT S0 ~ LA Accounts and bills payables, other payables and
FOE RS accrued charges (101,947)
JEATRLIE Taxation payable (138,024)
T A 4 |3 0 Amount due from the Group 38,795
JRE S 422 1 HE 2 Amount due from non-controlling interest 6,126
SRATEER N & Bank balances and cash 276,399
133,132
W IR IR AR Less: Non-controlling interest (35,947)
97,185
RAE LU 575 A Consideration satisfied by:
Bl Cash 21,205
e Loan assignment 38,795
60,000
38 5 M B TR AR Net cash outflow on disposal transaction:
ClkcBl Cash received 21,205
W B HERS MRS S B Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances disposed (276,399)
(255,194)
——
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BEZFZBET AT —HIMEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

ATA. TRV ) A 1 £ R

T AR A% [ DR B A Y
AfEE)  OFBE LB eT - MK
EHEENAREEERAEEGE SRS
HERDBRMEE B SR E 0B &R
BECRAKB &R -

41A.RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities
arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

TERfE B B fEffaE Gl
fEfsUR W e 0 bt RERS FEfRE &R it
Amounts
due to non- Amounts Amounts Bank
controlling dueto due to and other Senior Dividend Lease
interests associates joint ventures borrowings notes payables liabilities Total
ARHFE  AREFE  ARETL  ARKFr ARKTT  AREFrE AREFLE ARETFE
RMBU0O RMBUOO RMBU0O RMBUOO RMBU0O RMBUO0O RMBUOO RMBU0O
ey i At January 1, 2019 24,527,983 8,945,018 B9 111199299 8620623 1,781,855 8456859 170,704,776
REREIE Financing cash flows (1,133,099) (1,954,221) 1,671,883 13,495,099 5,963,456 (5,893,586) (L,111,484) 10,638,048
BRI A ARG R R Acquisitions of assets and libilities through
af acquisitions of subsidiaries 3,399,459 - - 10,600 - - - 3,410,059
TG R AT Foic value of option recogaised
B at bond initial date - - - 17861 - - - 17,861
ANEfE Foreign exchange translation - - - 47250 67,049 - - 504,299
Ll Finance costs - - - 6,145,512 42,08 - - 6,587,795
HEAREER Lease liability charges - - - - - - 576,455 576,455
MEm Inception of leases - - - - - - 3,334,212 3,334,212
B Dividends declred 935,65 - - - - 6,257069 - 7,192,724
BEF-JUEFZA=F—0  AcDecember 31, 2019 27,7199 6,990,797 884502 131305621 14,693,411 2,145,338 1256042 202,966,229

L iEEc] T Jefra R
HRtAE ATl e 0t s Bt TR HEAHK it
Amounts
due to non- Amounts Amounts Bank
controlling due to due to and other Senior Dividend Lease
interests associates joint ventures borrowings notes payables liabilities Total
NRWFE  ABWFE  AREFE  ARETE ARWFE AREFE AREFE AREFR
RMBU00 RMBU00 RMBU00 RMBU00 RMBU00 RMBU00 RMBU00 RMB00
REEZFE-R—H At January 1,2020 27,729,998 6,990,797 8,845,022 131,303,621 14,693 411 2,145,338 11,256,042 202,966,229
RERETE Financing cash flows 8,168,630 372915 (1,534,350) 12,844,699 3,779,195 (7,180,794) (L415619) 15,034,676
ERERR A AMEEE R Acquisicion of assets and labilities chrough
Afk acquisition of subsidiaies 356,348 = = 1,185,334 = = = 1,541,682
EBAH Business combination 7822 - - - - - - 7822
TRBHIG BRI A T Fairvalue option recognised
iz at bond inital date = - = (3.219) = - = (3.219)
INEHE Foreign exchange translation = = - (3,219,859) (1,196,547) - - (4,416,400)
{ﬁ%%}] Inception of leases - - - - - - 4,038,209 4,038,209
HEAFRER Lease labiliy charges = - - - - - 725,940 725,940
BE A Finance costs - - - 7,222,031 756,528 - - 7,978,559
BELOE Barly termination of leases - - - - - - (892,548) (892,548)
EERRE Dividends declared = - = = = 7458797 = 7458797
REEZFEFTAZF 0 AcDecember 31,2020 36,262,198 7,363,712 7,310,672 149,334,607 18,032,587 2,423,341 13,712,024 234,439,741
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41B. FEIEB SRS 41B.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

BE_EX_FE+_HA=1+—HI%# During the year ended December 31, 2020, the Group declared dividends
FE o 7 45 [ i I 5 4R 2R R Ik B3 A to non-controlling interests and offset with settled by amounts due from
JRE ke 3 42 i 4 45 2 EAT HIE B P AR B A non-controlling interests for an amount of RMBS,557,495,000 (December
[ #5557,495,0007C ( — & — fL4E+ = A 31, 2019: RMB3,864,662,000). The Group entered into new lease
=+—H : ANRE¥3,864,662,0007C) ° A& agreements for the use of leased properties and investment properties under
A [0 PRI N AL 0 26 R R ) sublease. On the lease commencement, the Group recognised right-of-
TR E R o A BRI - AR use assets of RMB1,073,045,000 (December 31, 2019: nil), additions to
V2 e )M AN R 1,073,045,000 7T investment properties under sublease amounting to RMB2,965,164,000
(ZF—-NEF+ZH=1T—H : &) - B (December 31, 2019: RMB3,334,212,000) and lease liabilities of
TR m & e i A\ R #2,965,164,000 RMB4,038,209,000 (December 31, 2019: RMB3,334,212,000).

T ZF—NLEFTZHA=F—H: A
¥ 3.334212,000 0 ) KA A E AR
5 4,038,209,000 G (=% — JL4E + = H
=1—H : AR#3,334,212,0007C) °

41C. RIEBLETR I 41C. CASH OUTFLOWS FOR LEASES
EMB SR A% T Total outflows for leases are as below:
CRORE ZEZ— A
2020 2019
AR#F AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
DR E W HAIE T ML EY ¥ Leased properties under subleases classified
as investment properties 1,208,051 1,111,484
FIAB R G ML E Leasehold lands included in investment
properties under development 4,003,630 7,235,253
FIAYEARMAE L Leasehold lands included in inventories of
properties 64,804,481 69,547,016
FEA RS E B Leased properties included in
right-of-use assets 53,888 -
REEEE KENRE Low-value assets and short-term leases 230,866 234,871
70,300,916 78,128,624

—
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wE

CECREFTA=ZT—HIEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

42.

43.

SE P A

R B B R Rk - AR
B 2 0 o T
SE DR AR < A/ 7
B T BRI - 3%
sk RO BT S0 AP
BRI T TR - A MIAA R
A8 T PR 1
Bl -

ARG IS I EL A il 5 B R L
Hl AR Rt # o FH B A4
WEE S I > A ERZENE IR
& o ACGE B H A B B 2 AR 19 5 9% 1) 4 w1
B e B AR SR -

BEZF-FHEL A=+ —HILEF
BE o A 4R T SRR IR AR R AR N R
432,611,000 G ( =& — JU4FE © AR
556,012,0007C) °

IR

BREM PR SN > RS T
LUT B AR 2 A S B T 4RAT L
R AR -

42.

43.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a defined contribution
retirement scheme administered by the local municipal government.
The Company’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds which are calculated
on certain percentage of the average employee salary as agreed by local
municipal government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of
the employees. The principal obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit scheme is to make the required contributions under the

scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustee.
The Group contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme and the

same amount is matched by employees.

The Group recognised the retirement benefit contributions of
RMB432,611,000 (2019: RMB556,012,000) for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Save as disclosed elsewhere, the following assets were pledged to secure
certain banking and other facilities granted to the Group at the end of the

reporting period:

ZRIFA ZF—JUAE

2020 2019

AR#F ANR¥TT

RMB’000 RMB’000

wEYE Investment properties 42,988,827 43,548,320
FrEEE IR PFD 1,829,174 316,232
IR R PUD 74,126,210 83,481,668
FRfE By PFS 1,152,959 263,733
BRI T 3K Pledged bank deposits 821,790 169,491
120,918,960 127,779,444
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

44. 7RI 44. COMMITMENTS
ARG - AEEA LIRS At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following
commitments:
e Jwe <2 —F-hE
2020 2019
AR ANREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERTAE AR SR A P R o Contracted but not provided for in the
TE A - consolidated financial statements:
—HBRMN BRI R R EDER — Expenditure in respect of projects
B BRI H AP S classified as properties under
development for sales and investment
properties under development 64,144,467 50,081,892
—HBEARHER R T — Expenditure in respect of acquisition of
E FEVRE B4 B S properties held for development/land
use rights 12,469,723 2,842,141
76,614,190 52,924,033

——
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REBCBE TS H L
For the year ended December 31, 2020

45. BARAUE

REZFZRELZA=+—H > A%EH
T E B R RAT R AR
#10,521,726,0007C ( & — JL4F+ A
=t —H  AR#9,798,285,0007C) HI
TR o G B I SRAT IR (LA B A R B H
T Z ST EFIER o SRR E TR
WS S T ) e 6 00 S 6 T o8 1R R RAT
e o A A B 421 il S R R (LA AR 5 TR 25
RELIE 4 — [ 7 b St R L IE E 1T
AR IR R AT R R R R AT »
SERCREFTH =+ —H > AR
& 8 A JE P18 BT 4R I A TS R e 4
() 2 E SRR 5 40 N R 1.340,943,000 70
(ZE2—NFET-A=Z+—H: AR¥

1,427,200,0007C) ©

ANTIEEDS - AEEY)SER T RALE
M5 E RN ZEMBREREANAT
{EA R AR T RR IR AN TR > DA R A ) #E
FRAMEF R aE R At B R
915 SRR R AES > SR 2 S L) S A AR
fE R T E R R R R I
“EFCFFET AT -HREZENE
TZA=t— BB IR B R G 4 =

R EIE ER R A A EK -

45.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group provided guarantees amounting to RMB10,521,726,000
(at December 31, 2019: RMB9,798,285,000) as at December 31, 2020
in respect of mortgage bank loans granted to purchasers of the Group’s
properties. Guarantees are given to banks with respect to loans procured
by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and
completion of the relevant mortgage properties registration. The Group
provided guarantees on several basis covering its respective equity share
of outstanding obligation under the offshore bank loan incurred by a joint
venture developing its project. As at December 31, 2020, the Group’s
aggregate shares of such guarantees provided in respective of loan borrowed
by a joint venture amounted to approximately RMB1,340,943,000
(December 31, 2019: RMB1,427,200,000).

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair values of these
financial guarantee contracts to the purchasers of the Group’s properties
and the joint venture of the Group ate insignificant at initial recognition
and the directors of the Company consider that the credit risk exposure to
financial guarantees provided to customers and joint venture are remote
because the facilities are secured by the properties and the market price
of the properties is higher than the guaranteed amounts, accordingly, the
expected credit loss arising from the guarantee contracts is considered to be
insignificant at the end of the reporting period as at December 31, 2020
and December 31, 2019.
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LB B S B g ) K B2 5 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

UIHERS 455710 R D WA
i

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes:

(a)

PR e P A7 S D - 2

REF—MEFAZTABEZF
SRENAZAANR » AL TR
R A A4 e A7 St ) o RS A
SR B L R AT KRR S A
SEEEBER - SR AR - R0
ASE BB UG R B SR E 2
B LIRS E BRI R B AR
A ] LR D o B R T
Bl R AL & B N LIRS
—HBIZFAENBALSA (HE
T8 7€ 1Y i B e 1 A2 Ik ) RO AR
wil Bty (TR A ) AF B AEAL -

BWEZ_FEF+_HA=1—HI
R AN TR TR Rt B 2
1149 48 7 37 5T A i A A 566,286,478
B (22— JL4E ¢ 25,158,767 /%) A%
ONTIBEAR o % S AR S A i ARAR
8 ANR¥2,347,503,00070 (—F— L
i NRH595,897,0007C) € B B
HHERE AT o

RgZats > 2T FH+ 2
A=+—HARFACHET/\ MK
i -

WL — MR T > RF—L
EZH =4 — B B A s
13 BT ¥ B 1 B 473 400 Sl R AT 85 47 A
SN e 4 B H 43l 2% 58,700,000 B
(B 45 4% T % F 19 11,000,000 A% )
J233,200,408 B (345 #% T # S5 1)
9,049,750 /%) > {574 wl ik % B #A
BN ZEZFAEF A= —HI
JBA190.689% J2.0.55% ° 1 55 & H
Wk —F—)4FENH—H o

MRS MR T > R T\ F
— H — H B 5% W im0 B
T2 W) B A 48 0 e AT 8% A7 7E A1 1 i
8 A 57,175,000 B 5% 25,000 A% >
AN ARG H I Rt = F =&
T H =+ —HBBA0.12%
J20.0004% ° 1 558 H £ —

—/\FEEH—H o

(a)

Restricted share award scheme

On October 28, 2014 and August 26, 2020, restricted share
award schemes were adopted by the Company. The objective of
the restricted share award scheme is to recognise and motivate the
contribution of directors and employees of the Group, to provide
incentives, to help the Group in retaining its existing employees and
recruiting additional employees and to provide them with economic
interests in attaining the long-term business objectives of the
Group. The share award scheme allows the Group to make bonus
payments to eligible persons by way of the Company’s shares (the
“Awarded Shares”) acquired by and held through an independent
trustee until fulfillment of specified conditions before vesting.

During the year ended December 31, 2020, total of 66,286,478
(2019: 25,158,767) Company’s shares were acquired by an
independent trustee appointed by the Company for the share award
scheme. The aggregate consideration paid for these shares in an
amount of RMB2,347,503,000 (2019: RMB595,897,000) was
deducted from shareholders’ equity.

Under the scheme, eight batches of share award have been granted
up to December 31, 2020.

Under the first batch of the scheme, the total number of shares in
respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on March 31,
2017 was 58,700,000 shares (including 11,000,000 shares granted
to directors) and remained outstanding was 33,200,408 shares
(including 9,049,750 shares granted to directors), representing
0.68% and 0.55% of the shares of the Company at that date and as
at December 31, 2020. The first vesting date is April 1, 2018.

Under the second batch of the scheme, the total number of shares
in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on January
1, 2018 was 7,175,000 shares and remained outstanding was
25,000 shares, representing 0.12% and 0.0004% of the shares of
the Company at that date and as at December 31, 2020. The first
vesting date is July 1, 2018.
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46. VAIBAR By SEBERIA 3K R 5 (4n) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

DARE 25 465 000 I 0 S Rh 6

At : o)

(@)  FREIEER G g w8 (4%)
WREEEE = HRIZ T T — /4
S H = H B 5 5 15 e
5 B ) et K8 B R AT AT E A M
R ECH 20 Bl 521,510,000 8 (B 152
T # F 193,700,000/ ) 517,336,001
JBe (BL64% 7 3 213,224,250 %)
fEAA B RS A RO % AT
TZH=+—HB kG 0.36% K
0.29% ° B R EE H A —F—h
FEEPA—H o

B AR T = F—UAE
—H =+ = H B 5 A7 B
W I Iy 8 R AT B AT AE M
B 155 8 H 100,000/ % 75,000 % >
IEAA FIA % H B i =% B4R
TZH =1 —H 8RR 170.0017%
J20.0012% ° ¥ B 5 & H 8 5 —

—JAEMA—H -

HIEE AR T = F— U4
ZH =4 A B A A B
5 B ) et K8 BB AT A T E A i
P ECE 5Bl 526,690,000 % (B 45 4%
T # F 194,300,000 ) 24,255,400
i (L5 8% T 2 95194,085,000/% ) >
fEAR A A RS H OB SO —F AR
+ A =+ — AR 0.449% K
0.40% ° H 05 & H A —F—
FEEHA—H o

WEE AR T > R _F—AF
T H = H TR O O
5 B e AR B R AT B AT E A R
7 8 H 200,000 B & 200,000 B >
fEAR A AL RS A S R AR
TZH =1 — B8R 170.0033%
J%0.0033% © {5 & H & —

Z—EHA—H .
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(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

Under the third batch of the scheme, the total number of shares in
respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on March 31,
2018 was 21,510,000 shares (including 3,700,000 shares granted
to directors) and remained outstanding was 17,336,001 shares
(including 3,224,250 shares granted to directors), representing
0.36% and 0.29% of the shares of the Company at that date and as
at December 31, 2020. The first vesting date is April 1, 2019.

Under the fourth batch of the scheme, the total number of shares in
respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on January 23,
2019 was 100,000 shares and remained outstanding was 75,000
shares, representing 0.0017% and 0.0012% of the shares of the
Company at that date and as at December 31, 2020. The first
vesting date is April 1, 2019.

Under the fifth batch of the scheme, the total number of shares in
respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on March 31,
2019 was 26,690,000 shares (including 4,300,000 shares granted
to directors) and remained outstanding was 24,255,400 shares,
(including 4,085,000 shares granted to directors) representing
0.44% and 0.40% of the shares of the Company at that date and as
at December 31, 2020. The first vesting date is April 1, 2019.

Under the sixth batch of the scheme, the total number of shares in
respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on December 30,
2019 was 200,000 shares and remained outstanding was 200,000
shares, representing 0.0033% and 0.0033% of the shares of the
Company at that date and as at December 31, 2020. The first
vesting date is April 1, 2021.
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46 PAIBAR B REWE WAk 38 5% (420

DAE 25 45 B 1 I A SAD i i
al# : )

(a)

W ) ek Pt A S it 2 ()

HIEE LRI T > = F R4
VO H — H B4 H 1 080 Pt 53 B b I
119 M 173 248 0 R AT A7 A S Y i £
B H 36,720,000 (145 #Z T EF M
3,900,000 8 ) %% 36,270,000 /B (£ 4%
T % 513,900,000 %) > {54
AR H B R = F —RE A
=+—H M 190.619% 20.60% °
R R H A —F I —
H o

EEH R T > I _F R4
T A=+ 0 E AR AR
JIr 5 B ) J 173 8 B R A 35 47 7E Ab
1 B £ % H %% 350,000 i £ 350,000
B AGARA R AW R &
ZEFETZH =T —HB RO
0.006% 5.0.006% = T {5 & H HA 1
ZETTHFENEHA—H o

MR ZFFNA—H R _FF
EF+ZH=Z+—H  CREEH
QO WA (= 3 P DN
1,250,181,0007G 5% A [ #13,804,000
TG JOFERAE ) H AR B O3
GBI o

WE_F-FFEFA=T—HIt
FBE o A B TR AR S 1 P
115 e 58 B 32 N R W 477,046,000 76
(:?*nﬁ - N R 290,995,000

o 7R/ T 85 0 B B 4 3t DA A T
h’ﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂxf\féﬁ H > %4
BE FH AR R

REZZFEF A=+ —HIMEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a)

Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

Under the seventh batch of the scheme, the total number of shares
in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on April 1,
2020 was 36,720,000 shares (including 3,900,000 shares granted
to directors) and remained outstanding was 36,270,000 shares,
(including 3,900,000 shares granted to directors) representing
0.61% and 0.60% of the shares of the Company at that date and as
at December 31, 2020. The first vesting date is April 1, 2021.

Under the eighth batch of the scheme, the total number of shares
in respect of which Awarded Shares had been granted on December
31, 2020 was 350,000 shares and remained outstanding was
350,000 shares, representing 0.006% and 0.006% of the shares of
the Company at that date and as at December 31, 2020. The first
vesting date is April 1, 2022.

The estimated fair value of the each batch of awards granted
on April 1, 2020 and December 31, 2020 amounted to
RMB1,250,181,000 and RMB13,804,000 respectively, based on

the market price of the relevant shares at the grant date.

The Group recognised an expense of RMB477,046,000 (2019:
RMB290,995,000) for the year ended December 31, 2020 in
relation to shares awarded by the Company. The shares awarded by
the Company will be settled with the existing shares held by the
trust. Accordingly, the respective amounts were credited to share

award reserve.
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BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
For the year ended December 31, 2020

46. VAR R SEWEMIA 3R R 5 () 46.

DARE 25 465 000 I 0 S Rh 6

At : o)

(@)  FREIEER G R A8 ()
RO R T

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows:

RO E SRR
Number of

share awards  Vesting conditions

REFE—EEZA = BRI
FBEA R -
Share awards granted on March 31, 2017

264  Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||l & %1 % [l 4 % 5 R 2 7

58,700,000 AL HMEE “F—/\F=ZH=1T—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2018
AR AEE = F - E=HA =+ —H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2019
AR AR E =R RE=A =+ —H /A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2020
At HEE =X = =+ —H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
AR AMEE = F = F=H =+ —H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
At AR E - =E=A =T~ H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023
AR AR =T IE = = —H b 10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024
AR HEE - HE=A=1+—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2025
HE R E R NE=A=T—H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2026
AR AEE = Z T EFE =] = H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2027
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46 PAIBAR B REWE WAk 38 5% (420 46.

DARE 23 465 000 IR S Rh %

At : o)

(@)  FREIPER A SR A8 ()
EREE VR R T
(I'E

Ao B 2 R M R

BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows: (Continued)

Bt ms e SR
Number of

share awards ~ Vesting conditions

RZF— = A — R
B3 R -
Share awards granted on January 1, 2018

7,175,000 AL EHEE —F—/FAHZTHE16%
16% from the date of grant to June 30, 2018
A AER =%+ A =+ H R64%
64% from the date of grant to December 31, 2018
AT AR =R —fUEA A =1 H 6%
6% from the date of grant to June 30, 2019
AR AR E = UET A=+ —H 5%
5% from the date of grant to December 31, 2019
AR AR E =% = FE N A =+ H 4g
4% from the date of grant to June 30, 2020
A AR — 2 =R A =1 H 3%
3% from the date of grant to June 30, 2021
EEPEIREE iV :E e St VAV Iy R P P
2% from the date of grant to June 30, 2022
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46. VAR R SEREMIA 3R R 5 () 46.

DARE 25 465 00 I 0 S Rh %
At : o)
(@)  FREIEER R wt 8 ()
0 R 1 K B T
(ﬂﬁ

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows: (Continued)

ikl L]
Number of

share awards

it

Vesting conditions

RZFE = EZA =+ HRE
B3 R -
Share awards granted on March 31, 2018
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AR AR E = FEZA = —H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2019

AR AR E =R REZA = —H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2020
AR PEE = Z =] =+ H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
AR AREE =T F =] = —H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
AR AR E =R = E A = —H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023

B AR = F T E=A =+ —H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024

AR HBREE =R HE=A=+—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2025
AREEMEE = F - AE=A =+ —H B0
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2026

AEREAMEE - F - EE=A =+ —H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2027

AR R E =R EZA=+—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2028

21,510,000
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46 PAIBAR B REWE WAk 38 5% (420

DARE 23 465 000 IR S Rh %

At : o)

(@)  FREIPER A SR A8 ()
EREE VR R T
(I'E

BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows: (Continued)

Bt ms e SR
Number of

share awards  Vesting conditions

REF—E—A =R
A7y R -

Share awards granted on January 23, 2019

REF—IFE=A =1 BRI
B3 G

Share awards granted on March 31, 2019

100,000 HREHMEE -—F—NE=ZA=1+—HE25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2019
AR AR E = F R E = = —H B 25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2020
AR AREE =T F A = H A 25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
HREE RS - F A= H 259
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022

26,690,000 AR AMERE "FJUE=A =1 —H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2019
AR AEE = = FE=H =+ H10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2020
AR AEE = F T —F =] = —H10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
AEREAMEE - F - =A==+ —HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
AL EEE == F=A=T—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023
AR PR —F = =+—H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024
BEREAMEE - F - HE=A=1+—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2025
AR AR E = F N EZA =t —H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2026
AR e =L b= =+ —H 102
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2027
AR AR E = F T E=H =+~ A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2028
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

46. VAR R SEREMIA 3R R 5 () 46.

DARE 25 465 00 I 0 S Rh %
At : o)
(@)  FREIEER R wt 8 ()
0 R 1 K B T
(ﬂﬁ

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year

are as follows: (Continued)

TRt vl 8 2
Number of

share awards

it

Vesting conditions

REF—UEF A= AR
A3 0D -
Share awards granted on December 30, 2019

AT TN A — BRI
A7y R -
Share awards granted on April 1, 2020

268
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200,000 A H IR E = F T E = = H 2s5%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
AREAMEE - Z ==+ R25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
AR E - F - =F A= H A25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023

AR AR E = T PUE=A =+ —H A25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024

AR AMEE = F - —F=H =+ —H10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2021
HEZHAMEE - F - ==+ —HB10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
AEEAMEE - E - =F=A=1—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023

AR HEE = F = =+—H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024

AREHEE - HE=A =1+ —HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2025
A AR E = ARE= A=A 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2026

AIREHERE - E - EE=A=1+—HA10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2027
AR AMEE —F - AE=ZA =1+ —H A10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2028

BREEMREE - F - JUE=H = +—H10%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2029

A R = F =FE = =+ —H 0%
10% from the date of grant to March 31, 2030

36,720,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
BE =B = H I

For the year ended December 31, 2020

46 DABeOY Ry BEBE B0 K28 Bh 4) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DARE 25 45 5 1% I A Y0 h W e i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl s (4
(@  FREIM: A R E) (45) (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
AR R R R R The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
(#%) are as follows: (Continued)

JROHEEE SR
Number of

share awards  Vesting conditions

REF AT A= BRI
B D

Share awards granted on December 31, 2020 350,000 HBFHHMERE -F - 4HF=H=+—HH25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2022
AR R E =R T S E S = —H A25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2023
B AR = F T E=A =+ —H B25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2024
AR ABREE =R HE=A=+—HA25%
25% from the date of grant to March 31, 2025
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BE A= H LA
For the year ended December 31, 2020

46. DAIBCBY Po 2R A 3K 2 B 4v) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DARE 25 45 550 0 e A7 S8k 0Gh 1 e Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl : 4)
() PR A st 5t 281 (47) (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
AR RIS A e R Y S ) - The movements of the Company’s share awards during the year:

Wit H

Number of share awards

REZ2FE
REZZZE +ZA
—H—H =1—H
ZiHAM REEil] EREH ENER AE NS oE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Vested Cancelled asat
January 1, during during during  December 31,
Grant date 2020 the year the year the year 2020
et “F—LHEEAEH 40,881,800 - (5233,697)  (2447,695) 33,200,408
Share awards March 31,2017
i) “F—NE-A—H 650,000 - (475,000) (150,000) 25,000
Share awards January 1, 2018
et ZE-EEAEH 19,430,250 - (1,726,600) (367,649) 17,336,001
Share awards March 31, 2018
TRty i “E-E-HZTEH 100,000 - (25,000 = 75,000
Share awards January 23,2019
i) “F-NEEAETA 26,384,000 - (1,450,000) (678,600) 24,255,400
Share awards March 31,2019
et “EEFZAETH 200,000 - - - 200,000
Share awards December 30, 2019
et “RCRENA-A - 36,720,000 - (450,000 36,270,000
Share awards Aprll 1,2020
TRt CECEREFTHAEAH - 350,000 - - 350,000
Share awards December 31, 2020
87,646,050 37,070,000 (8910,297)  (4,093,944) 111,711,809
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

PAIBe Ay 2 208 09 1k 38 5 (420 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DIRE 25 45 S 0 A S50 T e Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
al# : )
() PR A st st 21 (47) (a) Restricted share award scheme (Continued)
RN A A B Y ) - () The movements of the Company’s share awards during the year:
(Continued)
Tty
Number of share awards
REF—NE
RZF-15 +ZH
—H—H ==
it A B ERf R R &R
Ourstanding Outstanding
as at Granted Vested Cancelled asat
January 1, during during during  December 31,
Grant date 2019 the year the year the year 2019
Tty ZE-LEEAETH 44,376,500 - Q4857500 (1,048950) 40,881,800
Share awards March 31,2017
e R “F—\E—A—H 5,650,000 - (4,900,000 (100,000) 650,000
Share awards January 1, 2018
e “E-NFEEAETH 21,460,000 - (1,685,500) (344,250) 19,430,250
Share awards March 31, 2018
Tty “E-NE-ASER - 100,000 - - 100,000
Share awards January 23,2019
e R “E-NEEAEH - 26,690,000 - (306,000) 26,384,000
Share awards March 31, 2019
et “E-UEFTHETA - 200,000 - - 200,000

Share awards

December 30, 2019

71,486,500 26,990,000 (9,031,250)  (1,799,200) 87,646,050
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RE-FF

FEHZA=T—HILEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

46 DAIBCAR B REWE WAk 58 5 (40

DAHE 25 45 B 1 T A SAD i i

Eir (RRE -
(b)  FEBEREGE

7% Y B AR it T e it
B ) JIRER —FFNET A
Sh=REE N - THR SRR R
o TEAMERAEHEERLE
A% B IR MRR o AR R
Bl > AN F] L A R
A5 A R AR 2 7 PR B FBHE o i
P RE R R A 2 B A 0
4 o

WoEENETF-H-+=0 8
% ] 3R 10,600,000 A (42455 [ 2
H 4% 14,550,000 B A ) B 40 1
FRHE o BEREHER AT RS £h8 44W5 T

A G R - I R = I e
——4 LA =+ /NH &R
46,000,000 ¢ (€1 45 ] & =F %
9,200,000 /5 & 1% ) % 150,000,000
(345 1) 3 5 5% 1 55,600,000 1 M
1) TR A03 0 B FREHEE o Jis JRE AR 2 A7 i
BA A Fy12.528 7T X 8.281 T »

AZZ—UEF—HMH > AR
1mmwm%%%m%%%’@%
] 2 % T 111,200,000 B FE43) E.
Bt o WIBHE 2 AT (B F59.3 75 G

AZEZREF A=+ —H
R4 B 1 E ST B 2R R AT
I AP NN
H 40,859,500 B ( = F — JL4F ¢
66,262,500/%) > ARERAA AR Z
FZoZFEF =1 — Hh%m
0.67% (ZF—JLAE 1 1.11%)

PRI (AR A i R 1) A 2 ) )
E%%%%%%%%Fﬁ%ﬁﬁ%
JIHE 1T T R AT R A 2 ] R £ AR
% T%ﬁﬂ%$A7&%§mM
W32 B LT HE AT ROy
10% °

46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)

(b)

Longfor Group Holdings Limited || &2 it & M iz i% A [R 2 7

Share option scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on December 23, 2009
for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors and
eligible employees of the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme,
the directors of the Company and its subsidiaries were granted
options to subscribe for shares in the Company. The term of the
Share Option Scheme is 10 years from the date of adoption.

On December 23, 2009, options to subscribe 10,600,000 shares
(including 4,550,000 shares granted to directors) were granted. The
exercise price of the option is HKDS8.44.

On January 17, 2011 and September 28, 2011, options to subscribe
46,000,000 shares (including 9,200,000 shares granted to directors)
and 150,000,000 shares (including 55,600,000 shares granted
to directors) were granted. The exercise price of the options are
HKD12.528 and HKD8.28, respectively.

On November 4, 2014, options to subscribe 110,000,000 shares
(including 11,200,000 shares granted to directors) were granted.
The exercise price of the option is HKD9.37.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and remained outstanding under the Share Option Scheme as
at December 31, 2020 was 40,859,500 (2019: 66,262,500),
representing 0.67% (2019: 1.11%) of the shares of the Company as
at December 31, 2020.

The total number of the Company’s shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and other share option schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 10% of the aggregate of the shares of the Company in issue
at the date when shares of the Company were first listed on SEHK.
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

46 DABeOY Ry BEBE B0 K28 Bh 4) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) BB Ay 0 sh / i JE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl s (4
(b)  FEBHERE (42) (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)
BRI A {41 5 e e st <) R S/ ) ) The overall limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
St S PR ) 452 A AT AR AT e exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
119 JIr 6 B R HE T T i A T ) AR A7 B under the Share Option Scheme and other share option schemes of
FY 2R - A5 BRI 3 the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
309 to time.
BE_Z-ZH+-_H=+—H1I The Group recognised total expense of nil (2019: RMB9,498,000)
ERE s S A B AR A T I B for the year ended December 31, 2020 in relation to share options
T A St B TE R I e R A Sy under the Share Option Scheme granted by the Company.
F(ZFE—JUF + NRH9,498,000
JG) e
A N BT L i FBORE 2 Mk Tk 1 The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during the year
T are as follows:
i
BHAM JEBHERH SR AR
Number of Contractual
Grant date options  Vesting periods life of options
LRSS Ty e =9k 4,550,000  ARHAMEE-F-REFTH = A5 4
TZAZF=H
Share options granted December 23, 2009 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to directors AR AR - F——F+ A+ =R Ry T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
ARt AR %A A 2= s T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
ARG ABEE " F =8+ A=+ =H A% T
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
ZEFE-AT A 9,200,000 B HMEE = F—"F— L HR25% 1
January 17,2011 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
PR AR E —FE—=F— L HB2s% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
AR R E =T —E— A +-E A 257 i
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
AR HER —F—HFE— ]+ H A25% 4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
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46 DABcOY Ry REBE WIS K28 Bh at) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) I Ay Y0 sh / 1% J3E HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl : (4

(b)  FEBHERE (42) (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)
TR
BHAH EBERE SRR RS
Number of Contractual
Grant date options  Vesting periods life of options
“H 45,600,000  FEH HIRE = F = A = AH B0% i

JHAZAAR
September 28, 2011 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
ARG A EE = F—WEA = H B30% T
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
B AR E —F— U A H B30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AR AR E ~ R AN AR A30% H
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
— R 10,000,000 2 AEEE = F—LELA ~HAH BLo0% T4
AZFAH

September 28, 2011 100% from the date of grant to September 28, 2017 10 years
“F—NEt—ANH 11,200,000 AL HRE —F—1F+—AMH B0% T4
November 4, 2014 10% from the date of grant to November 4, 2015 10 years
AR AR E ~F—RET— AN A A15% T
15% from the date of grant to November 4, 2016 10 years
AR e R —F—tFE+— AW 209 T
20% from the date of grant to November 4, 2017 10 years
AR R = — /\E+— A H A25% T4
25% from the date of grant to November 4, 2018 10 years
AR AR E =R~ U+ — A A f30% i
30% from the date of grant to November 4, 2019 10 years
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46. DB Ry FEBERIAF K EE 50 (40) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) BB Ay 0 sh / i i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
at#ll : )
(b)  HEBREGEE () (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)
i i
BHAH EBERE SRR RS
Number of Contractual
Grant date options  Vesting periods life of options
PR SR HHE —FE0E 6,050,000  AREHHMEE=F-FEF AT =HAs% tH
FoAZH=H
Share options granted December 23, 2009 25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2010 10 years
to employees AR IR E = F—— 4+ A+ =H A5 4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2011 10 years
AR AMEE %2+ A=t =H A% T4
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2012 10 years
AREAMEE - Z—-=F A= H B T
25% from the date of grant to December 23, 2013 10 years
e AR 36,800,000 A MR E %A tLH B2se i
January 17,2011 25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2012 10 years
AR HER —F—=F— 1+ A25% T
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2013 10 years
AR IR —F—E— R+ H A25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2014 10 years
AR HE R —F T~ A+ A A25% T4
25% from the date of grant to January 17, 2015 10 years
SRl 94,400,000  FZH IR E =T —=HE A~ AR A10% i
AZFAH
September 28, 2011 10% from the date of grant to September 28, 2013 10 years
B HE R — R~ LA =+ A Bi30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2014 10 years
AR H RS R HELA Z A H B30 T
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2015 10 years
AR HE R —F—AE A = H B30% T4
30% from the date of grant to September 28, 2016 10 years
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46. DB Ry FEBERIAKEE 50 (40) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) I Ay Y0 sh / 1% J3E HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl : (4

(b)  FEBHERE (42) (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)

TR

RHHH BERE  EEAR ARER

Number of Contractual

Grant date options  Vesting periods life of options

SECTEF AR 98,800,000  ARH AMEE=F T —AMA Kio% i

November 4, 2014 10% from the date of grant to November 4, 2015 10 years

AR AR E —F—AF+—AE A15% T4

15% from the date of grant to November 4, 2016 10 years

B AR E = F Lt~ A H B20% 4

20% from the date of grant to November 4, 2017 10 years

B R E = — E T — AT H 53259 4

25% from the date of grant to November 4, 2018 10 years

AR H TR E —F— U+ — H M A fi30% T4

30% from the date of grant to November 4, 2019 10 years
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PAIB Ay 2 BE R W Ak 38 5% 40) 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
DARE 25 45 5 1% I A Y0 h W e i Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
atdl o4
(b)  FEBHERE (42) (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)
AN S MR B B AR B R The movements of the Company’s share options under the Share
HEFTEITE N B S ) Option Scheme held by directors and employees during the year:
i e 22 2020
I
TS
Number of options
REZZZE BN ORZRCERE
frfiEf —A—H RV S g =y |
Rl AH i EEHN AT (Firik) AATHE
Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise at during at
price January 1, the year  December 31,
Grant date HKD Vesting period 2020 (Note) 2020
Rt “F -t 12528 “%——H—-f+LHE 2,869,500 (1,769,500) 1,100,000
R
Share option January 17, 2011 January 17, 2011 to
January 17, 2015
“F—FEAA 828 “F——EAAZFNH 23466500 (155800000 7,886,500
“t+AH Eol S 3
AAZHAH
September 28, 2011 September 28, 2011 to
September 28, 2017
SR —ANA 937 ZH—WE+—ANA 39926500 (8,053,500 31,873,000
EZR- N —HH
November 4, 2014 November 4, 2014 to

November 4, 2019

66,262,500 (25,403,000) 40,859,500

A\ROREFTH 40,859,500
=it
Exercisable at
December 31,
2020

L SREER I 9.12 892 9.24
(i#7)

Weighted average
exercise price
(HKD)

bk o AT BB Y i RS 2 S A Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HKD36.83.
36.83H 7L ©
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46. DA 2o SEBEROAT 3K R 5 () 46. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
D) HE 25 &5 550 1) I Ay Y0 sh / 1% J3E HE Equity-settled share award/share option schemes: (Continued)
Eis [RNE
(b)  FEBHERE (42) (b)  Share option scheme (Continued)
—E—JUE 2019
TR
Number of options
REF— & Bl REF-NE
friEE —A—H EffE +-H=1—H
it A W GRS Kl (M5E) KAl
Outstanding Exercised  Outstanding
Exercise at during at
price January 1, theyear  December 31,
Grant date HKD  Vesting period 2019 (Note) 2019
T “E—— 12528 ZZ——%—-A1+LtA%E 5,257,000 (2,387,500) 2,869,500
—R1tA “E-TE-A1tA
Share option January 17, 2011 January 17, 2011
to January 17, 2015
ZR——k 828 Z“E——HEHZTAHZE 49,200,500 (25,734,000) 23,466,500
A=A “E-EEAAZTAH
September 28, 2011 September 28, 2011 to
September 28, 2017
“F-ME 937 ZF-NEF-ANAE 56,444,000 (16,517,5000 39,926,500
T=AmA “E-NET—AlA
November 4, 2014 November 4, 2014 to

November 4, 2019

110,901,500 (44,639,000) 66,262,500

SRR 66,262,500
Zt—Hfl

Exercisable at December
31,2019

RTS8 (8 ) 9.04 891 9.12

Weighted average exercise
price (HKD)

i - T H BRI RE SF 25 1% 18 A Note: The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HKD26.22.
26,2287 ©
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For the year ended December 31, 2020

47. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

I —

—BoRE EAF
2020 2019
AR ANRHT T
RMB’000 RMB’000
KEANER (EA) T A THAZ ) Profit for the year has been arrived at
B A after charging (crediting):
1% AT 4 Auditor’s remuneration 8,144 7,807
RS AR YA A Cost of property inventories included in cost
of sales 124,289,330 95,649,911
W% ~ Bs BRI e Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 160,965 130,758
i REE i B Depreciation of right-of-use assets 78,871 11,563
MV 4 e Amortisation of intangible assets 18,280 -
BITMA Staff costs
T (L AR £ 45 5 SRy Directors’ emoluments (including equity-
FFIERERIAF 30 (F3E49) settled share-based payments) (Note 49) 186,356 124,521
Fofth B THcA Other staff costs
IR PR R Retirement benefit contributions 432,146 555,496
DIRE 5 55 0 BB A7y 1 A 5 Equity-settled share-based payments 404,250 253,504
HAth B TaiA Other staff costs 5,797,438 4,748,679
MR T A Total staff costs 6,820,190 5,682,200
B BRI R SR Less: Amount capitalised to properties under
Likva=vyEJiiR<wN | aent:il development for sales and investment
properties under development (1,517,342) (1,431,688)
5,302,848 4,250,512
BB BARAR A A Minimum lease income from
investment properties (7,252,159) (5,433,808)
FINMAS A Contingent rental income (323,951) (355,342)
U R AEA AR B B S Less: direct expenses that generated
rental income 1,671,657 1,303,672
(5,904,453) (4,485,478)

£ % Annual Report || 2020 279




280

Ko B 5 A PR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

BECRRETAZT—HIEEE
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48. BEME 48.

LS LT TEUN

AR B Z H AR A2 A B A A P B A
W EMEAR > HEMRE—FAZE
2052 1 - PrAEHE G EEKE
NAT ORI S R R A T 35 3 A« R
R TEREL 52 00D ol 0 S A S 0 e 4
1

MERBTFMRMT -

OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessor

Operating leases, in which the Group is the lessor, relate to investment
property owned by the Group with lease terms of between 1 month to 20
years. All operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the
event that the lessee exercises its option to renew. The lessee does not have

an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

Maturity analysis of operating lease payments:

ZRIFA R

2020 2019

ARWFI NERWTFIr

RMB’000 RMB’000

—4ER Within one year 5,331,773 5,462,476
AR In the second year 3,593,365 3,922,190
=4 In the third year 2,573,584 2,884,789
B IY4E In the fourth year 1,783,167 1,911,057
A In the fifth year 1,239,333 1,432,842
AR After five years 4,432,282 4,199,562
18,953,504 19,812,916

TREFIR R I RIS

—

The following table presents the amounts reported in profit or loss:

TERORE —E A

2020 2019

ANR¥TFT ARHT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

e B AT 3k Lease payments that are fixed 7,252,159 5,433,808
RECR AR B e 2 Variable lease payments that do not depend

TSR R A on an index or a rate 323,951 355,342

7,576,110 5,789,150

A O BN BRI 6 e L R 2 T
BRAR -

Longfor Group Holdings Limited ||||| &8 #1 & @ = i 5 1R A 7

T—

There in lease income relating to variable lease payments that do not

depend on an index or rate.
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49. HHE > ATBOANE B H 49. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

AR ) T B e A s w15 B R Directors” and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed

AT BRI AT pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

{173 #3 G i
i5s Bl MR R IHA LG it
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled share-
Directors'  and benefits relsted  Retirement  based payment
fees inkind bonuses benefit expense Total

ARHTZ  ARETFR ARETE ARETR ARETTE ARKTE
RMBUOO  RMBUO)  RMBUWO  RMBUO)  RMBUW  RMBUO

BE-Z %k Year ended December 31, 2020
FACT-ALEERE
N HiEE A)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
REELE Madam Wu Yajun - 8,000 4,760 111 = 12,871
il Mr. Shao Mingxiao = 20,000 25,710 111 34,281 80,102
#RE Mr. Zhao Yi - 11,000 14,280 111 17,580 2971
R (k) Mr. Wang Guangjian (Note a) - 9917 12,510 104 13,727 36,258
ZEILEE (k) Mr. Li Chaojiang (Note b) = 1,250 4,280 28 7,08 12,766
gt Sub-total - 50,167 61,540 465 72,796 184,968
___________________________________________________________________________|
BifaE Notes:
(a) EobgeER —E o FE=A Y (a) Mr. Wang Guangjian was appointed as an executive director with effect from March
ZAERBUTES o 24, 2020.
(b) FELEAER —F - FE = Y H A (b) Mr. Li Chaojiang tendered resignation as an executive director with effect from
fERATHE S o March 24, 2020.
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49. EH - TR EIERFH M)  49. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

ik #3 JUGET L
i5s ngif MR I PR it
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance setled share-
Directors'  and benefits relsted  Retirement  based payment
fees inkind bonuses benefit expense Total

ARKTZ  ARETFR ARETE ARETR ARETE ARKTE
RMBUW) ~ RMBUOO  RMBUW  RMBUO  RMBUW  RMBUOO

B)  BufHf#EE B)  INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter

Churchouse £ Churchouse 347 - - - - 347

TR M. Chan Chi On, Derek 347 = = = = 347
TR Mr. Xiang Bing 347 = = - - 347
WA Mr. Zeng Ming 347 = - - - 347
NGt Sub-total 1,388 = - - - 1,388
st Total 1,388 50,167 61,540 465 72,796 186,356
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49. EHE - HFMREBEHM 4  49. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

PAE T 7 8 S TR AT 2 S T 5 The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
FEA ) 2 SR TR AL A IRBS T S A for their services as directors of the Company.
E URER4E
HiR & #H Rifehh Ry
i5ie Bt HBTEAL BIRER EGH At
Salaties, Equity-
allowances Performance settled share-
Directors’ and benefis related Retirement  based payment
fees inkind bonuses benefit expense Total

NERFE  AREFT  AERFT AREFT AERFT ARKFR
RMBO0O  RMBUO)  RMBUO  RMBUO)  RMBUNO  RMBUOD

HE-Z-N% Year ended December 31, 2019
FOAZ AR IERE

N HiEE A)  EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
REFLL Madam Wu Yajun - 5,000 5,000 127 - 10,127
eRE A M. Shao Mingxiao - 18,000 18,000 127 26549 62,676
kg M. Zhao Yi - 10,000 10,600 135 13,631 34,366
TR Mr. Li Chaojiang - 4500 4,500 127 6,809 15,936
it Sub-total - 37,500 38,100 516 46,989 123,105
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49. EH - TR EIERFH M)  49. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

B &S
TR #3 iR BERth
220 sl HEEA R {kAaA BEH &5t
Salaries, Equity-
allowances  Performance settled share-
Directors’ and benefits related Retirement  based payment
fees inkind bonuses benefit expense Total

NERTE  AREFT  ARKFT  ARKTT AERTT ARETT
RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOD

HE-Z- N Year ended December 31,2019
TR HLEE
B BUf4GES: B INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Frederick Peter Mr. Frederick Peter
ChurchouseFE Churchouse 354 - - - - 354

BT M. Chan Chi On, Derek 354 - - - _ 354
TR Mr. Xiang Bing 354 - - - - 354
BBk Mr. Zeng Ming 354 - - - - 354
et Sub-total 1416 - - - i 1416
At Toul 1416 37,500 38,100 516 46,989 124521

A B 3 T 5 A
A ) B 4 S AR 0 5 1
fit «

DAL B 7 AT 2 S T
A RIS TR A A RS T S A

HRBABESC A IR 2 A4 A A9 AT AR > £ 3C
PF AN & B B AT BUB B s
P o

SR > ML 2 AT AR AT R R
(] A A T B P 2 B -

AN FIATE S A TS FEALRT K > 1E4L
AR RANRBE - F - RER
“F-NEF A= R IEERE
fiEE
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The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for their services
in connection with the management of the affairs of the Company and the

Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

for their services as directors of the Company.

Mr. Shao Mingxiao is also the Chief Executive of the Company and his
emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered by him as
the Chief Executive.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

Executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments which
are determined based on performance of the Group and individual for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019.
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49. EHE - HFMREBEHM 4  49. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

18 B 357 Employee’s emoluments
AEHRL REFMA LS > =4 (ZF Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
— U A) BAAEES > HMEGD (2019: two) were directors of the Company whose emolument is included
WA EXHEE - BRI (E—fU4E - = in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2019:
LAY ERIPNSw ] e L N three) individuals were as follows:
—2=%E  —F Ak
2020 2019
ARIEF NBWTFIr
RMB’000 RMB’000
Ha - Wil R EWRA Salaries allowances and benefits in kind 19,834 26,667
RBUABTEAL Performance related bonuses 33,221 39,480
DIRERS 4l 08 T ey 1o FE BRI A Equity-settled share-based payments 30,137 30,852
BRI Retirement benefits contributions 223 380
83,415 97,379
EEEE——————————
FEAR N 7)) I = N AR B RN AP The number of the highest paid employees who are not the directors of
DI A#iE the Company whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as
follows:
S
2020 2019
B A% BB AB
No. of No. of
employees employees
48,500,001 %5 75 ££50,000,000%5 75 HKD48,500,001 to HKD50,000,000 1 -
47,000,001 75 42 47,500,000% 7T HKD47,000,001 to HKD47,500,000 1 -
38,500,001 #5765 39,000,000%5 75 HKD38,500,001 to HKD39,000,000 = 1
38,000,001 #5762 38,500,00045 7T HKD38,000,001 to HKD38,500,000 = 1
32,500,001 76 % 33,000,0009 70 HKD32,500,001 to HKD33,000,000 = 1
2 3
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50. BHEEJTRE Y

BRI 5 & BB IR DU IR R B Wi k24 K2 2819
BT KEBRON - AR ARG I B B Oy

LTRSS

@ HAEMLE

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Apart from the balances with related parties as set out in the consolidated

statement of financial position, and in notes 24 and 28, the Group entered

into the following significant transactions with its related parties during

the year:

(a) Joint ventures

RIEE ZEF

2020 2019

ANR¥EFLE AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

FEFIA Consultancy income 133,720 128,935

b)  BiE A

(b) Associates

1

“RCORE —EFNE

2020 2019

AR AREFIE

RMB’000 RMB’000

i ON Consultancy income 23,033 11,059

© FEEHGRES

1

(c) Key management and directors

RO R E

2020 2019

AREFTLT ARBTIC

RMB’000 RMB’000

SHEYE Sales of properties 425,493 95,777
HaeA Rental income 26 _

() BRAEA R (FE)

(d) Related companies (Note)

1

e

2020 2019

ARWFE  ARBTIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

YIZEE LA Property management income 1,977 1,911
FTH Administrative expenses 48,319 53,262

WHRE BN R AL Rl S S

FEf -

—

Note: The related companies are controlled by Madam Wu Yajun, a director of the

Company.
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50. BB 5 ()

51.

(e) FRNEAS KEMANF FEE G
(IREARNTFIRES) B3R
Mt5t49 o

B TR R B 2 2
WS 2 0

TR B I FOR IR £ e 4 Y A 4R B R
BB AR

IR A AT

Name of subsidiary

BEZRDZET A= IR

For the year ended December 31, 2020

50. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

51.

(e)  The remuneration paid and payable to the key management of the
Company, who are the directors of the Company, for the year is set

out in note 49.

DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS
The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of the
Group that have material non-controlling interests:

At/ FEhfd A LT

B iR R A el Rt et

Proportion of
ownership interests
Place of and voting
incorporation/ rights held by Profit allocated to Accumulated

establishment ~ non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests  non-controlling interests
I 0002 09092020202 aa—— 02090

RRE CTNF RRE CEAF SRR 3R
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

NERTE  ARRTE ARKTE  ARETE
RMBUOO  RMBUOO ~ RMBUOO  RMBU0O

FEEMIRFLERS  Chongging Longhu Langjun Real
HIRAF(EEMR])  Estate Development Co. Led.
(“Chongqing Langjun”)
SRR Shaoxing Longyao Real Estate
HRAFHEERE])  Development Co., Led.

(“Shaoxing Longyao”)
AN RIRE £ Chengdu Longhu Chenshun
FRA Real Estate Co., Led.
([ HAbRIE]) (“Chengdu Chenshun”)

WA FEHEGRMA  Individually immaterial subsidiaries

FERMELA with non-controlling interests

il 30% 0% 15073 7669 1061366 936,293
W] 49% 9% M9052 41331 T838 433326
W] 49% 9% 306692 255,008 2397275 2874583

PRC

8057470 7,861,780 80,139,204 (8,477,243

8838287 8215888 84380223 7272144

L N N
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51, AR AIERPHERZHESLE 51 DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

B I 2 W) b a0) SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
WY R BRI
Chongging Shaoxing Chengdu
Langjun Longyao Chenshun

SRR CFouE CECRE CROUF CEORE RO
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ARMTE ARWTFr ARETT ARNTT ARETFT ARKTT
RMBO00  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMBUOO  RMBUOO

W EE Current assets 6,829408 7525346 2,769,523 4010720  4317,627 8071355
FRBgE Non-current assets 670,472 4,027 386 572 2,953,336 2,233,983
HEaE Current liabilities (2,756992) (2,482,890) (1,173,219) (3,026,952) (2,248,573) (3,970,552)
FRBAE Non-current liabilities (1,205,000) (1,925,500) - (100,000)  (129,991)  (468,290)

3,537,888 3,120,977 1,596,690 884,340 4,892,399 5,866,496

AT MEN g Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 2,476,522 2,184,684 814,312 451,014 2,495,124 2,991,913
FEFEINE R Non-controlling interests 1,061,366 936293 782378 433326 2,397,275 2,874,583
3,537,888 3,120,977 1,596,690 884,340 4,892,399 5,866,496
T
L EEEEEESS—— B .
“RORE CZo0E ZRCRE SR ZRORE CZNA
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ANREFLE ARETL ARETFE AREFLT ARETL ARETL
RMB000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB000 ~ RMB000  RMB000
A Revenue 2,349,863 1,814,801 3,818,485 642,754 3,459,120 2,067,043
AT NELG A Profit attributable to the owners of the
Company 291,838 134,560 363,298 43,018 319,211 263,521
FE e A e A Profit attributable to the
non-controlling interests 125,073 57,669 349,052 41331 306,692 255,108

SRR A R 2 T it AR Profit and total comprehensive

income for the year 416911 192229 712,350 84349 625903 520,629
ERF R S Dividends paid to non-controlling
interests = - = - (196,000) -

L N N

RN EHRE > EEMHR - HHEERK The directors of the Company considered that the cash flows of Chongging
A ML) B 65 9 22 S A 4 T 5 0 A Langjun, Shaoxing Longyao and Chengdu Chenshun and are not material
Ko D A R A A B 4 i 1 A S to the Group and so no summarised financial information on the cash flows
R - for the year are disclosed.
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52.

53.

BREZZEFT A=t —HIEE

For the year ended December 31, 2020

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to

shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes,
where appropriate, the borrowing